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the Company, at a meeting held today, has inter alia:

Approved the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) for the financial year
ended March 31, 2019.

Pursuant to Regulation 33 and other applicable regulations of the Listing Regulations, we enclose
the following:-

i. Auditors’ Reports on the aforesaid Audited Financial Statements(Consolidated and
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ii. Audited Financial Statements (Consolidated and Standalone) for the year ended March
31.2019.

The meeting for approval of the financial statements of the Company commenced at 3.30 p.m.
and concluded at 5.30 p.m.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of M/S PUNJ LLOYD LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of M/S PUNJ LLOYD LIMITED (*the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March19, and the statement of Profit
and Loss, and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 31st
March 2019 and loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. The net realizable value (NRV) of inventories as on 31st March 2019 has not been
determined by the company. Consequently, inventories have been valued at cost, rather
than at the lower of cost or NRV, which is contrary to the requirements of Ind AS 2 -
Inventories and accounting policy of the company. The financial impact of this non-
compliance remains unquantifiable due to the absence of NRV data.

2. Balances as per books of accounts relating to statutory liabilities such as VAT payable,
GST Payable, TDS payable, EPF, ESI and National Pension Scheme (NPS) have not
been reconciled with the corresponding figures in the statutory returns. The financial
impact, if any, arising from these unreconciled items has not been determined and
provided in the financial statements.

3. The company has not reconciled the claims received from operational creditors with the
balances recorded in its books of accounts as on CIRP commencement date. In absence
of the reconciliations, the financial impact, if any, remains unascertained. Refer Note No.
14 of the financial statements.




10.

11.

The employee benefit expenses recorded in the financial statements are not in
reconciliation with the payroll and HR records maintained by the company. The impact of
the same, if any, could not be determined due to non-reconciliation of said expenses.

Due to the significant time lag between the period under audit and the conduct of the
audit, the Project-related expenses, including those for material consumption, contractor
charges, and site operations could not be physically verified at respective sites.

Bank guarantees amounting to Rs.1928.55 crores, including Rs. 1124.26 crores after the
balance sheet date, have been encashed by the customers due to non-compliance of the
terms of the contract executed by the company with them, with corresponding impact in
profit and loss account. Loss is overstated to the extent of Rs. 1124.26 crores. Refer
Note No. 37 of the Financial Statements.

We could not obtain the direct balance confirmation from banks and receivables of the
company as on the balance sheet date.

Qualifications in respect of Branches

The Commercial Registration (CR) of the company of its branches at Saudi Arabia, Qatar
and Libya, have been expired and not been renewed, resulting restrictions like physical
visit of the branch office have imposed and branch auditor have relived on the
statements and explanations provided by the management of the company.

In respect of Saudi Arabia and Qatar branch, bank statements for the period under audit
as well as subsequent period have not been provided.

In respect of Abu Dhabi branch, due to non-renewal of the license after June 11, 2022,
and inability of a legal attorney to provide certification, management is unable to confirm
whether any legal dues exist towards UAE regulatory authorities. Hence, we are unable
to ascertain whether the financial statements as of March, 31, 2019, includes all
necessary provisions and disclosures for liabilities towards UAE authorities.

In respect of Abu Dhabi branch, we are unable to verify the transaction during the year
and balances of accounts payable, retention payable and provision of AED 45,448,105/-
(Rs. 85,58,78,713/-) out of the total payable of AED 84,054,550/- (Rs.158,29,15,286/-).
In absence of any supporting documents and external confirmations from suppliers and
vendors, we were unable to comment whether any adjustments would be necessary to
the below balances: -




Particulars Amount (In AED) Amount (in Rs.)
Accounts Payables 30,414,529 57,27,66,410
Retention Payable 8,361,352 15,74,60,981
Provision for expense 6,672,224 12,56,51,322
Total 45,448,105 85,58,78,713

12. In respect of Abu Dhabi branch, we were unable to verify margins, other facilities,
financial and contingent liabilities, if any, that needs to be included in the accompanying
financial statements due to unavailability of three bank balance confirmations out of five
banks.

13. A forgery had been committed against the company, compromising the Company
Commercial Registration (CR) of its Oman Branch, resulted in imposing of certain
restrictions, including physical visit to the branch office. Consequently, verification
procedures were limited, and reliance was placed on information, documentation, and
explanations provided by Company.

14. The financial statements of the Oman branch reflect an occurrence of theft from its
warehouse. A First Information Report (FIR) has been filed with the local police
authorities. The said matter is pending for adjudication before the local court in Oman.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

S. No. | Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1. The Company was admitted to the | We have discussed and analysed the
CIRP pursuant to an application filed | situation with the Liquidator who is currently
before the Hon'ble National Company | vested with the charge of governance. All
Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New | practical and reasonable efforts have been
Delhi (“NCLT/ Adjudicating Authority”) | made by us to gather evidences to ensure
by ICICI Bank Limited against Punj | non existence of material misstatements,
Lloyd Limited, under Section 7 of the | despite of the various challenges and

"




Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
(“Code”) read with the rules and
regulations framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time. The
Hon'ble NCLT vide its order
(“Admission Order”) dated March 08,
2019 (“Insolvency Commencement
Date”) had admitted the application for
the initiation of the corporate insolvency
resolution process (“CIRP") of the
Company. Subsequently, the NCLT
vide its order dated May 22, 2019
appointed Mr. Ashwini Mehra (IBBI
Reg. No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-
P00388/2017-18/10706) as the
Resolution Professional (‘RP”) of the
Company.

During CIRP, the RP had received a
resolution plan which was put to vote
for consideration of Committee of
Creditors (“CoC”). The resolution plan
put to vote was not approved by the
CoC. Subsequently, a meeting of the
CoC was held on March 30, 2021
wherein the members of the CoC
recommended that the liquidator should
first explore sale of the Company as a
going concern under Regulation 32(e)
of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of
India (Liquidation Process) Regulations,
2016 (“Liquidation Regulations”) or sale
of business of Company as a going
concern under Regulation 32(f) of
Liquidation Regulations. The CoC also
suggested that a scheme of
arrangement under section 230 of the
Companies Act, 2013 should be run
simultaneously, in the interest of time.

Based on the decision taken by CoC,
the RP on Aprii 01, 2021, filed an
application under section 33 of the
Code to pass appropriate orders for
liquidation of the Company as a ‘going
concern’.

The Hon’ble NCLT, Principal Bench
vide order dated May 27, 2022
(published on May 31, 2022)
("Liquidation Order") approved the
Liguidation of the Company as a going
concern in accordance with Section 33
of the Code and in terms of the
Liquidation Order Mr. Ashwini Mehra
(IBBI Reg. No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-

complex circumstances.

P00388/2017-18/10706), erstwhile RP
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has been appointed as the Liquidator of
the Company.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Emphasis of Maftter

1. We draw attention to Note 11 of the financial statements, which indicate that the
Company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been fully eroded, the Company
has incurred a net loss during the year and the Company’s current liabilities grossly
exceeds the current assets as at the balance sheet date. Further, order has also been
passed by Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi dated 27.05.2022 for liquidation of the Company.
These conditions indicate material uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. However, the financial statements are prepared as a going concern on
the basis of order of Hon'ble NCLT for liquidation of the Company as a going concern
basis and also as opined by the management of the Company. Our opinion is not
modified in this regard.

2. Deferred tax assets, although eligible for recognition due to accumulated losses and
deductible temporary differences, have not been recognized by the company, citing
uncertainty over future taxable profits. Our opinion is not modified in this regard.

3. The Company has filed income tax return for the FY 2018-19 on the basis of unaudited
books of accounts, whereas, the actual tax liability may vary based on audited figures.

4. Audit in respect of four overseas branches had been conducted by the branch auditors in
2019. However, due to their non availability of the respective branch auditors during audit
of the company, special purpose auditors have been appointed to provide necessary
information and assurance to us to incorporate the branch financials in the financial
statements of the Company. Further, in respect of other four branches, audits have been
conducted by the branch auditors in 2024.
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Other Matter

We did not audit the Financial Statements of the branches and an unincorporated joint venture
included in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whose financial statements reflect total
assets(net of elimination) of Rs. 2,038 crores at March 31, 2019 and total revenues (net of
elimination) of Rs. 1,676 crores for the year ended on that date. These financial statements have
been audited by other auditors whose reports and additional information thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these branches and an unincorporated joint ventures, is based solely on the reports of
the such other auditors.

The audit report of the Thailand branch and Thailand Joint Venture were signed on 8" May,
2024 and those of the Abu Dhabi and Kuwait branches were signed on August 22, 2024.
However, the audit reports for the branches located in Qatar, Oman, Libya, and Saudi Arabia
were signed in the year 2019. In view of this, the management (Liquidator) decided to conduct a
special purpose audit for these four branches. We have relied upon the audit reports and the
responses to the questionnaires received from the respective special purpose auditors.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter, except as stated below.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted n accordance with SAs will always detect a
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material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosyre about the matter or when, in extremely rare




the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)
b)
c)

d)

¢))

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act and rules made thereunder.

We could not get any written representations from the directors as on 31st March
2019 and unable to comment on whether any director is disqualified or not as on 31
March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in ‘Annexure B’.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under section
197(16), In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed pending litigations, however, the impact of the said
litigations on its financial position has not been considered in the financial
statements- refer note 38(c) to the Standalone Financial Statements.

i. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; _
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries during the year,

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries during the year; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-

statement.
V. No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.
Vi. Maintenance of books of account in a software which has a feature of recording

audit trail (edit log) facility was not applicable for the period under audit.

For KASHYAP SIKDAR AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0016253N
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Annexure ‘A’

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements”.

We report that:
(i) (a)

(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property,

Plant and Equipment;

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Property,
Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals and the material discrepancies noticed were dealt
with in the books of accounts of the Company;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statementsare held in the name of the company,
except the following:-

Description Gross Held in Whether Period held - | Reason for
of Property carrying name of promoter, indicate not being
value director or range, where held in
their relative | appropriate name of
or employee company
One parcel 4,81,400/- Punj - Since The dispute
of land Lloyd January pertains to
located in Limited 2002 ownership
Waksai of property
with a third
Party.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and rules made thereunder. ;




(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our
opinion, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. As
per the information provided to us, appropriate adjustments have been
made in the books for the discrepancies noticed on such verification. .

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no fresh working
capital loan in excess of five crore rupees has been raised during the
year. The company has, however, been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets at certain points in
time. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such
banks or financial institutions have been provided to us; however, in
absence of adequate records, we were unable to verify their agreement
with the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, the company has not made
investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e)
and 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees,
and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
have been complied with except non charging of interest on the loan.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of
cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and such accounts and
records have been so made and maintained.

(a)In absence of proper reconciliation about the payment of statutory dues,
we are unable to comment whether all undisputed liabilities have been paid
and no such amount is outstanding for more than a period of six months from
the date they become payable. Further, due to initiation of CIRP and
imposition of moratorium under section 14 of IBC, 2016, all dues prior to
CIRP commencement date i.e. 08.03.2019, stands frozen and payments of
the same are to be made as per the provisions of IBC, 2016. However,
Resolution Professional had admitted a sum of Rs. 1813.67 Crores, as
updated on 02.07.2024, as dues towards statutory authorities. Refer note No.
38(a) of the Financial statements.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the




basis of our examination of the records of the company, there is no statutory
dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of
any dispute except following :

Period to which | Forum where
Nature of Amount the amount Dispute is
Name of the Statute the Dues (Rs.) relates pending
Tax Sales tax
Andhra Pradesh Sales Tax | (including 1998-99 to Appellate
Act, 1957 Interest) 7.16 2004-05 Tribunal
Tax Sales tax
Telangana Value Added (including Appellate
Tax Act, 2005 Interest) 0.26 2010-11 Tribunal
Tax Assessing
Bihar Value Added Tax, (including Authority/Com
2005 Interest) 28.82 2009-10 missioner
Tax Commissioner
Bihar Value Added Tax, (including of Commercial
2005 Interest) 0.83 2011-12 Tax
Additional
Tax Commissioner
Chattisgarh Value Added (including of Commercial
tax, 2005 Interest) 0.15 2012-13 Tax
Additional
Tax Commissioner
Delhi Value Added Tax (including of Commercial
Act, 2005 Interest) 0.26 2011-12 Tax
Tax Joint
Gujarat Value Added Tax (including Commissioner
Act, 2003 Interest) 0.15 2013-14 Appeal
Sales Tax
Tax 2003-04 to Appellate
Haryana Value Added Tax | (including 2005-06, 2009- | Tribunal / JC
Act, 2003 Interest) 5.71 10 Appeal
Tax
Kerala Value Added Tax (including 2014-15 to Dy.
Act, 2003 Interest) 0.10 2016-17 Commissioner
Tax Joint _
Maharasthra Value Added (including Commissioner
Tax Act Interest) 5.47 2011-12 Appeal
Tax
Madhya Pradesh (including
Commercial Tax Act, 1994 | Interest) 0.02 2003-04 High Court
Tax
Madhya Pradesh Value (including 2009-10,2010- | Commercial
Added Tax Act, 2002 Interest) 0.90 11 Tax Tribunal
Tax
Punjab Value Added Tax (including 2008-09 to
Act, 2005 Interest) 92.71 2012-13 Supreme Court
Tax Comm. Tax
Rajasthan Value Added (including 2013-14 to Tribunal/ Dy.
Tax, 2003 Interest) 10.40 2015-16 Commissioner
High Court/
Tax Comm. Tax
Orissa Value Added Tax (including 2011-12, 2012- | Tribunal/ AC
Act, 2005 Interest) 33.56 13,2014-15 Appeal
West Bengal Value Added | Tax Appellate &




Tax Act, 2003 (including 32.76 15 Revisional
Interest) Board
Tax Commissioner
(including of Commercial
Bihar Entry Tax Act, 1993 Interest) 2.30 2009-10 Tax
Tax
Chhattisgarh Entry Tax Act, | (including 2005-06, 2006~ | Assessing
1976 Interest) 0.26 07 Authority
Tax
Haryana Local Area (including Assessing
Development Tax Act, 2000 | Interest) 0.40 2003-04 Authority
Tax
Karnataka Sales Tax Act, (including 2002-03, 2004-
1957 Interest) 0.12 05 JC Appeal
Tax High Court/
Madhya Pradesh Entry Tax | (including 2003-04, 2009- | Comm. Tax
Act, 1976 Interest) 0.33 10 to 2010-11 Tribunal
Tax Assessing
Telangana Value Added (including 2012-13 to officer/ Dy.
Tax Act, 2005 Interest) 0.02 2014-15 Commissioner
Tax
Uttar Pradesh Trade Tax (including
Act, 1948 Interest) 0.11 2010-11 High Court
Tax
(including CESTAT
Central Excise Act, 1944 Interest) 0.72 2006-07 Mumbai
Goods & Service Tax Act Tax 2.17 Assessing
Authority/
(Bihar) Interest 0.62 200718 Commissioner's
Level-GST
Penalty 0.22 Department
Goods & Service Tax Act Tax 0.28 Assessing
Authority/
(Haryana) Interest 0.23 QRIS Commissioner's
Level-GST
Penalty - Department
Goods & Service Tax Act Tax 0.61 Assessing
Authority/
(Jharkhand) Interest 0.11 = Commissioner's
Level-GST
Penalty 0.15 Department
Goods & Service Tax Act Tax - Assessing
2017-18 & Authority/
(Karnataka) Interest 0.09 2018-19 Commissioner's
Level-GST
Penalty - Department
Goods & Service Tax Act Tax 0.07 Assessing
Authority/
(M.P) Interest 0.06 U Commissioner's
Bk Level-GST
Penalty 0.00:0 - 2\ Department

\2 \




Goods & Service Tax Act Tax 2.36 Assessing

2017-18 & Authority/

(Maharashtra) Interest 1.81 2018-19 Commissioner's
Level-GST
Penalty 0.24 Department
Goods & Service Tax Act Tax 0.46 Assessing
2017-18 & Authority/
(Odisha) Interest 0.80 2018-19 Commissioner's
Level-GST
Penalty 0.02 Department
Goods & Service Tax Act Tax 0.67 Assessing
2017-18 & Authority/
(Telengana) Interest 0.11 2018-19 Commissioner's
Level-GST
Penalty 0.07 Department

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 as income during the year.

(ix)

(@) The Company has defaulted in making payments of its dues to the

(b)

(c)

(d)

financial creditors and an application was filed by ICICI Bank Limited
under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, CIRP of
the company was initiated vide order of Hon’ble NCLT dated
08.03.2019. All the banks and financial institutions, being financial
creditors as per IBC, 2016 had filed their claims initially before the IRP/
RP and subsequently before the liquidator. Refer Note No. 38(a) of the
financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has been declared a willful defaulter by Central Bank of India.
Further it has been informed to us that IDBlI Bank has classified the
company account as fraud.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has utilized the money obtained by way of
term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were
obtained, except where the Resolution Professional during the CIRP of
the Company had appointed a transaction auditor to examine and
identify avoidable transactions under Section 43 and 45 of the Code.
Based on the findings of transaction audit report the RP has reported
the avoidable transactions by filing an application with the Adjudicating
Authority pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Code on July 19,
2020. The application is pending with the Hon’ble NCLT for adjudication.

According to the information and explangtlons given to us and on an
overall examination of the balance, a jeet of Company, we report that




(x)

(xi)

(e)

)

(a)

(b)

(a)

no funds raised on short term basis have been used for long term
purposes by the company, except where the Resolution Professional
during the CIRP of the Company had appointed a transaction auditor to
examine and identify avoidable transactions under Section 43 and 45 of
the Code. Based on the findings of transaction audit report the RP has
reported the avoidable transactions by filing an application with the
Adjudicating Authority pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Code on
July 19, 2020. The application is pending with the Hon’ble NCLT for
adjudication.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company holds many investment in subsidiary,
associates or joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the year
ended March 31, 2019, however, the company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is
not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not raised loans during the year
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year under audit. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and
according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or
reported during the course of audit. However, applications have been
filed by the liquidator in respect of avoidance transactions which are
pending adjudication before Hon’ble NCLT. Many complaints had also
been filed with various statutory investigation authorities which are
pending before them. Further, it has been informed to us that IDBI
Bank has classified the company account as fraud.

A forgery had been committed against the company, compromising the
Company Commercial Registration (CR) of.its. Oman Branch, resulted
in imposing of certain restrictions, incIuding—'-‘jahy%ica\l_;xisit to the branch
office. Vo)




(xii)

(xiii)

(Xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The financial statements of the Oman branch reflect an occurrence of
theft from its warehouse. A First Information Report (FIR) has been
filed with the local police authorities. The said matter is pending for
adjudication before the local court in Oman.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, no whistle-blower complaints had been received by the
company.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b)
and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards;

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, the company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business. However, Internal Audit Report
for the quarter ended 31st March, 2019 was not made available to us.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued
till 31t December, 2018.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(@) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
india Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

(b) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. , .

Y -




(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Group does not have not more than one CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) Based on our examination, the company has incurred cash losses in the
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Amount of
cash loss during current financial year is Rs. 234.29 crores and in the
immediately preceding financial year is Rs.96.64 crores.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we
have taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the
outgoing auditors, except in respect of disputed professional fees.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, we have reasonable doubt about the company of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due.
However, the company is presently in Liquidation with claims of all financial,
operational and other creditors have been determined and admitted by the
liquidator and is in the process of distributing the proceeds of realization of
assets to various stakeholders as per section 53 of Insolvency & Bankruptcy
Code, 2016.

(xx) As the Company was undergoing CIRP at the year end, no provision for CSR
activity has been made in the books of accounts of the Company during the
year.

(xxij The company is required to prepare Consolidate financial statement.
However, this being a standalone financial statement, this clause is not

applicable.
For KASHYAP SIKDAR AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0016253N-_ <
Iy, o
L)
e
Place:-New Delhi Arunava
Date: 16/09/2025 (PARTNER )

Membership 089003
No.



Annexure‘B’

Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S PUNJ LLOYD
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting. LT ‘N




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, considering the CIRP and delayed conduct of the audit of the Company, we are
unable to comment about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. However, the company has obtained a report of internal
financial control - Testing of Operating Effectiveness from an outside agency as on 31 March,
2019.

For KASHYAP SIKDAR AND COMPANY
Chartered Ascpnn_tants
FRN: 001 N ‘\:'J‘\

Place:-New Delhi
Date: 16/09/2025 g (PARTNER )
UDIN: 25033 553N 2T Membership No. 089003



Pang Llovd Ditaited

Palauee Sheet as st March 21, 2010

(Al cmoinity fn [NK Croras, unlass othemvise siaied)

As at

Notes March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 511.06 599.16
Capital work-in-progress - -
Investment property 5 88.56 90.20
Intangible assets 6 - 3.63
Intangible assets under development - -
Financial assets
Investments 7(a) 6.62 463.94
Loans 7(b) - 5.72
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 - 1,199.00
Other non-current assets 9 110.26 180.21
716.50 2,541.86
Current assets
Inventories 10 66.15 117.05
Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress) 335.64 4,755.48
Financial assets
Loans 7(b) 55.90 295.45
Trade receivables (c) 505.33 2,591.26
Cash and cash equivalents 7(d) 63.33 220.28
Other bank balances e) 151.50 177.88
Other financial assets D 9.82 453.89
Current tax assets (net) 78.01 69.26
Other current assets 9 5547 327.92
1,321.15 9,008.47
Total assets ‘ S TP aCT _ 2,037.65 11,550.33
_EQUITY AND LIABILITIES - < . 750 0.
Equity
Equity share capital 11 67.12 67.12
Other equity (12,769.81) 95.40
Share application money pending allotment i -
(12,702.69) 162.52
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12(a) * 482.14
Provisions 13 0.56 5.49
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 - -
0.56 487.63
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Bormowings 12(b) 6,336.34 4,638.16
Trade payables
total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 29.80 435
total outstanding dues other than above 3,360.88 2,439.43
Other financial liabilities 12(c) 3,632.45 2,275.35
Other current liabilities 14 1,139.13 1,427.46
Provisions 13 186.01 60.94
Current tax liabilities (net) 55.17 54.48
14,739.78 10,900.17
Total equity and liabilities 2,037.65 11,550.33
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
This is the standalone balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 016253N

UDINNo. Q5089 052 MM TTARSSY

Arunava Sikdar 4

Partner \ \M; /
Membership No.: 089003 =

A e

~

Place: Delhi

Date: \ 6| 92,25

L
low OBH\'\ : !
\;-'_,K /2]

“Reg, No

o

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00388/2017-18/10706

For and on behalf of Punj Lloyd Limited

PR

Adhish Swaroop

Company Secretary

Ashwini Mehra
Liquidator



Punj Llovd [imited
Statement of profit and loss tor the vear ended Mareh 31, 2019

(AN auioais e INK Crores, indoss oiligmris Sl

Notes Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Income
Revenue from operations 15 1,675.58 4,059.49
Other income 16 279.49 353.41
Total income 1,955.07 4,412.90
Expenses
Projects materials consumed and cost of traded goods sold 1,502.07 2,056.35
Employee benefits expense 17 450.08 366.64
Bank Guarantee encashment 1,928.55 -
Provision for unbilled revenue 2,726.70 40.56
Provision for receivables 810.63 235.64
Provision for other financial assets 1,534.70 52.27
Other expenses 18 2,864.23 1,446.08
Total expenses 11,816.96 4,197.54
Earnings before interest (finance costs), tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) (9,861.89) 215.36
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 91.91 120.70
Finance costs 20 1,331.09 976.38
Loss before tax (11,284.89) (881.72)
Tax expenses 21
- Current tax 4.05 (0.08)
- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years - -
- Deferred tax 1,199.69 (1,199.00)
Total tax expense 1,203.74 (1,199.08)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 12.488.6 317.36
Other comprehensive income (0CI)
A. OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 77.84 (54.80)
Income tax effect
77.84 (54.80)
Net OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years 17.84 (54.80)
B. OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 323 5.32
Income tax effect
Net gain/ (loss) on FVTOCI of equity securities (457.30) (308.79)
Income tax effect
Net OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years (4&8) 303.47
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (refer note §) 376.24 358.27
Total comprehensive income for the year (12.864.87) (40.91)
Eamings per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 2 each (Previous year Rs. 2)] 22
Basic (in Rs.) (372.13) 9.46
Diluted (in Rs.) (372.13) 9.45
Summary of significant accounting policies —.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration numbey: H253N
UDIN No. 7§ Sisiey ¢

5

o

(14}
b
Artuhava Sikdan ™

Partner X

) 4
Membership No.: W

Place: Delhi

Date: \ ¢ 'Q \ 1575

Reg.

For and on behalf of Punj Lioyd Limited

Adhish Swaroop
Company Secretary

Ashwini Mehra
B = Liquidator
0: IBBI/IPA-001/1P-P00388/2017-18/10706
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Punj Llovd Fimited
Statement of cash 1lows for the vear ended Mareh 31,2019

(Al etz e NI Crates, wunioss otherwise stator

Year ended

Mareh 31, 2019 |

March 31, 2018

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax (11,284.89) (881.72)
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 91.91 120.70
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments (net) - (2.52)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (net) 52.59 84.96
Unspent liabilities and provisions written back (0.65) (121.58)
Provisions on assets 4,896.05 328.46
Provision for foreseeable losses 21.84 -
Net gain on sale of long-term investments - (0.48)
Employee share based payment expense - -
Interest expense 1,300.56 924,50
Interest (income) (8.82) (24.82)
Dividend (income) - -
Operating profit before working capital changes (4,931.41) 427.51
Movement in working capital:
Trade payables 953.55 230.67
Provisions 120.14 (62.04)
Financial liabilities (10.08) 19.47
Other liabilities (288.33) (1,075.91)
Trade receivables (2,863.88) (586.20)
Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress) 4,398.00 1,377.98
Inventories 50.90 (28.48)
Financial assets 672.33 (165.87)
Other assets 34240 141.61
Cash generated from operations (1,556.38) 278.74
Direct taxes refunds (net (12.12) (20.45)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (1,568.50) 258.29
Cash flow from investing activities i
Purchase of property, plant and equipments, including CWIP and capital advances (7.82) (18.51)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 6.96 13.06
Proceeds from sale of non-current investments (net) - 0.48
Redemption/maturity in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) (1.75) .
Interest received 26.04 22.24
Dividends received - -
Decrease/ (Increase) in margin money deposits 28.13 (58.48)
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) 51.56 (41.21)
Cash flow from financing activities ) .
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 8.53 11.61
Repayment of long-term borrowings (71.31) (231.31)
Proceeds/ (Repayment) from short-term borrowings (net) 1,698.16 455.29
Interest paid (352.73) (549.37)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 0.07
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 1,282.65 (313.71)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+0C) (234.29) (96.64)
Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency - (0.93)
Exchange difference 77.35 (54.85)
Cash and cash equivalénts at the beginning of the year 220.28 366.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 63.33 213.73
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Punj Llovd Limited

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts 56.48 144.95
On EEFC account 542 69.83
Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 0.19 4.56
Cash on hand 1.24 0.94
Total cash and cash equivalents [refer notes 7(d)| 03.33 220.28
Less : Book overdrafi 0.00 (6.54)
Total cash and cash equivalents [refer notes 7(d) & 12(c)] 63.33 213.73

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the standalone statement of cash flows refetred to in our report of even date.

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 016253N
UDINNo.050R S 053 PAr 2T M 555
. I.?"Kd_
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Place: Delhi
Date: \ b\ a\s

For and on behalf of Punj Lloyd Limited

Adhish Swaroop
Company Secretary

Ashwini Mehra

e :” Liquidator
Reg. No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00388/2017-18/10706
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1. Corporate information

Punj Lloyd Limited (“the Company™ or “Corporate Debtor” or “CD") is o public limited company domiciled in India. Its equity shares are listed on two
recognized stock exchanges in India. The principal place of business of the Company is located at New Delhi, India, The Company is primarily engaged in the
business of engineering, procurement and construction in the oil, gas and infrastructure sectors. The Company caters 1o both domestic and international
markets. The Company is currently undergoing Liquidation as a going concemn pursuant to the order of the Hon'ble NCLT dated May 27, 2022, Trading in the
equity shares of the Company has been suspended w.e.f. Friday, October 07, 2022 on both the recognized stock exchanges on account of initiation of
Liquidation proceedings by the Hon'ble NCLT.,

These financial statements for the year ended March 3 1,2019 were authorized for issue by the Liquidator of the Company.

28 Signlficant accounting policies
(a)  Basis of preparation
(i)  Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared and comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. All
notes to financial statements to be read together with Note (2) (a) (iv) below with respect to ongoing Liguidation process of the Company.

(1) Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared on going concen basis under an accrual and historical cost basis, except for the following:

®  certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value;
®  certain items of property, plant and equipments which have been fair valued on the transition date

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

(i) Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format preseribed in the Schedule 11 to the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Aet™). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented s per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The
disclosure requirements with respeet to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 111 to the Act, are
presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting
Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended,

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in crore [1 crore = 10 million] rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

(iv) CIRP and Liguidation of the Company

“The Company was admitted to the CIRP pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi
("NCLT/ Adjudicating Authority") by ICICI Bank Limited against Punj Lloyd Limited, under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016
(“Code”) read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, The Hon'ble NCLT vide its order (“Admission Order") dated
March 08, 2019 (“Insolveney Commencement Date") had admitted the application for the initiation of the comporate ingolvency resolution process (“CIRP") of
the Company. Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order dated May 22, 2019 appointed Mr, Ashwini Mehra (IBBI Reg. No: IBBIIPA-001/1P-PO0388/2017-
18/10706) as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Company.

During CIRP, the RP had received a resolution plan which was put to vote for consideration of Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). The resolution plan put to
vote was not approved by the CoC. Subsequently, a meeting of the CoC was held on March 30, 2021 wherein the members of the CoC recommended that the
liquidator should first explore sale of the Company as & going concem under Regulation 32(e) of Insolvency and Bankruptey Board of India (Liquidation
Process) Regulations, 2016 (“Liquidation Regulations”) or sale of business of Company as a going concemn under Regulation 32(f) of Liquidation Regulations.
The CoC also suggested that a scheme of arrangement under section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 should be run simultaneously, in the interest of time.

Based on the decision taken by CoC, the RP on April 01, 2021, filed an application under section 33 of the Code to pass appropriate orders for liquidation of
the Company as a ‘going concern’.

The Hon’ble NCLT, Principal Bench vide order dated May 27, 2022 (published on May 31, 2022) ("Liquidation Order") approved the Liquidation of the
Company as a going concern in accordance with Section 33 of the Code and in terms of the Liquidation Order Mr. Ashwini Mehra (IBBI Reg. No: IBBI/IPA-
001/1P-P00388/2017-18/10706), erstwhile RP has been appointed as the Liquidator of the Company.

Further, with effect from May 27, 2022, the Liquidator shall have powers and duties, as provided in Section 34 and 35 of the Code, including but not limited
to:

i. The powers of the Board of Directors, key managerial-personnel and the partners of the Company, as the case may be, shall cease to have effect and shall be
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ii. The Liquidator shall take into his custody or control all the assets, property, effects, and actionable claims of the Company;
iii. The Liquidator shall act and execute in the name and on behalf of the Company all deeds, receipts, and other documents, if any;
iv. Other duties as prescribed under the Code.

The powers and duties mentioned above are not exhaustive and do not cover all powers and duties of the Liquidator provided under Section 35 of the Code,
read in conjunction with the Liquidation Regulations. Please further refer to Section 35 of the Code and its corresponding regulations in the Liquidation
Regulations for comprehensive list of powers and duties of the Liquidator.

The Companies Act 2013 (as amended) (the ‘Act’) under section 134 (1) states that the financial statement shall be approved by the Board of Directors and
thereafter signed on behalf of the Board by the chairperson of the company where he is authorised by the Board or by two directors out of which one shall be
Managing Director, if any, and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Company Secretary of the company, wherever
they are appointed, for submission to the auditor for his report thereon. Upon commencement of the CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors of the
Company stand extinguished and are exercised by the Resolution Professional (RP) and upon commencement of the liquidation, these powers are exercised by
the Liquidator. These financial statements pertain to the period both prior and post commencement of CIRP. It may be noted that the Liquidator (erstwhile
Resolution Professional) was not involved with the Company in any manner during FY 2018-2019. All practical and reasonable efforts have been made to
gather details to prepare these financial statements and despite various challenges and complex circumstances, best possible efforts have been put to provide
information required by the auditors for the purpose of carrying out the audit. The Promoter / Ex. Managing Director, Mr. Atul Punj is continuing as Director
in the Company while other Directors had resigned on or before commencement of the CIRP. These financial statements have been signed by the Liquidator
while exercising the powers of the Board of Directors of the Company, which has been conferred upon him in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
2016. Liquidator has signed these financial statements for discharging his duty under the Liquidation Process, govemned by the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code 2016 and IBBI (Liquidation Process) Regulations, 2016 and IBBI (Liguidation Process) Regulations, 2016. (In view of order of Hon’ble NCLAT in the
matter of Mukund Chaudhary vs S. K. Kundra (RP of CLC Industries Ltd, Directors are also liable to sign the balance sheet).

To complete the liquidation of the Company as a going concern in accordance with the directions provided by the Hon’ble NCLT in the Liquidation Order and
Regulation 32A read with Regulation 32 of the IBBI (Liquidation Process) Regulations, 2016, the Liquidator had issued an Invitation for the submission of
binding bids for acquisition of Punj Lloyd Limited “in liquidation” on a going concem basis vide Public Announcement dated 13% August 2022 and also issued
an Asset Sale Process Memorandum dated 13® August 2022 and subsequently also issued four addendums to the Asset Sale Process Memorandum dated 13
August 2022 (“Asset Sale Process Memorandum™), which set out the process for submission of a binding Bid and participation in the subsequent E-Auction for
the selection of the Successful Bidder in accordance with the Provisions of the Code. Pursuant to this invitation, the Liquidator received two bids, for
acquisition of the Company on a going concern basis.

However, the Stakeholder Consultation Committee (“SCC”) in its 5th meeting held on 20" March 2023, advised the Liquidator to not to consider the Binding
Bids, submitted by two Bidders, as the members of SCC were not satisfied with the contours of implementation and the value offered in the Bids.
Subsequently, the SCC in its 6th meeting held on 12 May 2023 has advised the Liquidator to resume the ongoing going concern sale process of the Company
by seeking fresh offers from all interested/prospective buyers and incorporating necessary amendments in the Asset Sale Process Memorandum dated 13th
August 2022. In the same meeting, the SCC members in accordance with the Regulation 31A of the IBBI (Liquidation Process) Regulations 2016 has
approved the terms of the Amended & Restated Asset Sale Process Memorandum along with the Reserve Price for sale of the Company on a going concern
basis.

Subsequently, the Liquidator conducted multiple rounds of e-auction for sale of various Set of Assets of the Company, including the sale of the Company on a
going concern basis and sale of various assets of the Company on an ‘as is where is’ ‘as is what is’ ‘as is how is’, ‘whatever there is’ and without any recourse
basis without an representation, warranty or indemnity by the Company, the Liquidator or any other Person, in accordance with the advice of the SCC under
Regulation 31A of the Liquidation Regulations. Accordingly, certain assets of the Company have been successfully sold in these e-auction rounds, except sale
of the Company on a going concern basis.

Further, the Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 25% March 2025 has extended the liquidation period of the Company tili 11 September 2025.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, but including capital work-in-progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. While computing the written down value of the property, plant and equipment, no scrap value has been attributed to PPE and on the completion
of their useful life, all have been recorded at nil in the books. Freehold land is carried at historical cost. The cost includes the purchase price and expenditure
that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company adjusis exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a
depreciable assel to the cost of the asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the agset. In accordance with Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(“MCA") circular dated August 09, 2012, exchange differences adjusted 1o the cost of tangible assels are total differences, arising on long-term foreign
currency monetary items pertaining 1o the acquisition of a depreciable asset, for the period. In other words, the Company does not differentiate between
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings 10 the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange
differences. 7 P
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Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and de-recognition

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost, net of the residual values, over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Description Useful lives (years)
Factory buildings 30

Other buildings 60

Plant and equipment 3-20
Fumiture and fixtures, office equipments and tools 3-20
Vehicles 3-10

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases, including assets acquired under sale and lease back transactions, is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

An item of property, plant und equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use thereof. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the assets, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The useful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively,

(¢) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, if any.

Development expenditures are recognized as an intangible asset when the Company is able to demonstrate;
e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

how the asset will generate future economic benefits

the availability of resources to complete the asset

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

The Company amortizes intangible assets with finite lives using the straight-line method over the period of licenses or based on the nature and estimated useful
economic life, i.e., six years, whichever is lower.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The amortization period and the method is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down (0'its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific (o the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into aceount, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model s used, These caleulations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fhir value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast ealeulations which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGU to
which the individual assets are allocated, These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CG U’s recoverable amount, A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been,
had no impairment loss been recognized, Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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(¢) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classiticd as an investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, i.e., 60 years.

{nvestment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in
the period of de-tecognition.

0] Sale and lease back transactions

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, the profit or loss, i.e., excess or deficiency of sale proceeds over the carrying amounts is deferred
and amortized over the lease term in proportion to the depreciation of the leased asset. The unamortized portion of the profit is classified under “Other
liabilities” in the financial statements.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, profit or loss is recognized immediately in case the transaction is established at fair value. If the
sale price is below fair value, the loss is recognized immediately except that, if the loss is compensated by future lease payments at below market price, it is
deferred and amortized in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the
profit is deferred and amortized over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.

(g) Leases
Where the Company is the lessee

Lease where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at
the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized
in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly atiributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance
with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs (see note 2.(1)).

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
the ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the lease term of the asset.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee, are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increase.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income
from operating lease is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are classified in the balance sheet based on their
nature.

(h) Inventories

Project materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the materials to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Scrap is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

(i) Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress)
Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress) is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

()  Revenue recognition

The company has adopted AS 115 “Revenue from Customers” effective April 01, 2018, Ind AS 115 supersedes Ind AS 11 “Construction Contracts™. The
Company has applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective method and the cumulative impact of transition to Ind AS 115 has been adjusted against the
Retained ecamings as at April 01, 2018. Accnrdingly,l.j?a’ﬁgures of theprevious year are not restated under Ind AS 115, The application of Ind AS 115 did not
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have any material impact on recognition and measurement principles. However, it results in additional presentation and disclosure requirements for the
Company.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised good or service to a
customer. The revenue is recognized to the extent of transaction price allocated 1o the performance obligation satisfied. Performance obligation is satisfied over
time when the transter of control of asset (2ood of service) to a customer is done over time and in other cases, performance obligation is satisfied at 4 point in
time, For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance
obligation,

Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring good or service to a customer
excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party. Variable considerntion is estimated using the expected value method or most likely amount as
appropriate in a given circumstance. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice and there is no financing component involved in the
trangaction price,

Costs to obtain a contract which are incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are charged-off in Profit & Loss immediately in the period in
which such costs are incurred,

Significant judgments are used in :

1. Determining the revenue to be recognized in case of performance obligation satisfied over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost
incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation.

2. Determining the expected losses, which are recognized in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected total contract cost
as at the reporting date.

A)  Revenue from operations
Revenue for the periods upto June 30, 2017 includes Service Tax/Sales Tax collected from customers. Revenue from July 1, 2017 onwards is
exclusive of goods and service tax (GST) which subsumed Service Tax/Sales Tax. Revenue also includes adjustments made towards liquidated
damages and variation wherever applicable. Escalation and other claims, which are not ascertainable/acknowledged by customers are not taken into
account.

B)  Revenue from construction/project related activity is recognized as follows:

Cost plus contracts: Revenue from cost plus contract is recognized over time and is determined with reference to the extent performance obligations
have been satisfied. The amount of transaction price allocated to the performance obligations satisfied represents the recoverable costs incurred
during the period plus the margin as agreed with the customer.,

Fixed price contricts: Contract revenue is recognized over time to the extent of performance obligation satisfied and control is transferred 1o the
customer. Contract revenue is recognized at allocable transaction price which represents the cost of work performed on the contract plus
proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion method. Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work performed to-date, to
the total estimated contract costs.

Impairment losses (termed as provision for foreseeable losses in the financial statement) is recognized in profit and loss to the extent the camrying amount of the

tract asset exceeds the remaining amount of consideration that the company expects to receive towards remaining performance obligations (after deducting
the costs that refate directly to fulfill such remaining performance obligation). In addition, the Group recognizes impairment loss (termed as provision for
expected credit loss on contract assets in the financial statements) on account of credit risk in respect of a contract asset using expected credit loss model on
similar basis as applicable to trade receivables.

For contracts where the aggregate of contract cost incurred to date plus recognized profits (or minus recognized losses as the case may be) exceeds the progress
billing, the surplus is shown as contract asset and termed as “Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress)”. For contracts where progress billing exceeds the aggregate
of contract cost incurred to-date plus recognized profits (or minus recognized losses, s the case may be), the surplus is shown as “Other linbilities” in the
financial statements. Amounts received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as other liability and termed as “Advances
from customer”, The amount billed on customer for work performed and are unconditionally due for payment i.e. only passage of time is required before
payment falls due, are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables. The amount of retention money lield by the customer pending completion of
performance milestone is disclosed as part of contract asset and is reclassified as trade receivable when it becomes due for payment.

C) Revenue from long term construction contracts executed in unincorporated joint ventures under work sharing amrangements is recognized on the
same basis as similar contracts independently executed by the Company, Revenue from unincorporated joint ventures under profit sharing
amangements is recognized (o the extent of the Company's share in unincorporated joint ventures,

D) Revenue from hire charges is accounted for in accordance with the terms of agreements with the customers.

E) Revenue from management services is recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when the services are rendered.

F)  Rental income arising from operating leases on investment propesties is generally accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss. These are accounted for otherwise where the payments to the lessor are structured to increase
in line with expected general inflation, to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.

G) Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the, expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to thl;__ﬁinﬁﬂjzed cost of a financial liability, When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the
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expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

H) Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders of the
investee approve the dividend.

1)  Export Benefit under the Duty Free Credil Entitlements is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when right to receive license as per terms
of the scheme is established in respect of exports made and there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ullimate collection of the export
proceeds.

(k)  Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

All loan facilities of the Company have been classified as Non-Performing Assets by the respective Scheduled Commercial Bank and Financial Institution. The
Company has not serviced any debt facility under the period of this financial statement other than payment of commission on certain outstanding and live non-
fund-based facilities (generally termed as Bank Guarantee).

() Foreign currencies
i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and presentation currency.

it)  Transaction and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences resulting from the settlement or translation of such transactions are generally recognized in profit or loss, except the following:

a.  Exchange differences are deferred in equity if they are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. They are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income (OCI) and reclassified to statement of profit and loss on disposal of the net investment, as part of gain or loss on disposal.

b. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items (recognized upto 31 March 2016), related to acquisition of a depreciable
asset are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in
OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

iii)  Translation of foreign operations

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the presentation curmrency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

®  Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate of exchange at the reporting date,

o Income and expenses are translated at quarterly average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transaction), and

e All resulting exchange differences are recognized in OCL

On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in profit or loss.

Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed to be zero at the date of transition, i.e. 01 April 2015. Gain or loss on a
subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the date of transition but comprises only translation differences
arising after the transition date.

(m) Financial instruments

Financial Instruments (assets and liabilities) are recognized when the Company becomes a party to a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial lability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial

assets and financial liabilities, other than th:;sl.\wdpslgnuted as fal\va]ue through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
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financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the ncquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss.

a.  Financial assets
(i) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial assets,

®  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

®  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI): The Company has investments which are not held for trading. The Company has elected
an irrevocable option to present the subsequent changes in fair values of such investments in other comprehensive income. Amounts recognized in OCI
are not subsequently reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

®  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): FVTPL is a residual categary for financial assets in the nature of debt instruments, Financial assets
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments, if any, entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109,

(ii) Impairment of flnancial assets

The Company applies Ind AS 109 for recognizing impajrment losses using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. Impairment is recognized for all financial

assets subsequent to initial recognition, other than financial assets in FVTPL category. The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in statement of

profit and loss.

(ill) De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the same are transferred.

b.  Financial liabilities

() Subsequent measurement

There are two measurement categories into which the Company classifies its financial liabilities.

®  Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently. measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recopnised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process. Amortised cost is ealeulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

®*  Financial liabilities at FYTPL: Financial liabilities are classified as FVTPL when the financial linbilities are held for trading or are designated as
FVTPL on initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term,
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments, Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are reconised in the profit or loss.

(i) De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

¢ Offsetting financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(n)  Fair value measurement

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumption that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Where fair value is based on quoted prices from active market.
Level 2— Where fair value is based on significant direct or indirect observable market inputs,
Level 3 — Where fair value is based on one or more significant input that js oot based on observable market data.
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lFor assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfer is required between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) (a) on the
date of the event or change in circumstances or (b) at the end of each reporting period.

(0) Employce benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits, that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are recognized up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid on settlement
of such liabilities. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for eamed and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at
least twelve months after the reporting period, regardiess of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
s  Defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, and
. Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and pension fund

Gratuity obligations

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees employed in India. The Company has obtained group gratuity scheme policies from Life
Insurance Corporation of India and ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited to cover the gratuity liability of these employees. The difference in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period is recognized as a liability or asset, as the case
may be, in the balance sheet. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in the employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur,
directly in OCI.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as
past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution to statutory provident fund and pension funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee benefits in overseas locations

In overseas branches and unincorporated joint venture operation, provision for retirement and other employee benefits are recognized as prescribed in the local
Iabour laws of the respective country, for the accumulated period of service at the end of the financial year.

(p) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current income tax and deferred tax. The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable
income, based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction where the Company operates, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributed to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generate taxable income.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OCI or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is recognized in OCI or directly in equity, respectively.

(@  Segment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

(r)  Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for the events such as bonus issue, share split or otherwise that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(s)  Share-based payments

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model. The fair value of the options granted is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the option granted:

including any market performance conditions (e.g., the Company’s share price),

¢ excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g., profitability, sales growth targets and remaining and employee
of the entity over a specified time period), and

®  including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g., the requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period; the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected 1o vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognizes the impact of the revision (o original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of cash flow statement, comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Bank overdraft are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in balance sheet.,

(u) Dividends

The Company recognized a liability for the amount of any dividend declared when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders.

(v)  Contingent liablities

resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, A disclosure is made for o contingent liability when there isa: -

a) possible obligation, the existence of which will be confirmed by the occurrence/non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events, not fully with in the
control of the Company;

b)  present obligation, where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;

¢)  present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot be made.

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
a)  estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
b)  uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;

¢) funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies; and
d)  other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they ire consjdered material and relevant in the opinion of management.
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(w) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is expected to be material, provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to seltle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

(x)  Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents and the management considers
this to be the project period.

(y) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Division Il of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has elected to present eamings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. In its measurement, the
Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

(z) Current and Non-Current Classification:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/Non-Current classification.
An Asset is treated as Current when it is —

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Thete is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
(aa) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year in which these are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as curmrent liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3. (a) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future period.

Critical estimates and judgments
In applying the accounting policies, following are the items/ areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity and which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions tuning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may
have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair valuation of unlisted securities:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using internationally accepted valuation principles. The inputs to
these valuations are taken from observable markets wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as discount rates, liquidity risk, credit risk, eaming growth factors and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Revenue recognition:

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method (POCM) in accounting for its long term construction contracts. Use of POCM requires the Company
to estimate the total cost to complete a contract. Changes in the factors underlying the estimation of the total contract cost could affect the amount of revenue
recognized.

Impairment of financial assets:
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The Company basis the impairment provisions for financial assets on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses Jjudgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations, based on the Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each Teporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

Non-financial assels are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The
recoverable amount is sensitive to inputs like discount rate, expected future cash-inflows and growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined benefit plan temployee benefits):

The cost of defined benefit gratity plan and other employee benefits and the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increase and montality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

Taxes:

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized, Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company neither has any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could support the recognition of unused tax losses
and unabsorbed depreciation ns deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has accounted for deferred tax assets on temporary differences, including
unabsorbed depreciation and business losses, for which it is reasonably certain that future taxable income would be generated.

(b) Recent accounting pronouncements:

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Ind AS 116 — Leases and certain amendment to existing Ind AS. These amendments
shall be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2019.

Issues of Ind AS 116 — Leases

Ind AS 116 will replace existing leasing standard i.e. Ind AS 17 and related interpretations. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with non-cancellable period of more than twelve months except for low value assets. Ind AS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirement in Ind AS 17,

Amendment to existing standard
The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards

(i) Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
(i) Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations

(iii) Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments

(iv) Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements

(v) Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

(vi} Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits

(vii) Ind AS 23 — Borrowing Costs

(viii) Ind AS 28 - Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

Applications of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Land Buildings Plant and Furniture Office Tools Vehicles Total
cquipment __ and fixtures _equipment

Gross carrying amount
At March 31, 2017 100.11 88.12 1,585.59 19.08 12.03 13.21 61.40 1,879.54
Additions - 6.26 15.17 0.01 0.00 - - 2145
Disposals(-) - - 142.60 0.51 0.49 0.12 1.72 145.43
Other adjustments

Exchange differences - B - - - - = -

Currency translation - - 12.00 0.39 0.08 - 243 14.90
At March 31, 2018 100,11 94.39 1,470.17 18.97 11.63 13.09 62.11 1,770.45
Additions - 0.13 7.71 - - - - 7.83
Disposals(-) - - 194.63 10.42 3.24 3.08 39.74 251.11
Other adjustments

Exchange differences - - - - - - - -

Currency translation - - 7.87 0.17 0.08 - 1.46 9.58
At March 31, 2019 100.11 94,52 1,291.11 8.72 8.47 10.01 23.83 1,536.75
Accumulated depreciation
At March 31,2017 - 5182, 1,072.80 17.83 11.83 7.94 57.76 1,173.48
Charge for the year - 271 111.70 0.78 0.10 0.65 1.95 117.90
Disposals(-) - - 132.28 0.32 0.49 0.12 1.72 134.93
Other adjustments

Currency translation - - 11.95 0.39 0.08 - 241 14.84
At March 31, 2018 - 8.03 1,064.18 18.68 11,53 8.47 60.41 1,171,29
Charge for the year - 2.83 85.48 0.26 0.04 0.49 0.35 89.45
Disposals(-) - - 188.80 10.42 3.24 3.08 38.61 244.14
Other adjustments

Currency translation - - 7.38 0.17 0.08 - 1.46 9.10
At March 31, 2019 - 10.86 968,24 8.70 8.41 5.88 23.61 1,025.69
Net block
At March 31, 2018 100.11 #6.36 405.99 0.30 0.10 4.62 1.71 599.16
At March 31, 2019 100.11 83.66 322.87 0,02 0.06 4,13 0.22 511.06

1. The Company has elected to adjust exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items, pertaining to
acquisition of a depreciable asset, to the cost of such asset. Accordingly, during the current year, foreign exchange loss of INR 5.62 Cr (Previous year:
foreign exchange loss of INR 0.45 Cr) has been adjusted in the gross block of plant and equipment.

2. Gross block of plant and equipment includes equipment of cost INR 66.47 Cr (Previous year: INR 68.34 Cr) taken on finance lease. Accumulated
depreciation thereon is INR 66.47 Cr (Previous year: INR 68.34 Cr).

For assets pledged as security, refer notes 12(a) and 12(b) and for capital commitments refer note 28. The Company is in liquidation with effect from 27
May 2022 and as per section 52(1)(a), secured creditors have relinquished their security interest to the liquidation estate and agreed to receive proceeds

from the sale of assets in the manner specified in section 53 of IBC, 2016. Refer www.punjlloydgroup.com for updated list of stakeholders.

3. Refer to Note no. 37 Subsequent Events sale of Fixed Assets.

4.  Fair Value determination was made as on 8% March 2019, being CIRP commencement date.

=



Punj Llovd Limited

m i TR ; ;
(el geiounts in INR Crares, untess pilyerise shepi wel)

Notes 1o financial statements for the year ended Mareh 38, 2019

S. Investment properties

March 31,2019 Murch 31, 2018
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 99.20 98.76
Additions = 0.44
Closing gross carrying amount 99.20 99.20
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 8.99 7.34
Charge for the year 1.65 1.65
(.‘Iusing accumulated depreciation 10.64 8,99
Net carrying amount 88.56 90,20
Amounts recognized in profit or loss Jor investment properties:
Refer to Note 4 (4) above.

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Rental income 7.20 6.62
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income (0.08) (0.07)
Direct operating expenses from property that did not generated rental income (0.06) (0.66)
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 7.06 5.89
Depreciation (1.65) (1.65)
Profit from investment properties 5.41 4.23

There is no contractual obligation for repairs, maintenance or enhancements which has not been recognized as liability,

Leasing arrangements

The Company has leased its investment property to tenants on long-term operating lease, with rentals payable monthly. The non-cancellable period of lease is §
years and includes an escalation clause of 15% after three years. Minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases of investment

properties are as follows:

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Within one year 7.61 6.62
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 32.60 9.70
Later than five vears 24 .41 -
Fair value
_March31,2019_ March 31,2018
Investment properties 107.20 102.27
Fair value determination as made as on 8" March 2019, being CIRP commencement date. Also refer Note 37,
6. Intangible assets (Software)
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 6.85 3.92
Additions - 294
Disposals(-) 3.92 0.01
Other adjustments
Currency translation 0.00 0.00
Closing gross carrying amount 2.93 6.85
Accumulated amortization
Opening accumulated amortization 322 2.09
Charge for the year 0.81 1.14
Disposals(-) 3.92 0.01
Other adjustments
Currency translation 0.00 0.00
Closing accumulated amortization .11 3.22
Impairment Loss on Intangible asset 282 -
Net block - 3.63

Fair value determination was made as on 8" March 2019, being CIRP comt ’c::mentl-&lw.'
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Financial assets

7(a) Investments

As at

March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

Fair valued through Other Comprehensive Income

Trade investments

Investment in subsidiaries

Punj Lloyd International Limited 2
100,000 (March 31, 2018: 100,000)

equity shares of USD 1 each fully paid up.

Punj Lloyd Industries Limited 1.28
11,500,195 (March 31, 2018: 11,500,195)
equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Atna Investments Limited 0.56
515,221 (March 31, 2018: 515,221)
equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up.

Punj Lloyd Pte Limited =
573,346 (March 31, 2018: 573,346)
equity share of SGD 1 fully paid up.

PL Engineering Limited -
5,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 5,000,000)
equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up.

Punj Lloyd Aviation Limited -
53,998,710 (March 31, 2018: 53,998,710)
equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up.

Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited -
22,650,000 (March 31, 2018: 22,650,000)

equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up.

Of the above, 6,795,000 (March 31, 2018: 6,795,000)

equity shares are pledged with bank.

Punj Lloyd Upstream Limited -
36,397,350 (March 31, 2018: 36,397,350)
equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up.

Sembawang Infrastructure (India) Private Limited -
9,575,000 (March 31, 2018: 9,575,000)
equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up.

Indtech Global Systems Limited 1.06
82,418 (March 31, 2018: 82,418)
equity shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up.

Yagyi Kalewa Highway Limited (formly Shitul Overseas Placement and Logistics Limited)
102,000 (March 31, 2018: 102,000) -
equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Spectra Punj Lioyd Limited -
5,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 5,000,000)
equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up.

Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Pte Limited -
835,625 (March 31, 2018: 835,625)

equity shares of SGD 1 each fully paid up.

Above equity shares are encumbered vide a non-disposal undertaking,

PT Punj Lloyd Indonesia =
7,805 (March 31, 2018: 7,805)
equity shares of USD 500 each fully paid up.

Investment in Associates
1.98
Domus Lloyd Contracting Limited
(formerly known as Punj Lloyd Construction Contracting Company Limited
51,000 (March 31, 2018: 51,000) P

2571

0.67

5.28

26.13

3.33

1.06

0.08

346.09

55.56
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equity shares of SAR 20 each fully paid up.

PLN Construction Limited 1.73
2,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 2,000,000)
equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Investment in joint ventures
Ramprastha Punj Lloyd Developers Private Limited -
5,000 (March 31, 2018: 5,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Investment in others

GMR Hyderabad Vijaywada Expressways Private Limited =
500,000 (March 31, 2018: 500,000)

equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Hazaribagh Ranchi Expressway Limited 0.01
13,100 (March 31, 2018: 13,100)
equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Kaefer Private Limited e
74,520 (March 31, 2018: 74,520)
equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up.

Ungquoted other instruments
Investment in subsidiary

Punj Lloyd Pte Limited =
450,000 (March 31, 2018: 450,000) redeemable convertible preference share of SGD 100 each and

1,400,000 (March 31, 2018: 1,400,000) redeemable convertible preference share A of SGD 100 each fully

paid up

Punj Lloyd Kazakhstan LLP -
KZT 1,107,977,200 (March 31, 2018: 1,107,977,200) being 100% of the amount of Charter Capital,

Non-trade
Unquoted equity instruments

Investment in others
Arooshi Enterprises Private Limited i
598,500 (March 31, 2018: 598,500) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Quoted equity instruments
Investment in others
Reliance Naval and Engineering Limited (formerly Reliance Defence and Engineering Limited) 0.00
1,000 (March 31, 2018: 1,000)

equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

0.01

0,00

6.62

Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 0.00

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.00

7(b) Loans

Non-current
As at

Current

As at

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31,
2019

March 31,
2018

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits - 5.72
Loan to subsidiaries 2 5
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Loan to subsidiaries - =
Less: Allowance for doubtful loans ° e

4.08
51.82

298.74
(298.74)

5.81
289.64

86.87

(86.87)

55.90

295.45

Refer Note 37. Aenidar g s
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7(c) Trade receivables

March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables 1,509.33 1,803.38
Receivables from related parties 973.36 908.61
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1.977.36) (180.73)
Total receivables 505.33 2,591.26
Retention money included in total receivables 205.0 440.6
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Trade receivable from related parties 973.36 908.61
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (973.36) (89.07)
Net receivable 0.00 819,54
Ageing
Less than 6 months 328.86
More than 6 months 17647
Realisation of debtors after a period of twelve months has not been classified as non-current assets.
7 (d) Cash and cash equivalents
As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Balances with banks:

On current accounts # (also refer Note No. 37) 56.48 144.95

On EEFC account 5.42 69.83

Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 0.19 4.56
Cash on hand 1.24 0.94

63.33 220.28

# Balance with banks in unpaid dividend accounts 0.07 0.15

Includes an amount of INR 10.49 and INR 0.19 being balances in Current Account and Deposits respectively, in UAE, which accounts has been frozen as
ordered by the local courts in view of legal cases filed by local vendors against their overdues. However no amount has been appropriated yet.

The bank balance of INR 859,248 in Yemen Branch and INR 27,502 in Dubai Branch has been provided for due to loss of control.

7(e) Other bank balances

Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, March 31,
2019 2018

Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months - - 1.93 0.18
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months = " - -
Margin money deposit - - 149.57 177.70

! - 151,50 177.88
7(f) Other financial assets

Current
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to related parties 327 426.26
Interest receivable 6.55 23.77
Insurance claim receivable - -
Receivables against sale of investments - -
Assets held for disposal - 3.86
Other receivable - -
Unsecured, considered doubiful
Advanees to related parties 425.83 22,62
Interest receivable from related parties 15.76 24.04
Less: Allownnce for doubtful advances/receivable (441.59) (46.66)
9.82 453.89
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7. Deferred tax (net)

As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Deferred tax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year but 20.70 20.53
allowable for tax purposes on payment basis
Others (3,086.72) 31.86
Unabsorbed tax losses 3,449.91 1,404.32
Gross deferred tax assets 383.89 1,456.71
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipments, investment property & intangible assets 19.42 34.41
Financial assets carried at fair value through OCI 364.47 223.30
Gross deferred tax liability 383.80 257.71
—
Net Deferred tax asset - 1,199.00

Since the Company is in liquidation, it has become very less probable that any future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax assets to be recovered
and the same has been unrecognized during the year.

8. Other assets

Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31,2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances - 0.00 - -
Advances other than capital advances
Prepayments to vendors for supply of goods/ services - - 55.47 313.54
Prepaid expenses 441 4.63 - 2.78
Others
GST / Value added tax / sales tax recoverable (net) 105.85 175.58 - E
Balances with statutory/ govemment authorities - - - 11.60
110.26 180.21 55.47 327.92
9. Inventories
As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Project materials 66.15 117.05
66.15 117.05

The company is in liquidation with effect from 270 May 2022 and as per section 52(1)(a), secured creditors have relinquished their security interest to the
liquidation estate and agreed to receive proceeds from the sale of assets in the manner specified in section 53 of IBC, 2016. Refer www.punjlloydgroup,com for
updated list of stakeholders,

10. Equity share capital

As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Authorized share capital
450,000,000 (March 31, 2018: 450,000,000)
equity shares of Rs. 2 par value each 90.00 90.00
10,000,000 (March 31, 2018; 10,000,000)
preference shares of Rs. 10 par value each 10.00 . 10.00
100.00 100.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares of Rs. 2 par value 67.12 67.12
67.12 67.12
(a) Reconclliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Nos Amount Nos Amount
At the beginning of the year 33,55,95,745 67,12 33,42,25,745 66.85
Exercise of Employee Stock Options - - 13,70,000 0.27
Outstanding as at the end of the year 33.55,95.745 67.12 33,55,95,745 67,12

[!"::';/New Da\‘“ .‘I 1 (= \ I' (VJ
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(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts as per section 53 of IBC, 2016. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares in the Company

Spectra Punj Finance Private

Shareholder Name: LIC of India Cawdor Enterprises Limited * Limited *

Nos. % holding Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
As at March 31, 2018 1,83,52,701 5.47% 7,56,91,430 22.55 2,04,85,361 6.10
As at March 31, 2019 1,76,95,664 527% - - - -

* Shareholding has been reduced to less than 5% during the year.

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders’/members, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of
shares.

(d) Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option plan (ESOP) of the Company, please refer note 24.

() Over the period of five years immediately proceeding March 31, 2019, neither any bonus shares were issued nor any shares were allotted for
consideration other than cash. Further, no shares were bought back during the said period.

12. Financial liabilities

12 (a) Non-current borrowings

Non-current portion Current maturities
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Debentures (secured)
10.50% debentures redeemable at par at the end of 5 years from the deemed - - 300.00 300.00

date of allotment, i.e., October 15, 2010.

Secured by first charge on Flat No. 201, Satyam Apartment, Saru Section Road,
Jamnagar, Gujarat, India and subservient charge on the moveable tangible and
current assets of the Company.

12.00% debentures redeemable at par in ten equal half-yearly instaliments - - 135.00 135.00
beginning at the end of 5 years from the date of allotment, i.c., January 02,

2009.

Secured by first pari passu charge on the moveable tangible assets of the project

division of the Company and further secured by exclusive charge on the Flat

No. 202, Satyam Apartment, Saru Section Road, Jamnagar, Gujarat, India.

Term loans
Indiap rupee loan from banks (secured)

Loan carrying rate of interest of 12.75% (March 31, 2018: 12.75%) repayable - - 168.24 168.24
in 17 equal quarterly installments beginning at the end of 12 months from the

date of first disbursement.

Secured by way of first charge on the corporate offices of the Company, at Plot

No. 78 & 95, and Medicity building situated at Sector 32 and 38 respectively at

Gurgaon, Haryana, India. Further secured by way of first pari passu charge on

the movable tangible assets of the project division of the Company (upto 0.5

times of loan outstanding).

Loans carrying weighted average rate of interest of 10.58% (March 31, 2018: - 429.82 1,146.25 723.11
10.80%) repayable in 12 quarterly installments beginning at the end of 2 years

from the date of first disbursement.

Secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on the existing and future

current assets, except receivables of foreign projects financed by foreign

lenders, of the Company and first ranking pari-passu charge on the existing and

future movable and immovable tangible assets of the Company, except those

specifically charged to others lenders of Company. Collaterally secured by

personal guarantee of chairman and managing director. -Further secured by

. - N\
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pledge of 17,516,100 equity shares of Air Works India (Engineering) Private
Limited; first pari passu charge on the land & building at Malanpur (M.P);
pledge of 6,795,000 shares of Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited and second
charge on 73,004,316 shares of Company held by two promoter group
companies, pledged to IFCI Limited,

Loan carrying rate of interest of 5.77% (March 31, 2017: 5.77%) repayable in
17 equal half yearly installments, beginning at the end of 4 years from the date
of ils origination,
Secured by first pari passu charge on the moveable tangible assets of the project
division of the Company,

Loans cairying weighted average rate of interest of 12.26% (March 31, 2018:
12.25%), repayable in 47 to 57 monthly installments beginning at the end of 12
months from the date of first disbursement.

Secured by first and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on certain
specific equipments financed through the loan.

Loan camying rate of interest of 13.60% (March 31, 2017: 13.60%) repayable
in 16 quarterly installments beginning at the end of 12 months from the date of
first disbursement.

Secured by way of first pari passu charge on existing and future moveable
tangible assets of the project division of the Company.

Loan camrying rate of interest of 13.00% (March 31, 2017: 13.00%) repayable
in 36 monthly installments starting from October 2016.

Secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on entire current assets of the
Company, except receivables exclusively charged to other lenders of the
Company. First ranking pari-passu charge on movable and immovable tangible
assets of the Company, both present and future, excepl those specifically
charged to other lenders of Company,

Loan camying rate of interest of 15% (March 31, 2018: 14.60%) repayable in
12 equal quarterly installments afier the moratorium period of 2 years from the
date of dishursement,

Secured by way of first pari passu charge on the moveable tangible assets of the
project division of the Company and subservient charge on the corporate offices
of the Company, at Plot No. 78 & 95, and Medicity building situated at Sector
32 and 38 respectively at Gurgaon, Haryana, India,

Loan carrying rate of interest of 10.91% (March 31, 2017: 10.91%) repayable
in 12 quarterly installments beginning at the end of 2 years from the date of first
disbursement.

Secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on the existing and future
current assels, except receivables of foreign projects financed by foreign
lenders, of the Company and first ranking pari-passu charge on the existing and
future movable and immovable tangible assets of the Company, except those
specifically charged to others lenders of Company, Collaterally secured by
personal guarantee of chairman and managing director, Further secured by
pledge of 17,516,100 equity shares of Air Works India (Engineering) Private
Limited; first pari passu charge on the land & building at Malanpur (M.P);
pledge of 6,795,000 shares of Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited and second
charge on 73,004,316 shares of Company held by two promoter group
companies, pledged to IFCI Limited.

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings
Amount disclosed under the head “Other financial liabilities” (refer note 12(c))
Net amount

12 (b) Current borrowings

Secured
Working capital loan repayable on demand

Loans camrying weighted average rate of interest of 13.50% (March 31, 2018: 12.75%).
Secured by way of first charge on pari passu basis on current assets (excluding receivables of the

projects financed by the other banks) and second charge on pari passu basis on moveable tang

assets of the project division of the Company,

b4

- 15.37 97.67 76.67

10.69 14.28 6.06
- 2.00 11.16 9.25
- 13.96 53.96 40.50
- - 8.21 66.67
- 10.30 21.87 11.78
- 482.14 1,956.63 1,537.28
- 482.14 1,956.63 1,537.28
- - (1.956.63) (1,537.28)
- 482.14 = =

As at
_March 31.2019 March 31,2018
475.93 181.65

ible.
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Loans carrying rate of interest of 12.50% (March 31, 2018: 12.50%).

Secured by way of exclusive charge on the receivables of the specific projects financed, first pari
passu charge on the current assets of the project division (excluding receivables of the projects
financed by the other banks), pari passu second charge on the movable tangible assets of the project
division of the Company.

Loans carrying weighted average rate of interest of 10.86% (March 31, 2017: 11.38%).

Secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on existing and future current assets of the
Company, except receivables of foreign projects financed by foreign lenders. First ranking pari-
passu charge on movable and immovable tangible assets of the Company, both present and future,
except those specifically charged to other lenders.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 3 months LIBOR + 6% (March 31, 2018: 3 months LIBOR + 6%).
Secured by way of pari passu charge on the receivables financed.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 5.54% (March 31, 2018: 5.54%).
Secured by way of pari passu charge on the receivables financed.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 3 Months FGB EIBOR + 2.5% (March 31, 2018; 3 Months FGB
EIBOR + 2.5%).
Secured by way of charge on the receivables and assets of the project financed.

Unsecured
Buyer's line of credit from banks carried rate of interest of NIL (April 01, 2018: 2.18%).
Cash credit from a bank carried rate of interest of 3 months EIBOR + 2.5%. i

28.71

5,564.85

141.17

55.13

70.55

26.93

4,229.46

125.11

55.86

0.22

18.93

6.336.34

4,638.16

The above amount includes:
Secured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings

6,336.34

4,619.23
18,93

6,336.34

4,638.16

12(c) Other financial liabilities

March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

Current maturities of long term borrowings (note 12(a)) 1,956.63 1,537.28
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 112.43
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1,612.07 551.81
Book overdraft - 6.54
Unpaid dividends # 0.07 0.15
Due to subsidiaries 55.96 59.42
Security deposits 702 T2

3,632.45 2,275.35

# There is no amount currently due and outstanding which is to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

- Claims submitted in the insolvency process by the banks and the financial institutions have been reconciled with the books of accounts of the company and
any penal interest/other charges as claimed by the financial creditors have been charged to the profit and loss account.

- The company is in liquidation with effect from 27" May 2022 and as per section 52(1)(a), secured creditors have relinquished their security interest to the
liquidation estate and agreed to receive proceeds from the sale of assets in the manner specified in section 53 of IBC, 2016. Refer www.punjlloydgroup.com

for updated list of stakeholders.

- Bank Guarantees amounting to Rs. 1,124.26 crores which have been encashed after the year end, has been added to the liability with a corresponding impact

in profit and loss account.

13. Provisions

Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 23) 0.56 3.48 - -
Provision for compensated absences 2.01 11.15 12.05
0.56 5.49 11.15 12.05
Other provisions
Provision for foreseeable losses - - 66.98 48.89
Provision for Loss on sale of fixed assets - - 107.88 =
- - 174.86 48.89
0.56 5.49 186.01 60,94

i
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Consequent upon order of liquidation of a company dated 27th May 2022, Gratuity and other staff benefits had become due
workers/employees concemed and the non-current liability of INR 0.56 crores have become current liability for the company.

and payable to the

14. Other liabilities

Current
As at

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

VAT tax payable 253.82 -
Tax deducted at source payable 7.50 17.77
Advance billing 299.34 174.82
Advances from customers 523.17 1,227.06
Others 55.30 7.81
1.139.13 1,427.46

- The claims submitted by the operational creditors as on the insolvency commencement date i.e. 8%
variance with the amounts appearing in the books of accounts of the company in respect of the same. N
made in respect of excess/short or non-receipt of claims from operational creditors.

15. Revenue from operations

March 2019 and admitted by the IRP/RP, may be at
0 accounting impact in the books of accounts has been

Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Contract revenue 1,612.60 3.826.84
Sale of traded goods 47.15 132.28
Other operating revenue
Hire charges 0.07 14.65
Management services 15.76 85.72
1,675.58 4,059.49
16. other income
Year ended
March 31,2010 March 31,2018
Scrap sales 15.63 15.38
Insurance claims - 30.98
Unspent liabilities and provisions written back 0.65 121.58
Exchange differences (net) 226.83 138.13
Interest income on
Bank deposits 7.79 3.16
Others 1.04 21.66
Net gain on sale of long-term investments - 0.48
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments (net) - 2.52
Rental income from investment property 7.20 6.62
Others 20,35 12.90
279.49 353.41
17. Employee benefit expense
Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 400.24 322.60
Contribution to provident funds 20.56 14.26
Gratuity expense (also refer note 23) 1.68 1.85
Compensated absences 4.75 443
Staff welfare expenses 22.85 23.50
450,08 366.64

By
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18. other expenses

Year ended

Mﬂ_wh3l.2019 March 31,2018
Contractor charges 2,123.19 918.92
Site expenses 67.10 57.97
Diesel and fuel 119.79 81.19

Repair and maintenance
Buildings 0.03 0.60
Plant and equipments 2.04 227
Others 0.48 1.76
Rent 13.85 31.69
Freight and cartage 84.64 62.39
Hire charges 136.24 61.68
Rates and taxes 56.01 62.34
Insurance 11.78 23.93
Travelling and conveyance 17.22 29.86
Payment to auditors (refer below) 0.58 0.65
Consultancy and professional 67.93 95.07
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments (net) 108.26 -
Impairment of Intangible asset 2.88 -
CSR expenditure (also refer note 38(f)) - 0.01
Provision for foreseeable losses on onerous contract 21.84 -
Miscellaneous 30.37 15.75
2.864.23 1,446.08

Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
As auditors:

Audit fee 0.25 0.32
Limited reviews 0.30 0.30
Certification 0.02 0.02
Reimbursement of expenses 0.01 0.01
0.58 0.65

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments (net) includes sum of Rs. 108.26 crores relating to the same of property, plant and equipment made after the

balance sheet date.

19. Depreciation and amortization expense

Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 89.45 117.90
Depreciation on investment properties 1.65 1.65
Amortisation of intangible assets 0.81 1.14
91.91 120.70
20. Finance costs
Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Interest 1,300.56 924.50
Bank charges 30.53 51.88
1,331.09 976.38
21. Income tax expenses
2018-19 2017-18
(a) Income Tax expense
Current Tax 4.05 (0.08)
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods = -
Deferred Tax 1,199.69 (1,199.00)
Total tax expense 1,203.74 (1,199.08)

(7}
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(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:

Loss before tax (11,284.89) (881.72)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 30.90% (Previous year - 30.90%) (3,487.03) (272.45)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Provisions for diminution in value of Investments - =
Tax losses of provision for unforeseeable losses & credit losses 480.97 5.75
Overseas tax 4.05 (0.08)
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized 3,006.75 247.53
Deferred tax recognised 1,199.00 (1,199.00)
Tax relating to earlier years - -
Other items - 19.17
Total tax expense 1,203.74 (1,199.08)
22. Earnings per share (EPS)
2018-19 2017-18
Net profit/(loss) after tax atiributable to equity share holders (12,488.63) 317.36
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 33,55,95,745 33,53,78,211
Basic EPS (Rs.) (372.13) 9.46

Adjustment for calculation of diluted EPS on account of stock options
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS (Nos.) *
Diluted EPS

Nominal value per equity share (Rs,)

33,55,95,745
(372.13)
2.00

33,57,40,819
9.45
2.00

* As the Company has incurred loss during the current year, dilutive effect of stock options on weighted average number of equity shares would have an anti-

dilutive impact and hence, not considered.

23. Post-employment benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in Indin as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. All permanent employees who are in continuous service

for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the em

ployee’s last drawn basic salary per month

computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes

contribution to recognized funds (in form of insurance palicies) in India.

(a) The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss, the funded status and the amounts

recognized in the balance sheet for the plan.

Present value of

Fair value of plan

obligations assets Net amount
_April 01, 2018 11.45 (7.97) 348
Current service cost 1.48 - 1.48
Interest expenses/(income) 082 (0.61) 0.21
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 2.29 (0.61) 1.68
Remeasurements:
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.21) - 0.21)
- Due to experience adjustments 0.73 - 0.73
- Due to change in demographic assumptions - (0.40) (0.40)
- Retum on assets (excluding interest income) - 022 0.22
Total amount recognised in OCI 0.52 (0.18) 0.34
Benefits payments (4.00) 4.00 -
LEmployer contributions 2 (4.26) (4.26)

March 31, 2019

53 __ (8.66)

36,

Present value of

Fair value of plan

obligations nssets Net amount
April 01, 2017 12.63 (8.57) 4,06
Current service cost 1.66 . 1.66
Interest expenses/(income) 0.81 (0.63) 0.18
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 2.47 (0.63) 1.84
Remeasurements:
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.49 - 0.49
- Due to experience adjustments 2.87 B 2.87
- Retumn on assets (excluding interest income - (247) (2.47)
Total amount recognised in OCI 336 (2.47) .89
Benefits payments (0.30) 0.30 -
Employer contributions - (1.54) (1.54)
March 31,2018 11.44 (7.97) 3.47

b
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The net liability disclosed above entirely relates to the funded gratuity plans. 100% plan assets are allocated in insurance company products portfolio. The
Company expects to contribute INR 2.36 Cr (Previous year: INR 1.50 Cr) to gratuity fund in the next year.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Discount rate 6.80% 7.53%

Expected rate of retun on assels 6.80% 7.53%

Salary incrense rate 5.50% 5.50%

_ Employee tumover

upto age 30 years 15.00% 15.00%

31-44 years 10.00% 10.00%

45 and above 5.00% 5.00%

Retirement age (in years) 60 60
Mortality rtes Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation
is to be settled.

Sensitivity analysis

Assumption Change in assumption Tmpact on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate Increase by 50 basis points Decrease by 7.30%

Decrease by 50 basis points Increase by 7.30%
Salary increase rate Increase by 50 basis points Increase by 6.00%

Decrease by 50 basis points Decrease by 5.00%

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which is the risk of change in the interest rates due to
market volatility. A decrease therein will increase plan liabilities. Apart from the interest rate,the other significant risks associated with defined benefit plans
are inflation risk, economic environment and regulatory changes.

The Company manages its investment positions to achieve long-term investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. The
designated trust actively monitors how the duration and expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the employee
benefit obligations. The Company has not changed its processes to manage its risks from previous periods.

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is as follows:

Period Amount
Within one year 2.50
Between 1-2 years 2.01
Between 2-5 years 5.34
Over 5 years 527

(b) The company recognizes the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial valuation. The expenses recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liability at thé beginning and at the end of the year :

2018-2019 2017-2018
At the beginning of the period 12.82 16.08
Current service cost 3.90 353
Interest expenses/(income) 0.84 0.90
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 4.75 4.43
Remeasurements:
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.22) 0.49
- Due to experience adjustments 3.11 3.94
- Return on assets (excluding interest income) - -
Total amount recognised in OCI 2.89 4.43
Benefits payments (3.52) (2.02)
Employer contributions - -
At the end of the period - . 11.15 . 14.06

b
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Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Résolution professional has decided to dismantle the
were lying against each employees as of December 3 1, 2021 has been paid over
impact on account of the same, hence no adjustments is being made in the

24. Employee stock option plans (ESOP)

practice of Leave encashment and whatever leave balances
a period of three months ended March 31, 2022. There are no material
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019,

The Company provides various share based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31 , 2019, the relevant details of the schemes are

as follows:

ESOP 2005

ESOP 2006

Date of Board of Directors approval

September 05, 2005 and February 12, 2016

_June 27, 2006 and February 12, 2016

Date of Remuneration Committee approval

Various dates subsequent to June 27, 2006

Various dates subsequent (o September 05, 2005

Date of Sharcholder’s approval September 29, 2005 and April 3, 2006 September 22, 2006
Number of options 4,000,000 5,000,000

Method of settlement

Equity

Vesting period (for fresh grant)

Exercise period (for fresh grany)

One year from the date of grant

Five years from the date of vesting or one year from the date of separation from service, whichever is

eurlier
Vesting condition Employee should be in service
The details of activities under ESOP 2005 have been summarized below:
Number of options Weighted average exervise price (Rs,
2018-2019 2017-2018 2018-2019 2017-2018
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 620,000 770,000 2,00 2,00
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - 150,000 200 2.00
Expired during the year 220,000 - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 400,000 620,000 2.00 2.00
Exercisable at the end of the year 400,000 _620,000 2.00 2,00
The details of activities under ESOP 20006 have been summarized below:
Number of options Weighted average exercise price (Rs,
2018-2019 2017-201R 2018-2019 2017-2018
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 200,000 2.00 2.00
Granted during the year - - R -
Exervised during the year - 200.000 2.0 2.00

[ (=4

Expired during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

Exercisable at the end of the year

No options were granted during the year ended March 31, 2019. The fair value at the
Rs. 15

grant date of options granted during the year ended March 31 , 2016 was

.72, which was determined using the Black Scholes Model. The Model took into account the following inputs for computing the fair value:

Particulars

Dividend yield (%)

41.67

Expected volatility (%) [computed based on past two vears historical share price]

Risk-free interest rate (%) 6.90
Share price (Rs.) 2.40
Exercise price (Rs. 2.00
Expected life of options granted (in months) 2.00

Total expenses arising from share based payments transactions recognized in profit & loss as part of employee benefit expense is Nil (previous year Rs. NIL),

25. Segment information

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on 'Operating Segments', the Com;
Engineering, procurement and construction services. Accordingly the segment disclosure

26. Interest in other entities

(a) Subsidiaries

The Company’s interest and share in subsidiaries as i
equals the voting rights held by the Company, directly or indirectly, and the . ?d’ﬁlry of incin;Po:‘atiun or registration is also their

at March 31, 2019 are et ol

ff’- - \'ﬂ\ U] |
e | pew V¢ Ji
¢ LAY

pany's business activity falls within a single operating segment viz.
requirements of Ind AS 108 are not applicable.

-below, Unless otherwise stated, the proportion of ownership interests held
! principal place of business.



Pung Llovd Binited
Notes to financial statenients for the yvear ended March 31, 2019

(At aniounis B INR Crores witosy otherwlse siaied)

X coTythy o Ownership as at
Name of entity incorporation March March
31,2019 | 31,2018
Subsidiaries % %
Spectra Punj Lloyd Limited India 100 100
Punj Lloyd Industries Limited India 99.99 99,99
Atna Investments Limited India 100 100
Punj Lloyd International Limited * lllel‘:r]\Sdhs VirEt 100 100
Punj Lloyd Kazakhstan, LLP * Kazakhstan 100 100
Punj Lloyd Pte. Limited $ Singapore 100 100
PL Engineering Limited India 80.32 80.32
Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited * India 100 100
Punj Lloyd Upstream Limited India 58.06 58.06
Punj Lloyd Aviation Limited India 100 100
Sembawang Infrastructure (India) Private Limited India 100 100
Indtech Global Systems Limited India 99,99 99.99
Yfl.g?fl Kalewa Highway Limited (Formerly known as Shitul Overseas Placement and Logistics India 100 100
Limited) %
Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Pte. Limited $$ Singapore 100 100
Punj Lloyd Building and Infrastructure Private Limited ! Sri Lanka - -
Step Down Subsidiaries
Punj Lloyd Oil & Gas (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. $$ Malaysia 100 100
Punj Lloyd Sdn. Bhd.* Malaysia 100 100
Punj Lloyd Aviation Pte. Limited $§ Singapore 100 100
Christos Aviation Limited * Bermuda 100 100
Indraprastha Renewables Private Limited ; India 100 100
PLR Systems Private Limited (Formerly known as Punj Lloyd Raksha Systems Private Limited) * India 51 51
Punj Lloyd Engincering Pte. Limited * Singapore - 80.32
PL Delta Technologies Limited India 80.32 80.32
AeroEuro Engineering India Private Limited India 80.32 80.32
Punj Lloyd Solar Power Limited * India__ 100 100
KhagariaPumea Highway Project Limited * India 100 100
Indraprastha Metropolitan Development Limited * India 100 100
(b) Joint operations
The Company’s interest in joint operations as at March 31, 2019 is set out below.

: g | Placeof | 1 Ownership as at !
NREERLeDG [N il A o business | March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Joint operations of the Company % %

Joint Venture of Whessoe Oil and Gas Limited and Revival of Ratnagiri Gas and Power India 50 50

Punj Lloyd Limited Private Limited LNG Terminal project

Punj Lloyd Group Joint Venture Deorpand cons.tmctloln =, SErVICes o Thailand 75 75
platform compression facilities

Public Works Company Tripoli Punj Lloyd Joint Venture zélgiga?g:\zlg:prﬂi twater iz Libya 60 60

Joint venture partners have direct rights to the assets of the operations and are jointly and severally liable for liabilities incurred by the operations. The

Company recognizes its direct right to the jointly held assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.

(c) Interest in associates and joint ventures

The Company’s interest and share in associates and joint ventures as at March 31, 2019 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Company, directly or indirectly, and the country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of

business.

LUNT A i SR Place of Ownership as at Il
Name of entity ! Na.ture of (_)I;_)er.a.tlor{s _ e March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Joint ventures of the Company % %
Thiruvananthpuram Road Development Company Limited **** Thlmvanmmpumm ity foad India 50.00% 50.00%

improvement
Ramprastha Punj Llovd Developers Private Limited ***** Real estate developers India 50.00% 50.00%
Joint ventures through subsidiaries:
PLE TCI Engenharia Ltda ****** Engieerifig]} andl design [V p oo 39.36% 39.36%

consultancy services
PLE TCI Engineering Limited Engineering and Designing India 39.36% 39.36%
Assaciate through subsidiary

i . . . . = Aviation - Maintenance 3
g L2 2 9, 0,

Air Works India (Engineering) anatf:,.ljlmlted Repair and Overhau] India 23.24% 23.24%

i
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Associates of the Company

Domus Lloyd Contracting Limited (formerly Punj Lloyd Engineering, procurement Saudi 23.90% 100.00%

Construction Contracting Company Limited) # and construction Arnbia mns ikl

PLN Construction Limited # & Engincering, procurement | | . 40:00% 100.00%
and construction

*  [Entities filed for strike-off/liquidation or struck-offliquidated/sold.

# During the year, the Company's share in these subsidiaries hias been reduced to less than 50%
& Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, shareholding in PLN Construction has further reduced to 20.41% on account of right issue on June 29, 2020.
%  Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, Yagi Kalewa Highway Limited has incorporated an entity in Myanmar wherein it is holding 51

is held by Varaha India Limited, The M
the Myanmar entity is with Varmaha,

! No capital infused by the Company till date,

** Subscquent to the March 31, 2019, pledge on the shareholding has been created in favour of the consortium lenders.
*** While the Company is undergoing
due to the financial default. The financial statements of the JV are available till March 31, 2017,

***%* The financial statements are available till March 31 , 2018,

*##%%% The financial statements are available till March 31,2010.

$8 Presently there are no Directors in the Company,

§  'The Singapore High Court ordered for the appointment of Judicial Manager for Punj Lloyd Pte Limited (PLPL
w.e.fJune 27, 2016 and subsequently ordered the liquidation on August 07, 2017. The Gro
following entities, pursuant to appointment of Judicial Manager and thereafler liquidator :

) as per the

yanmar entity is undertaking the contract which has been awarded to the JV of Punj Lloyd and

% shares, balance 49%
Varaha. The control of

liquidation the other joint venture partner, is also undergoing a resolution framework as directed by Hon’ble NCLT

Singapore Companies Act,

up has lost control over the entire PLPL Group, comprising the

Iﬂlmeo!mﬂ‘ly » | Country of incorporation
 Subsidiaries
PT Punj Lloyd Indonesia Indonesia 100,00 100.00
PT Sempec Indonesia Indonesia 100,00 100.00
Punj Lloyd Engineers and Constructors Ple, Limited Singaj 100,00 100.00
| Buffitlo Hills Limited British Virgin Istands 100,00 100.00
Indiech Trading FZE United Arab Emirates 100,00 100.00
Punj Lloyd Thailand (Co.) Limited Thailand 100.00 100.00
Sembawang Development Ple, Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Engineers and Constructors Pre. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Contech Trading Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Mining (Kekal) Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembaw. ianjin) Construetions Engineering Co. Limited China _ 68.17 68.17
Sembawang UAE Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Consult Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang (Malaysia) Sdn, Bhd Malaysia 97.38 97.38
JurubinaSembawan Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 97.38 97.38
Tueri Aquila FZE United Arab Emirates 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Equity Capital Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang (Tianjin) Investment Management Co. Limited China 97.38 97.38
PT Sembawang Indonesia Indonesia 97.38 97.38
Reliance Contractors Private Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang E&C Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 97.38 97.38
Joint Operations
Kumagai-Sembawang-Mitsui Joint Venture Singapore 43.82 43.82 |
Kumagai-SembCarploint Venture Singapore 48.69 48.69
Kumagai-SembCorploint Venture (DTSS) Singapore 48.69 48.69
SembCorp-Daewoo Joint Venture Singapore 58.43 58.43
Joint Ventures
PT KekalAdidaya Indonesia 48.69 48.69
Punj Lloyd Dynamic LLC Qatar 48.00 48.00
27. Related Parties
(a) Details of related partics
(i)  Parties over which the Company has control
Interest in subsidiaries, including associates and joint ventures, are set out in note 26,
(i) Key management personnel
Atul Punj * | Chairman & Ex Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer
Atul Kumar Jain -_| Director (upto May 29, 2018)
Shiv Punj -_|_Director (upto August 27, 2018)

* He has resigned from the position of Chairman and Managing Director / Director of the Company w.e.f. October 20, 2021.
Managing Director / Director has not been accepted by the Resolution mewsionnl.p_i: the Company. as Punj Lloyd was und

i
ljz e

His resignation as Chairman and
ergoing the corporate insolvency
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resolution process in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and any such change in management of the Company will require the prior approval
of the Committee of Creditors before the Resolution Professional accepts the same.

Non-executive director

Jvoti Punj (upto August 27, 2018)

Non-executive and independent directors
Phiroz Vandrevala (upto March 08, 2019)
Uday Walia (upto March 08, 2019)

Shravan Sampath (upto March 08, 2019)
Rajat Khare (upto August 11, 2018)

(iii) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives exercise significant influence and with whom transactions have taken place
during the year:

Pt. Kanahya Lal Dayawanti Punj Charitable Society - | Chairmanship of late father of Chairman & Managing Director and Group Chief
Executive Officer (upto Oct 04, 2019)
Pt. Kanahya Lal Dayawanti Punj Charitable Society - | Chairmanship of Chairman & Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer

(w.e.f. Dec 11,2019)
PTA Engineering and Manpower Services Private Limited | - | Sharcholding of Chairman & Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer
Petro IT Limited - | Shar¢holding of Brother of Chairman & Managing Director and Group Chief Executive
Officer

(iv) Other related parties — Post employment benefit plan of the Company

Punj Lloyd Group Employee’s Provident Fund Trust

Punj Lloyd Group Employee’s Gratuity Trust

Punj Lloyd Group Employee’s Superannuation Trust

(b) Transaction with related parties *

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Sales and purchase of goods and services
With subsidiaries:
Contract revenue 10.54 11.55
Sale of traded poods - 90.29
Hire income - 14.64
Management services - 0.07
Interest income - 7.11
Other income 0.72 4.63
Contractor charges 9.16 7.33
Consultancy and professional 1.30 15.66
Witls enterprises where KMPs or their relatives have influence
Rent expense 1.03 1.57
With other related parties — post emplovment benefit plans
Contribution towards post employment benefit plans - 6.71
Other transactions
With subsidiaries:
Loan regeived back 0.10 66.73

* Transactions with related parties pertains to the period prior to commencement of CIRP i.e. before March 08, 2019, order published on March 11, 2019.

(¢) Outstanding balances

March 31. 2019 March 31, 2018

Subsidiaries ,

Loan receivible 51.81 369.37

Trade receivable 0.45 908.61

Interest receivable - 42.48

Other advances (advances to related parties) - -

Other payable (Due to related parties) - .

Mobilization advance (-)9.45 (-) 9.45
Associate

Trade receivable 1.53 1.53
Joint operation

Other advances (advances to related parties) - -
Enterprises where KMPs or their relative have influence

Trade ]:i_gyib[e (-) 5.41 (-) 6.79

KMP remuneration payable - =

o e >




Punj Llovd Limited
Notes to financial statements for the Ve

v ended March 31, 2019
(AN it 11 ISR Crares LIRS oF vy wiye stated)

(d) Commitments on behalf of related parties

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Subsidinries
Bank puaruntees - 396.54
Corporate guarmntees 2314.21 2314.21
(e) Cumulative provision for doubtful debts against outstanding balances
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Subsidiaries
Loan receivable 298.74 86.87
Trade receivable 973.36 90.47
Interest receivable 15.76 24.04
Other advances (advances to related parties) 425.83 22.62

() Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All related party transactions are in ordina
note 38 ().

ry course of business and on arm’s length basis other than the transaction reported by the Resolution

28. Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for as at the end of the reporting period but not recognized as liabilities (net of advances) is as follows:

Professional in

___March 31,2019

March 31, 2018

Property, plant and equipment

0.88

Intangible assets

(b) Non-cancellable operating leases

The Company leases various offices and guest houses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring,
are no contingent rents in the lease agreements, Upon renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated. There is no escalation clause in the
There are no significant restrictions imposed by lease amingements. The amount of total future minimum lease
leases as at March 31, 2019 is Nil (Previous year: Nil). Rental expenses relating to operating lease for the year end
31.69).

ed March 31,2019 is 13.85

(¢) Finance lease obligations

The Company has finance leases and hire
block of plant and equipment,
nine years. There is no escala

purchase contracts for certain project equipments, vehicles and building,
vehicles and investment property respectively under tangible assets and investment pro

tion clause in the lease agreements. There are no significant restrictions imposed by lease arrangements,

generally, within eleven months to three years, There
lease agreements,
payments under non-cancellable operating

(Previous year:

the cost of which is included in the gross
perties. The lease term is for one to ninety

March 31,2019 March 31, 201
Gross block at the end of financial year 165.67 167.54
Written down value at the end of financial year 88.56 90.20
Details of payments made during the year:
Principal g -
Interest = =
29. Contingent liabilities
As at
March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
a)  Liquidated damages deducted by customers not accepted by the Company and pending final settlement. - 82.30
b)  Corporate guarantees given on behalf of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. * 107.55 121.96
¢)  Corporate guarantees given on behalf of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates under liquidation. * 618.46 498.43
d) Live Bank guarantees given to various clients 493.34 -
e) Value added tax demands: #
on disallowance of deduction on labour and services of the works contracts pending with - 6.38
sales tax authorities and High Court
for non submission of statutory forms - 0.11
for purchases against statutory forms not accepted by department - 10.95
- 0.79

against the central sales tax demand on sales in transit/ sale in the course of import

* The change is on account of claims filed by a financial creditor with RP
# In respect of tax matters the same has been adjusted in books of accounts.
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30. Loans and advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries in terms of disclosure required as per Schedule V, read with Regulation 34 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Outstanding amount as at *

Maximum amount outstanding during

_the year ended

Name of the entities March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 | March 31,2019 | March 31,2018
Punj Lloyd Kazakhstan LLP - - - 34.16
Punj Lloyd Pte Limited - - - ] .
Punj Lloyd Aviation Limited . 2744 27.44 27.44
Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited 51.82 251.27 251.27 310.49
Punj Lloyd Upstream Limited - 10.93 10.93 16.79
PT Punj Lloyd Indonesia - - - -
Punj Lloyd International Limited - - - -
PLI Ventures Advisory Services Private Limited - - - -
Sembawang Infrastructure (Indin) Private Limited - - - -
Spectra Punj Lloyd Limited - B - -
Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Pte. Limited - - - -
PLN Construction Limited - - - -
All the above loans are repayable on demand.
*Represent amounts net of provision captured on ‘Expected Credit Loss (ECL)’ method as per Ind-AS 109 - Financial Instruments.
31. The disclosures as per provisions of of Indian Accounting Standard 115- ‘Revenue from Contract with Customers’ are as under:

2018-19 2017-18
a) Contract revenue recogized as revenue in the period 1.612.60 3,811,228 |
b) Unbilled Revenue 335.64 4.755.48
c) Advance received on contract under progress 523.17 1.227.06 |
d) Retention amounts on contract under progress 205.01 440.60
e) Grogs amount due from customers for contract work as an asset 505.33 2.591.26
f) Gross amount due to customers for contract work as a liability 299.34 174.82
32. The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At

the year end, the Company has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under the law/ Indian Accounting Standards for the material
foreseeable losses on such long term contracts (including derivative contracts, if any) has been made in the books of accounts.

33. The Company has defaulted in repayment of long term dues (including interest) amounting to 2,734.47 as on March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018:1,274.36).
34. Financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments by category
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
FVTOCI Amortized cost FVTOCI Amortized cost

Financial assets
Non-current investments 6.62 - 463.94 -
Trade receivables - 505.33 - 2,591.26
Loans - 55.90 - 301.16
Cash and cash equivalents - 63.33 - 22028
Other bank balances - 151.50 - 177.88
Other financial assets = 9.82 - 453.89 |

6.62 785.88 463.94 3.744.47
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 6,336.34 - 5,120.30
Trade payables - - - -
Other financial liabilities - 3.632.45 - 2.275.35

- 9.968.79 - 7.395.66

(b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments are classified into three levels in order to provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining the fair values.

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1: Where fair value is based on quoted prices from active market.

Level 2: Where fair value is based on significant direct or indirect observable market inputs.
Level 3: Where fair value is based on one or mgre significant input that is not based on observable market data.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31, 2019
Non-current investments

Quoted 0.00 - = 0.00
Unquoted - - 6.62 6.62
Tatal 0.00 - 6.62 6.62
As at March 31, 2018
Non-current investments

Quoted 0.00 - 0.00

Unguoted - - 463,93 463.93
| Total 0.00 - 463.93 463.94

There are no transfers between any levels during the year.
(¢) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at amortized cost, disclosed in note (a) above, approximates to their fair values. Accordingly, the
fair values of such instruments have not been disclosed separately.

(d) Valuation techniques and processes used to determine fair value

Fair value of quoted investments is based on the quotation as at the reporting date. For unquoted investments, fair value is determined based on the present
values, calculated using intemationally accepted valuation principles, by independent valuers.

(¢) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

Significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurement.

Non-current investments - Unquoted
I As at Fair value Significant unobservable inputs*
Earnings growth rate Risk adjusted discount rate

March 31,2019 6.63 0-4.00 9.00 - 16.50
March 31, 2018 463.94 0-4.00 7.87-15.00

* There were no significant inter-relntionsh ps between unobservable inputs (hat materially affect fair values.

() Reconciliation of financial instruments categorized under Level 3

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Opening 463.93 772.73
Addition - -
Gaing/(losses) recognized in OCI (45731) (308.79)
Closing 6.62 463.94

35. Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments are as follows:

Financial assets: Investments, Cash and cash equivalents, Loans, Trade and other receivables,

Financial liabilities: Borrowings, Trade and other payables,

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to regulate, finance and support the Company’s operations.

The Company is exposed to various financial risks such as credit, liquidity and market risk. An experienced and qualified team ensures that all financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

The policy needs to be read in conjunction with Note 2(iv) of the financial statements particularly with respect to the fact that the Company is currently under
liquidation as a going concern. s

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade and other receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits

with banks and other financial instruments.

A.l. Trade receivables

the established ECL policy, as described below.
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The Company follows a ‘simplified approach’ (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for recognition of impairment loss allowance on its trade receivables. For the
purpose of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, the Company estimates irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the receivable
balances, clubbed with, historical experience with the customer and/or the industry in which the customer operates and assessment of litigation, if applicable.
Receivables are written off when they are no more deemed collectible.

Though the Company executes projects with repeat customers but there is no significant customer level concentration of the credit risk as at any of the
reported periods. Further, there is no concentrated risk based on the location where the Company operates,

A.2. Other financial assets

Loans and receivable from related parties are periodically reviewed by the management in conjunction with the re-measured fair values of the Company’s
investments in those parties. Where the carrying amount of any receivable exceeds the re-measured fair value of investment, an impairment loss, to that extent,
is provided for in the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents are managed by the Company’s treasury department. Concentration risk is constantly monitored to mitigate financial loss.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the financial assets as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is to the extent of their
respective carrying amounts as disclosed in note 7.

B. Liquidity risk

This should be read together with Note 2 (iv) of the financial statements particularly with respect to the fact that the Company is currently under liquidation
as a going concem. Of the total term debts of 1,956.63, 100% is payable in less than one year at March 31, 2019 (March 31, 2018: 76% of 2,019.42) based on
the carrying value of such borrowings reflected in the financial statements. ¢

Other financial liabilities, like trade and other payables, matures predominantly within one year.

C. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk : interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk.

The sensitivity analysis as shown below relates to the position as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the
effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2019 and March 31,
2018.

C.1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The
Company’s main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. As at March 31,

2019 and March 31, 2018, the Company’s borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in INR and USD.

The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither
the carrying mount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

C.1.1. Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Total borrowings * 8292.97 6,657.58
Less : Fixed rate borrowings 783.57 776.67
Variable rate borrowings 7,509.40 5.880.91

*excluding interest accrued on borrowings.

C.1.2. Interest rate sensitivity

With all other variables held constant, increase of 50 basis points (bps) will result in a loss of 37.55 before tax (Previous year: 29.40) and a decrease of 50 bps
will result in a gain of 37.55 before tax (Previous year: 29.40).

C.2. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s un-hedged foreign currency exposure of its Indian
operations and Company’s net investment in its foreign operations.
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C.2.1. Foreign currency risk exposure
The Company’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reported periods, expressed in INR, are as follows:

As at March 31, 2019

USD SGD AED OMR QAR LYD THB
Financial assets 12.10 0.22 - - . E -
Financial liabilities (183.25) (2.70) - - - -
Net investment in foreign
operations - - 777.31 234,70 214.31 - -
Net exposure (171.15) (2.48) 177.31 234.79 214.31 - -
As at March 31, 2018
USD SGD AED OMR QAR LYD THB
Financial assets 616.96 954.71 - - - E -
Financial liabilities (648.08) (16.76) - - - - -
Net investment in foreign
operations - - 358.80 174.38 124,32 182.33 339.92
Net exposure (31.12) 937,95 358.80 174.38 124,32 182,33 339,92

C.2.2. Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on
the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for
all other currencies is not material.

Currency Change in currency exchange rate Profit/(loss) effect before tax

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
USD +5% (8.56) (1.56)
SGD +5% (0.12) 46.90
AED L e i - +5% 38.87 U794
OMR +5% 11.74 8.72
QAR +5% - 6.22
LYD +5% - 9.12
THB +5% - 17.00

A decrease of 5% in the above currency’s exchange rates would result in an equivalent reciprocal effect.

C.3. Other price risk

Company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from quoted investments held and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through
OCIL. Company’s exposure is insignificant, since Company’s investment in such securities is immaterial.

36. Capital management

Risk management:

For the purpose of the capital management, capital includes the issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders. The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide retuns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is, net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity (as
shown in the balance sheet) plus net debt. Borrowings iticlude long-term borrowings, current maturities of long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings and
interest accrued thereon, The gearing ratios were as follows:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borrowi: 9,905.04 7,321.82
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 63.42 220.28
Net Debt 9,841.62 7,101.55
Equity (12,713.28) 162,52
Equity and net Debt (2,871.66) 7,264.07
Gearing ratio (%) (342.72) 97.76

Loan covenants:
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Under the terms of some borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with the certain financial covenants. The Company aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants could permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been some breaches in the financial covenants during the reporting
periods; ICICI bank has initiated CIRP effective March 08, 2019. Please refer note 37 for further details regarding present status of the CIRP

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018,

37. Subsequent Event

Impact of Subsequent events from March 31, 2019 till date has been adjusted in financial statements

Head Amount (INR Crore)
Encashment of Bank Guarantee 1124.26
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment # 107.88
Cash and Cash Equivalent (Libya)* 42.01

The BG encashment amount has been recorded as expenditure in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 and recorded as payable to
respective issuing banks/financial institutions.

* Subsequently Libyan currency (LYD) has been devaliiéd from LYD 50.63/INR (March 31, 2019) to LYD 16.36/INR (Dec 31, 2021), no impact has
been taken in the financials statement. However necessary adjustments have been made in respect to the amounts lying in the bank account in Libya.
Since the bank account are not accessible due to loss of control.

Similarly adequate adjustments have been made for other assets lying in Libya on which the company no longer has control.

# In view of the local liabilities related to operations and maintenance of plant and equipment {(Barge Kuber, Madhwa and Barge Mahesh), the barges
were ordered to be auctioned by the Port of Mumbai on 7! November 2019 and Ras Al Khaimah court on 30™ April 2020. The proceeds of the barges
have been accordingly appropriated as per the court order. Hence, provision for loss of INR 107.88 crores, being the book value of the barges, has been
recorded in the financials.

Non Adjusting Events

(a) List of Assets Sold under Liquidation

The Liquidator has conducted 12 rounds of e-auction for sale of assets of the Company, including sale of the Company on a going concem basis. Also,

the Liquidator has entered into private sale contracts in accordance with Regulation 33 of the Liquidation Regulations, for sale of few assets. The
following are the list of assets sold during the liquidation process both under e-auction process as well as private sale agreements:

A ssetsTor SAlc Sale Consideration (exclusive Financial Year of Manner of Sale
of taxes) Sale

Sale of investment and loan in Punj Lloyd .
Infrastructure Limited 51.00 Crore 2023-24 4th round of e-auction
Sale of Land. Building, P&M in Banmore 70.85 Crore 2024-25 6th round of e-auction
Sale of Freehold land in Vadodara 6.99 Crore 2024-25 6th round of e-auction
Sale of Residential Flat in Jamnagar 201 24 Lakh 2024-25 6th round of e-auction
Sale of Residential Flat in Jamnagar 202 24 Lakh 2024-25 6th round of e-auction
Sale of leashold and and building in Banmore 2.45 Crore 2024-25 6th round of e-auction
(S)efxl;z:vf;ﬁovable Asels locatel L B R OREEY 3.33 Lakh 2023-24 1st round of e-auction for Kuwait location
Sale of Plant & Machinery at Bangladesh :
Bhutan Road Proiect site 1.76 Crore 2024-25 9th round of e-auction
(S}ﬂiea (r)af; Plant & Machinery at Kakkrapara site, 31.50 Lak} 2025-26 Private Sale vide ozrg;rs dated 10 February
Movable Assets at Plot 78 1.00 Crore 2024-25 Private Sale vide order datedl1 June 2024

38.

a)

Also, please note that Movable Assets located at the country of Oman were sold for an amount of OMR 4,20,000/- vide Private Sale order dated 01
October 2024. The successful bidder had deposited an amount of OMR 2,00,000/-. However, the bidder failed to remit the balance consideration of OMR
2,20,000/- within 90 days of NCLT Approval. The Liquidator has cancelled the private sale vide email dated 24 February 2025 and has forfeited the
amount received in interest of the stakeholders.

(b) One of the lender, in terms of a declaration of mortgage executed by the Company, had first charge over some fixed assets (Land, Building and
Investment Properties) of the Company (“Premises") which they have opted to realize in terms of Section 52(2) of the Insolvency Bankruptey Code,
2016 (‘IBCY/ “Code’). Accordingly the possession of the Premises was tuken in the FY 2022-2023 in terms of the procedure set out in Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002 (“SARFAESI”) and have been sold by the lender.

Others
Claims received during liquidation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis. Pursuant to the provision of Regutation 16 of the Liquidation regulations, claims
have been submitted to the Liquidator by, Financial Creditors, Opemtional Creditors, Workmen & Employees and Others (including Govenment dues
and other creditors). The status of claims as ol‘Jul{jUZ-.\Rﬂzi};is-as follows: g

D
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S. No. Category of Creditor Amount Claimed (INR Crore) | Amount of Claims Admitted (INR Crore)
| Financial Creditors (Secured) 15,583.07 14.408.65
2 Financial Creditors (Unsecured) 906.51 856.61
3 Operational Creditors (other than Workmen, Employees 10,582.71 1,888.77

and Govemment Dues)

4 Operational Creditors (Workmen and Employees) 0.13 3,75

5 Operational Creditors (Govemment Dues) 1.872.21 1,813.67

On February 19, 2019, the Company was subjected to a survey operation u/s 133A of the Income Tax Act, 1961. During the survey, statements of
Company’s officials were recorded, Subsequent to the survey, Income tax department seeking certain details / information of the Company issued
summons to the officials of the Company.

During the period of CIRP, Company has received regulatory enquiries/notes/summons from various Government Authorities like Serious Fraud
Investigation Office (SF10), Enforcement Directorate (ED), Income Tax Department, Goods and Service Tax (GST), Employee Provideni Fund
Organisation (EPFO) and lenders have initiated investigation procedures and same has been continuing during the liquidation period as well. Various
legal cases by and against the Company are also continuing at various courts of law. Pending outcome of the ongoing investigation/enquiries/litigations
no impact of the same has been considered in these financial statement as of now.

Details of loan given, investments made and guarantee given covered w's 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013 Act have been disclosed under the respective
heads of ‘Related party transactions’ given in note 27.

Contract revenues include INR 205 crores (Previous year INR 289.25) representing the retention money which will be received by the Company after the
satisfactory performance of the respective piojects. The period of release of retention money may vary from six months to eighteen months depending
upon the terms and conditions of the projects,

The amount to be incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, as
prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 Act, is INR Nil (previous year INR 0.01).

Micro and small enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied upon by the auditors. According
to such identification, the disclosure in respect to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is as follows:

S, No, Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of each accounting year
- Principal amount 29.80 435
- Interest thereon 5.36 0.94
if) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro, Small and Nil Nil

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

ii) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 1.78 0.32
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;
and

5.36 0.94
v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 3.57 0.63

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

As part of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process and liquidation thereafter, creditors (including the MSME) were called upon to submit their
claims to the RP/Liquidator in terms of the applicable provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code 2016 ( IBC). Pending final outcome of the
Liquidation, no adjustment has been made in these financial statements for the differential amounts, if any. These will be dealt with in accordance with
the provisions of the IBC, 2016,

The Company has international and domestic transaction with *Associated Enterprises’ which are subject to Transfer Pricing regulations in India. The
Management of the Company is of the opinion that such transactions with Associnted Enterprises are at arm’s length other than the transactions reported
under the avoidance application (currently sub-judice) filed by the Resolution Professional with Hon'ble NCLT. Consequently, this will not have any
impact on the finaneial statements, particularly on account of tax expense and that of provision of taxation,

Capitalization of expenditure

During the current and previous year ended on March 31,2019 and March 31, 2018, the Company has not capitalized any expenditure of revenue nature
to the cost of tangible asset/ intangible assets under development.

In the opinion of management, the current assets and other non-guument-assets, necessary provisions / write offs have a value on realization in the
ordinary course of business, at least equal to the amount at whicls: are stated; éxtept reported otherwise.
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As part of the Liquidation Process, secured/unsecured lenders and operational creditors (including workmen, employees, vendors, suppliers, government
dues and other creditors) were called upon to submit their claims to the Liquidator in terms of the applicable provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code 2016 (IBC) read with the Liquidator Regulations. Pending final outcome of the Liquidation of the Company, no adjustment has been made in these
financial statements for the differential amounts, if any.

The Resolution Professional during the CIRP of the Company had appointed a transaction auditor to examine and identify avoidable transactions under
Section 43, 45, 50 and 66 of the Code. Based on the findings of transaction audit report the RP has reported the avoidable transactions by filing an
application with the Adjudicating Authority pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Code on July 19, 2020. The application is pending with the Hon’ble
NCLT for adjudication.

During the previous year ended March 31, 2018, the Singapore High Court (‘the Court!) heard upon the application filed by Judicial Management (JM) of
Punj Lloyd Pte. Limited and Sembawang Engincers and Constructors Ple. Limited, subsidiaries of the Company. Accordingly the Court ordered for the
liquidation of Punj Lloyd Pte, Limited and Sembawang Engineers and Constructors Pre. Limited vide its order dated August 07, 2017, Pursuant to
appointment of Judicial Managers by the Court w.e.f June 27, 2016, the Company had lost control over these subsidiaries and consequently necessary
adjustments were made in the year ended March 31, 2017,

Based on current status of projects, provision amounting to INR 2,726.70 crore (Previous year: INR 40.56 crore) has been created for unbilled revenue
(work in progress), considered doubtful of recovery.

Based on current status of recoveries from Trade receivables, Company has created provision for doubtful debt on the basis of expected credit losses, for
INR 807.06 Crore (Previous year: INR 235.64 Crore) which has been charged to Statement of Profit & Loss account.

Based on current status of recovery from other financial assets, Company has created provision amounting to INR 1,538.19 Crore (Previous year: INR
52.27 Crore) since recovery of same is considered doubtful.

South East Asia Crude Oil and Gas Pipeline Company Limited had appointed Punj Lloyd Ltd for Part A of Section 1 of the tender for EPC contract of
Myanmar- China Crude Oil and Gas Pipeline Project (Myanmar Section). Assets parked at Maynmar yard for completion of project are not in control of
PLL due to Myanmar facing political turmoil since February 2021,

IDBI bank has classified the Company account as fraud, Also, the Company has been declared a willful defaulter by Central Bank of India.

Amounts in the financial statements are presented in INR crores, unless otherwise stated. Certain amounts that are required to be disclosed and do not
appear due to rounding off are expressed as 0.00. One crore equals 10 millions.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

The Liquidator has been engaging with the debtors at a continuous level and will continue the efforts, however considering the general economic
conditions due to COVID 19, high employees’ turnover due to Liquidation and after reasonable diligence of debtors, necessary provisioning/adjustments
has been made in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Due to reduction of operations, pending outcome of the Liquidation Process and significant uncertainty about fiture economic outlook of the construction
industry, it is not feasible to determine the amount of impairment in its entirety, if any, which would have been required to be done in the net book vilue
of the construction equipments and other assets classified as tangible assets and intangible assets in “Property, Plant & Equipment™ in note 4, 5 and note 6
of these financinl statements. However, Fair Valuation determination was made as on 8% March 2019, being CIRP commencement date in accordance
with IBC, 2016 and necessary adjustments have been made in these financial statement.

For and on behalf of Punj Lloyd Limited

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of M/IS PUNJ LLOYD LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/S PUNJ LLOYD
LIMITED (‘the Company”), (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its
associates and jointly controlled entities, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
31st March 2019, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, and the consolidated cash
flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as ‘“the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March
2019, of consolidated loss and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) Inrespect of Holding Company

1. The net realizable value (NRV) of inventories as on 31st March 2019 has not been
determined by the company. Consequently, inventories have been valued at cost, rather
than at the lower of cost or NRV, which is contrary to the requirements of Ind AS 2 —
Inventories and accounting policy of the company. The financial impact of this non-
compliance remains unquantifiable due to the absence of NRV data.

2. Balances as per books of accounts relating to statutory liabilities such as VAT payable,
GST Payable, TDS payable, EPF, ESI and National Pension Scheme (NPS) have not
been reconciled with the corresponding figures in the statutory returns. The financial
impact, if any, arising from these unreconciled items has not been determined and
provided in the financial statements.

3. The company has not reconciled the claims received from operational creditors with the
balances recorded in its books of accounts as on CIRP commencemen;.' 'Mn absence




b)

10.

11.

of the reconciliations, the financial impact, if any, remains unascertained. Refer Note No.
14 of the financial statements.

The employee benefit expenses recorded in the financial statements are not in
reconciliation with the payroll and HR records maintained by the company. The impact of
the same, if any, could not be determined due to non-reconciliation of said expenses.

Due to the significant time lag between the period under audit and the conduct of the
audit, the Project-related expenses, including those for material consumption, contractor
charges, and site operations could not be physically verified at respective sites.

Bank guarantees amounting to Rs.1928.55 crores, including Rs. 1124.26 crores after the
balance sheet date, have been encashed by the customers due to non-compliance of the
terms of the contract executed by the company with them, with corresponding impact in
profit and loss account. Loss is overstated to the extent of Rs. 1124.26 crores. Refer
Note No. 37 of the Financial Statements.

We could not obtain the direct balance confirmation from banks and receivables of the
company as on the balance sheet date.

In respect of Branches of the Holding Company

The Commercial Registration (CR) of the company of its branches at Saudi Arabia, Qatar
and Libya, have been expired and not been renewed, resulting restrictions like physical
visit of the branch office have imposed and branch auditor have relived on the
statements and explanations provided by the management of the company.

In respect of Saudi Arabia and Qatar branch, bank statements for the period under audit
as well as subsequent period have not been provided.

In respect of Abu Dhabi branch, due to non-renewal of the license after June 11, 2022,
and inability of a legal attorney to provide certification, management is unable to confirm
whether any legal dues exist towards UAE regulatory authorities. Hence, we are unable
to ascertain whether the financial statements as of March, 31, 2019, includes all
necessary provisions and disclosures for liabilities towards UAE authorities.

In respect of Abu Dhabi branch, we are unable to verify the transaction during the year
and balances of accounts payable, retention payable and provision of AED 45,448,105/-
(Rs. 85,58,78,713/-) out of the total payable of AED 84,054,550/- (Rs.158,29,15,286/-).
In absence of any supporting documents and external confirmations from suppliers and
vendors, we were unable to comment whether any adjustments would be necessary to
the below balances: 9 —
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Particulars Amount (In AED) Amount (in Rs.) |
Accounts Payables 30,414,529 57,27,66,410
Retention Payable 8,361,352 15,74,60,981
Provision for expense 6,672,224 12,56,51,322
Total 45,448,105 85,58,78,713

12. In respect of Abu Dhabi branch, we were unable to verify margins, other facilities,
financial and contingent liabilities, if any, that needs to be included in the accompanying
financial statements due to unavailability of three bank balance confirmations out of five
banks.

13. A forgery had been committed against the company, compromising the Company
Commercial Registration (CR) of its Oman Branch, resulted in imposing of certain
restrictions, including physical visit to the branch office. Consequently, verification
procedures were limited, and reliance was placed on information, documentation, and
explanations provided by Company.

14. The financial statements of the Oman branch reflect an occurrence of theft from its
warehouse. A First Information Report (FIR) has been filed with the local police
authorities. The said matter is pending for adjudication before the local court in Oman.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

S. No. | Key Audit Matter | Auditor’s Response
a) In respect of Holding Company
1. The Company was admitted to the | We have discussed and analysed the

CIRP pursuant to an application filed | situation with the Liquidator who is
before the Hon'ble National Company | currently vested with the charge of

N




Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New
Delhi (“NCLT/ Adjudicating Authority”)
by ICICI Bank Limited against Punj
Lloyd Limited, under Section 7 of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (“Code”) read with the rules and
regulations framed thereunder, as
amended from time to time. The
Hon'ble NCLT vide its order
(“Admission Order”) dated March 08,
2019 (“Insolvency Commencement
Date”) had admitted the application for
the initiation of the corporate
insolvency resolution process
(“CIRP") of the Company.
Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order
dated May 22, 2019 appointed Mr.
Ashwini Mehra (IBBI Reg. No:
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00388/2017-
18/10706) as the  Resolution
Professional (“RP”) of the Company.

During CIRP, the RP had received a
resolution plan which was put to vote
for consideration of Committee of
Creditors (“CoC"). The resolution plan
put to vote was not approved by the
CoC. Subsequently, a meeting of the
CoC was held on March 30, 2021
wherein the members of the CoC
recommended that the liquidator
should first explore sale of the
Company as a going concern under
Regulation 32(e) of Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Board of India (Liquidation
Process) Regulations, 2016
(“Liquidation Regulations”) or sale of
business of Company as a going
concern under Regulation 32(f) of
Liquidation Regulations. The CoC
also suggested that a scheme of
arrangement under section 230 of the
Companies Act, 2013 should be run
simultaneously, in the interest of time.

Based on the decision taken by CoC,
the RP on April 01, 2021, filed an
application under section 33 of the
Code to pass appropriate orders for
liquidation of the Company as a ‘going
concern’,

The Hon’ble NCLT, Principal Bench
vide order dated May 27, 2022
(published on May 31, 2022)
("Liquidation Order") approved the

governance. All practical and reasonable
efforts have been made by us to gather
evidences to ensure non existence of
material misstatements, despite of the
various challenges and  complex
circumstances.

Liquidation of the Company as a|




going concern in accordance with
Section 33 of the Code and in terms
of the Liquidation Order Mr. Ashwini
Mehra (IBBI Reg. No: [IBBI/IPA-
001/1P-P00388/2017-18/10706),
erstwhile RP has been appointed as
the Liquidator of the Company.

2.

b) In respect of Subsidiary Companies

In respect of Indtech Global Systems
Limited, the Company adopted Ind AS
115, Revenue from contracts with
customers(“Ind AS 115’), which is the
new revenue accounting standard.
The application and transition to this
accounting standard is complex and is
an area of focus in the audit.

The revenue standard establishes a
comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and
when revenue is recognized. This
involves certain key judgements
relating to ldentification of distinct

performance obligations,
determination of transaction price by
performance obligation, the

appropriateness of the basis used to
measure revenue recognized over a
year. Additionally, the standard
mandates robust disclosures in
respect of revenue and periods over
which the remaining performance
obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the balance sheet date.
The Company adopted Ind AS 115
and applied the available exemption
provided therein, to not restate the
comparative periods.

The audit procedure adopted by the
auditor of the subsidiary on adoption of
Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with
customers(“Ind AS 115’), which is the
new revenue accounting standard,
include-

» Evaluated the design and
implementation of the processes and
internal controls relating to

implementation of the new revenue
accounting standard;

« Evaluating the detailed analysis
performed by management on revenue
streams for the existing contracts with
customers and considered revenue
recognition policy in the current period
in respect of those revenue streams;

» Evaluated the changes made to IT
systems to reflect the changes required
in revenue recognition as per the new
accounting standard;

» Evaluated the cumulative effect
adjustments as at 1 April 2018. for
compliance with the new revenue
standard; and

» Evaluated the appropriateness of the
disclosure provided under the new
revenue standard and assessed the
completeness and mathematical
accuracy of the relevant disclosures.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially




inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Emphasis of Matter

a)

ke

In respect of Holding Company

We draw attention to Note 11 of the financial statements, which indicate that the
Company has accumulated losses and its net worth has been fully eroded, the Company
has incurred a net loss during the year and the Company’s current liabilities grossly
exceeds the current assets as at the balance sheet date. Further, order has also been
passed by Hon’ble NCLT, New Delhi dated 27.05.2022 for liquidation of the Company.
These conditions indicate material uncertainty about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. However, the financial statements are prepared as a going concern on
the basis of order of Hon'ble NCLT for liquidation of the Company as a going concern
basis and also as opined by the management of the Company. Our opinion is not
modified in this regard.

Deferred tax assets, although eligible for recognition due to accumulated losses and
deductible temporary differences, have not been recognized by the company, citing
uncertainty over future taxable profits. Our opinion is not modified in this regard.

The Company has filed income tax return for the FY 2018-19 on the basis of unaudited
books of accounts, whereas, the actual tax liability may vary based on audited figures.

Audit in respect of four overseas branches had been conducted by the branch auditors in
2019. However, due to their non availability of the respective branch auditors during audit
of the company, special purpose auditors have been appointed to provide necessary
information and assurance to us to incorporate the branch financials in the financial
statements of the Company. Further, in respect of other four branches, audits have been
conducted by the branch auditors in 2024.

b) In respect of Subsidiary Companies and Associates

1.

In respect to Subsidiary Company, Punj Lloyd International Limited, the Company’s
current liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.2.23 crores. These events or conditions,
along with other matters as indicate that a material uncertainty exist that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Subsidiary Company, Punj Lloyd Kazakhstan LLP, decided on 5™
September, 2019 to voluntarily liquidate the Company.

In respect to Subsidiary Company, Spectra Punj Lloyd Limited, the Company incurred
net loss of Rs. 76.17 crores during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as of that date,
the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.73.19 crores. These
events or conditions, along with other matters as indicate that a material uncertainty exist
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.




4. In respect to Subsidiary Company, Punj Lloyd Upstream Limited, the Company incurred
net loss of Rs. 44.78 crores during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as of that date,
the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.190.01 crores. These
events or conditions, along with other matters as indicate that a material uncertainty exist
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

5. In respect to Subsidiary Company, Punj Lloyd Upstream Limited, the Company incurred
net loss of Rs. 44.78 crores during the year ended 31 March 2019 and as of that date,
the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.190.01 crores. These
events or conditions, along with other matters as indicate that a material uncertainty exist
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

6. In respect of Subsidiary Company, Sembawang Infrastructure(India) Private Limited, the
Company incurred net loss of Rs. 1.74 crores during the year ended 31 March 2019 and
as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs.22.58
crores. These events or conditions, along with other matters as indicate that a material
uncertainty exist that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

7. In respect of Associate Company, Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Pte. Limited, Company
operations were in losses in the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2019 and also the
company did not had any projects to be executed. These events or conditions, along with
other matters as indicate that a material uncertainty exist that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

8. In respect of Associate Company, Punj Lloyd Construction Contracting Company
Limited, the subsidiary of the Associate Company incurred net loss of Rs. 5.88 crores
during the Financial Year ended on 31 March, 2019 and as of that date, the subsidiary’s
total liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.7.85 crores. These events or conditions,
along with other matters as indicate that a material uncertainty exist that may cast
significant doubt on the subsidiary of the associate company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Our Report is not modified in respect of the aforementioned matters.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of certain branches,
unincorporated joint venture, subsidiaries, and jointly controlled entities, whose financial
statements / financial information reflect total assets(net of elimination) of Rs.3088.26 crores as
at 31st March 2019 and total revenues(net of elimination) of Rs.2515.87 crores for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements also include the Group’s share of profit of Rs.22.50 crores for the year
ended 31st March 2019, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of
certain associate company, whose financial statements / financial information have not been
audited by us. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements /
financial information certified by the Management.




Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit report of other
auditor, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly
controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled
entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates
and jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to

issue an auditor's report that includes our gpinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
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assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its
associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its
associates and jointly controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, |nclud|ng any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit. iicda




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Q)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act and rules made
thereunder.

We could not get any written representations from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31st March 2019 and unable to comment on whether any director is disqualified or
not as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act. However, as per the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies,
associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in ‘Annexure A'.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under section 197(16),
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) which are
required to be commented upon by us.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and jointly
controlled entities— Refer Note. 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

i. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note
No. 13 to the consolidated financial statements.




ii.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies
incorporated in India.

iv. ~ (a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
during the year,;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries during the year; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-
statement.

v.  No dividend have been declared or paid during the year by the company.
vi.  Maintenance of books of account in a software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility was not applicable for the period under audit.

For KASHYAP SIKDAR AND COMPANY
Chartered AcGo tiapjs\
. &

Place:-New Delhi
Date: 16/09/2025 (PARTNER)
UDIN: 9 SpRGevd DMNZTN A2 Membership No. 089003



Annexure‘A’

Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S PUNJ LLOYD
LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary companies, its associates and
joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. for the year ended on
that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
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exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
auditors of the subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in
India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, considering the CIRP and delayed conduct of the audit of the Holding Company,
we are unable to comment about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control-stated in
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the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. However, the company has obtained a report of
internal financial control - Testing of Operating Effectiveness from an outside agency as on 31¢
March, 2019.

Based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to the
subsidiary companies, associates and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India,
is based solely on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in
India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For KASHYAP SIKDAR AND COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 001 6;5311\ I

)

Place:-New Delhi Arunava'Sik
Date: 16/09/2025 (PARTNER J~
UDIN: 2.5 624 053 6 ™2 TN 7225 Membership No. 089003



Pigj tlevd Limited

Caasolidated Batance Shicet as at March 21, 2019

sl oty i ANKR Crores, vedoss aoihervise siciod;

As at
Notes March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 608.88 825.80
Capital work-in-progress 8247 40.76
Investment property 5 88.56 90.21
Intangible assets 6 53.48 59.75
Intangible assets under development - -
Financial assets 7
Investments Ta 110.67 29.73
Loans 7b 0.18 5.73
Others 7f 332.69 379.22
Other bank balances Te - -
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 36.88 1,466.63
Other non-current assets 9 119.39 189.36
1,433.20 3,087.18
Current assets
Inventories 10 74.66 151.98
Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress) 349.53 4,788.83
Financial assets 7
Trade receivables e 486.30 1,847.73
Cash and cash equivalents 7d 155.72 376.54
Other bank balances Te 156.74 20243
Loans 7b 6.37 17.63
Others 71 131.73 212.55
Current tax assets (net) 93.05 97.68
Other current assets 9 167.65 397.97
1,621.75 8,093.34
Total assets 3,054.95 11,180.52
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 67.12 67.12
Other equity (13,529.11) (2,098.11)
Share application money pending allotment - S
Equity attributable to owners (13,461.99) (2,030.99)
Non-controlling interest (9.24) 421
(13,471.23) (2,026.78)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12a 341.06 987.57
Provisions 13 16.14 26.04
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 35.28 262.39
392.48 1,276.00
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 12b 6,350.51 4,652.85
Trade payables 3,657.79 2,744.86
Other financial liabilities 12¢ 427411 2,785.02
Other current liabilities 14 1,597.33 1,622.74
Provisions 13 198.69 68.39
Current tax liabilities (net) 5527 57.44
16,133.70 11,931.30
Total equity and liabilities 3.054.95 11,180.52
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement
This is the consolidated balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.
Chartered Accountanty-

#,
|
Arifnava Sik

Partner i @/bd Acg
Membership No.: ()

Place: Delhi
Date: \ 6\ o q\ 2525

For and on behalf of Punj Lloyd Limited

Adhish Swifoop

Company Secretary

A

Ashwini Mehra
Liquidator
Reg. No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00388/2017-18/10706




Puni Llovd Limited
Consolidated Statement of Prolit nd Loss Tor the vear endg Viarcel ‘-;. 2() ]

Notes Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Income
Revenue from operations 15 2,133.63 5,080.37
Other income 16 650.05 505.40
Total income 2,783.68 5,585.77
Expenses
Projects materials consumed and cost of traded goods sold 1,589.48 2,236.10
Employee benefits expense 17 605.55 583.98
Bank Guarantee Encashment 1,928.55 -
Provision for unbilled revenue 2,726.70 -
Provision for receivables 1,176.21 543.36
Other expenses 18 3.341.49 2,204.36
Total expenses 11,367.97 5,567.80
Earnings before interest (finance costs), tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) (8,584.29) 17.97
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 121.17 194.06
Finance costs 20 1,436.47 1,087.49
Loss before share of loss in associates / joint ventures (net) and tax (10,141.93) (1,263.59)
Share of loss of associates / joint ventures (net) 5.09 (9.92)
Loss before tax (10,136.84) (1,273.51)
Tax expenses 21
- Current tax 8.12 (2.20)
- Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement / written off (net) - -
- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (1.45) (0.48)
- Deferred tax 1,202.13 (1,199.00)
Total tax expense 1,208.80 (1,201.68)
Loss for the year (11,345.64) (71.83)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
A, OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations and subsidiaries 29.81 (138.91)
Net OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years 29.81 (138.91)
B. OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 3.17 8.09

Net gain/ (loss) on FVTOCI of equity securities (59.00) 2.32
Net OCI not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years (55.83) 10.41
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (refer note 8) (26.02) (128.50)
Total comprehensive income for the year (11,371.66) (200.33)
Loss is attributable to :

Equity holders of the parent (11,330.93) (68.76)
Non-controlling interests (14.71) (3.07)
(11,345.64) (71.83)

OCl is attributable to :
Equity holders of the parent (26.02) (127.44)

Non-controlling interest - (1.06)
(26.02) (128.50)

Total comprehensive income is attributable to :

Equity holders of the parent (11,356.95) (196.20)

Non-controlling interest (14.71) (4.13)
(11,371.66) (200.33)

Eamings per equity share [nominal value per share Rs. 2 each (Previous year Rs. 2)] 22

Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) (337.64) (2.05)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Punj Lloyd Limited

Firm registration number: 016253N ]
UDIN No, 255 2% o WNZ\N”I s

%bw @

+
Arunava Sikdar
Partner 2
Membership No.: 08

Adhish Swaroop
Company Secretary

Ashwini Mehra
Liquidator
Place: Delhi Reg. No: IBBV/IPA-001/1P-P00388/2017-18/10706

Date: \ ¢, !OC] )20'7—")_
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Puoj Llovd Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Wows for the year ended Marels 31, 2019

Al i ; .t
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Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (10,136.84) (1,273.50)
Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 121.17 194.06
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, plant and machinery (net) 168.74 (9.65)
(Profit) / loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary / joint ventures 0.00 0.00
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net) 38.39 (34.59)
Unspent liabilities and provisions written back (5.38) (121.84)
Derivative premium on hedged borrowing 3.13 (2.00)
Itrecoverable balances and other assets written off 3,902.91 597.14
Provision for foreseeable losses 39.94 15.67
Provision for major maintenance 3.15 (7.36)
Net gain on sale of long-term investments 0.00 (9.84)
Employee share based payment expense 0.00 0.00
Share of loss in associates / joint ventures (net) (5.09) 9.92
Interest expense 1,394.32 951.39
Interest (income) (74.15) (80.12)
Dividend (income) (0.00) 0.00
Operating profit before working capital changes (4,549.68) 229.28
Movement in working capital:
Trade payables 980.28 171.78
Provisions 123.55 397
Financial liabilities (0.08) (0.11)
Other current liabilities (24.55) (1,074.48)
Trade receivables 191.05 (518.21)
Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress) 1,752.53 1,524.71
Inventories (76.08) (30.99)
Financial assets 75.85 4143
Other current assets 293.34 174.64
Cash generated from operations (1,233.79) 522.02
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (14.65) (34.38)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) (1,248.44) 487.64
‘Cush flow from investing setivities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments, including CWIP and capital advances (136.58) (35.06)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments (30.38) 26.20
Acquisition of non-controling interest in a subsidiary (55.85) (54.76)
Proceeds from sale of non-current investments (net) 0.00 43.90
(Investments)/ Redemption/maturity in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 17.17 (1.83)
Interest received 13.37 23.06
Dividends received 0.00 0.00
Decrease/ (Increase) in margin money deposits 27.89 (60.49)
(164.38) (58.98)
Proceeds from long-term borrowmgs (134.64) 12.55
Repayment of long-term borrowings (0.38) (594.65)
Proceeds/ (Repayment) from short-term borrowings (net) 1,697.65 452.59
Interest paid (408.81) (561.49)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 0.00 0.07
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 1,153.82 (690.93)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (259.00) (262.27)
Exchange difference 44.29 13.70
Cash outflow on deconsolidation of subsidiaries & joint ventures 1.70 (2.09)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year . 361.87 612.53

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 148.86 361.87




Punj Lloyd Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
(A ampuits in ANR Crores, wiless odhiervise siaicd)

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

- On current accounts 90.92 258.13

- On EEFC accounts 6.17 69.83

- Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 57.29 47.04
Cash on hand 1.34 1.54
Less : Book overdraft (6.86) (14.67)
Total cash and cash equivalents [Refer notes 7(d) & 12(c)] 148.86 361.87

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

This is the consolidated statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants e For and on behalf of Punj Lloyd Limited

UDIN No D 6 B 2 AR 11225

W - "
nava Sikdar Adhish Swaroop
Partner Company Secretary
Membership No.: 089003
Ashwini Mehra
Liquidator
Place: Delhi Reg. No: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00388/2017-18/10706

Date: \ 6 l oq ' 29'2,'5
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1. Corporate information

Punj Lloyd Limited (“the Company” or “Corporate Debtor” or “CD”) is a public limited company domiciled in India. lts equity shares are listed on two
recognized stock exchanges in India. The principal place of business of the Company is located at New Delhi, India. The Company is primarily engaged in the
business of engineering, procurement and construction in the oil, gas and infrastructure sectors. The Company caters to both domestic and intemational
markets. The Company is currently undergoing Liquidation as a going concemn pursuant to the order of the Hon'ble NCLT dated May 27, 2022. Trading in the
equity shares of the Company has been suspended w.e.f. Friday, October 07, 2022 on both the recognized stock exchanges on account of initiation of
Liquidation proceedings by the Hon'ble NCLT.

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 were authorized for issue by the Liquidator of the Company.

The Company along with its subsidiaries, associates and joint venture has been collectively hereinafier referred to as “the Group™.

2. Significant accounting policies
(a)  DBasis of preparation
(i)  Compliance with Ind AS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared and comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

(ii) Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and historical cost basis, except for the following:

e  certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value;
e  certain items of property, plant and equipments which have been fair valued on the transition date

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard require a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

(iii) “The holding Company was admitted to the CIRP pursuant to an application filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench,
New Delhi (“NCLT/ Adjudicating Authority”) by ICICI Bank Limited against Punj Lloyd Limited, under Section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (“Code”) read with the rules and regulations framed thereunder, as amended from time to time. The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order (**Admission Order”)
dated March 08, 2019 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”) had admitted the application for the initiation of the corporate insolvency resolution process
(“CIRP”) of the Holding Company. Subsequently, the NCLT vide its order dated May 22, 2019 appointed Mr. Ashwini Mehra (IBBI Reg. No: IBBI/IPA-
001/IP-P00388/2017-18/10706) as the Resolution Professional (“RP”) of the Holding Company.

During CIRP, the RP had received a resolution plan which was put to vote for consideration of Committee of Creditors (“CoC”). The resolution plan put to
vote was not approved by the CoC. Subsequently, a meeting of the CoC was held on March 30, 2021 wherein the members of the CoC recommended that the
liquidator should first explore sale of the Holding Company as a going concern under Regulation 32(e) of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Board of India
(Liquidation Process) Regulations, 2016 (“Liquidation Regulations”) or sale of business of Company as a going concern under Regulation 32(f) of Liquidation
Regulations. The CoC also suggested that a scheme of arrangement under section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013 should be run simultaneously, in the interest
of time.

Based on the decision taken by CoC, the RP on April 01, 2021, filed an application under section 33 of the Code to pass appropriate orders for liquidation of
the Holding Company as a ‘going concem’.

The Hon’ble NCLT, Principal Bench vide order dated May 27, 2022 (published on May 31, 2022) ("Liquidation Order") approved the Liquidation of the
Holding Company as a going concem in accordance with Section 33 of the Code and in terms of the Liquidation Order Mr. Ashwini Mehra (IBBI Reg. No:
IBBVIPA-001/IP-P00388/2017-18/10706), erstwhile RP has been appointed as the Liquidator of the Holding Company.

Further, with effect from May 27, 2022, the Liquidator shall have powers and duties, as provided in Section 34 and 35 of the Code, including but not limited
to:

i. The powers of the Board of Directors, key managerial personnel and the partners of the Company, as the case may be, shall cease to have effect and shall be
vested in the Liquidator;

ii. The Liquidator shall take into his custody or control all the assets, property, eftects, and actionable claims of the holding Company;
iii. The Liquidator shall act and execute in the name and on behalf of the holding Company all deeds, receipts, and other documents, if any;
iv. Other duties as prescribed under the Code.

The powers and duties mentioned above are not exhaustive and do not cover all powers and duties of the Liquidator provided under Section 35 of the Code,
read in con]unctlon with the quuldatlon chulnucns. ;wmge tutther refer to Section 35 of the Code and its comresponding regulations in the Liquidation
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Punj Ltovd Limited
Notes to consolidated tinancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
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The Companies Act 2013 (as amended) (the ‘Act’) under section 134 (1) states that the financial statement shall be approved by the Board of Directors and
thereafter signed on behalf of the Board by the chairperson of the holding company where he is authorised by the Board or by two directors out of which one
shall be Managing Director, if any, and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Company Secretary of the holding
company, wherever they are appointed, for submission to the auditor for his report thereon. Upon commencement of the CIRP, the powers of the Board of
Directors of the holding Company stand extinguished and are exercised by the Resolution Professional (RP) and upon commencement of the liquidation, these
powers are exercised by the Liquidator. These financial statements pertain to the period both prior and post commencement of CIRP. It may be noted that the
Liquidator (erstwhile Resolution Professional) was not involved with the holding Company in any manner during FY 2018-2019. All practical and reasonable
efforts have been made to gather details to prepare these financial statements and despite various challenges and complex circumstances, best possible efforts
have been put to provide information required by the auditors for the purpose of carrying out the audit. The Promoter / Ex. Managing Director, Mr. Atul Punj
is continuing as Director in the holding Company while other Directors had resigned on or before commencement of the CIRP. These financial statements have
been signed by the Liquidator while exercising the powers of the Board of Directors of the holding Company, which has been conferred upon him in terms of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. Liquidator has signed these financial statements for discharging his duty under the Liquidation Process, governed
by the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and IBBI (Liquidation Process) Regulations, 2016 and 1BBI (Liquidation Process) Regulations, 2016. (In view
of order of Hon’ble NCLAT in the matter of Mukund Chaudhary vs S. K. Kundra (RP of CLC Industries Ltd, Directors are also liable to sign the balance
sheet).

To complete the liquidation of the holding Company as a going concem in accordance with the directions provided by the Hon’ble NCLT in the Liquidation
Order and Regulation 32A read with Regulation 32 of the IBBI (Liquidation Process) Regulations, 2016, the Liquidator had issued an Invitation for the
submission of binding bids for acquisition of Punj Lloyd Limited “in liquidation” on a going concem basis vide Public Announcement dated 13™ August 2022
and also issued an Asset Sale Process Memorandum dated 13" August 2022 and subsequently also issued four addendums to the Asset Sale Process
Memorandum dated 13" August 2022 (“Asset Sale Process Memorandum”), which set out the process for submission of a binding Bid and participation in the
subsequent E-Auction for the selection of the Successful Bidder in accordance with the Provisions of the Code. Pursuant to this invitation, the Liquidator
received two bids, for acquisition of the holding Company on a going concern basis.

However, the Stakeholder Consultation Committee (“SCC”) in its Sth meeting held on 20" March 2023, advised the Liquidator to not to consider the Binding
Bids, submitted by two Bidders, as the members of SCC were not satisfied with the contours of implementation and the value offered in the Bids.
Subsequently, the SCC in its 6th meeting held on 12" May 2023 has advised the Liquidator to resume the ongoing going concem sale process of the holding
Company by seeking fresh offers from all interested/prospective buyers and incorporating necessary amendments in the Asset Sale Process Memorandum
dated 13th August 2022. In the same meeting, the SCC members in accordance with the Regulation 31A of the IBBI (Liquidation Process) Regulations 2016
has approved the terms of the Amended & Restated Asset Sale Process Memorandum along with the Reserve Price for sale of the holding Company on a going
concern basis.

Subsequently, the Liquidator conducted multiple rounds of e-auction for sale of various Set of Assets of the holding Company, including the sale of the
holding Company on a going concern basis and sale of various assets of the holding Company on an ‘as is where is’ “as is what is’ ‘as is how is’, ‘whatever
there is’ and without any recourse basis without an representation, warranty or indemnity by the holding Company, the Liquidator or any other Person, in
accordance with the advice of the SCC under Regulation 31A of the Liquidation Regulations. Accordingly, certain assets of the holding Company have been
successfully sold in these e-auction rounds, except sale of the holding Company on a going concem basis.

Further, the Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 25" March 2025 has extended the liquidation period of the Holding Company till 11% September 2025. The
Liquidator has filed for further extension of Liquidation period before the Hon’ble NCLT.

(1)  Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Punj Lloyd Limited (‘the Company”), its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

as at March 31, 2019. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

(i) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
(ii) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
(iii) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retums.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

(ii) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

(iii) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

(iv) The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the aforementioned
three elements of control. Consolidation of an investee begins when the Group obtains control over the investee and ceases when the Group loses control of the
investee. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of an investee acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the investee.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member
of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the

-
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Punj Llovd Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2019
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The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company. When the end
of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information
as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is
impracticable to do so.

Consolidation Procedure

(a) Subsidiaries

(i)  Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income
and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition
date.

(i)  Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business
combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

(iif)  Eliminate in full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits
or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intra-group
losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS-12 “Income Taxes” applies to temporary
differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests. Where cumulated losses attributable to the non-controlling interest are in excess of Group’s net investment in investee, the same is
accounted for by the Group, in the absence of any contractual or legal obligations on non controlling interest. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets (mcludmg goodwill), liabilities, the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests and
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment
retained. Any surplus or deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(b) Investment in associates and joint arrangements

Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

Joint arrangements
Under Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements, investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint arrangement.

- Joint operations
The Group recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. These have been incorporated in the financial statements under the appropriate headings.

- Joint ventures
A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The consolidated statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of
those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equlty Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (whlch includes any long term
interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group. Afer application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an 1mpa1rmem loss on its investment in its nswua!l, oF joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the associate or joint venture is ity Ar Ihe \: IS such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of 1mpa1rment as the dxffelence between the
recoverable amount of the associate or 301!11
in the statement of profit or loss.




Punj Llovd Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Upon loss of signilicant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or Joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss

The group discontinue the use of equity method from the date the investment is classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105-Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and measures the interest in associate and joint venture held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell.

(c)  Business combination and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Group has elceted 1o apply Ind AS accounting for business combinations
prospectively from April 1, 2015, As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date, including goodwill, have
been carried forward with minimal adjustment. The same first time adoption exemption is also used for associates and joint ventures.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred
measured al acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. In respect to the business combination for acquisition of
subsidiary, the Group has opted to measure, the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Al the acquisition date, the identifinble assets nequired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the
liabilities assumed include contingent linbilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact
that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are
measured at the basis indicated as mentioned herginafter;

i) Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.
(i) Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based pnyment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the Group

entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the
acquisition date.

(1ii) Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.
(iv) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not

consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

(d) Change in ownership interest

The group treats transaction with non-controlling interests that do not resuit in a loss of control as transaction with the equity owners of the group. A change in
ownership interest results in adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest to reflect their relative interest in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within
equity.

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fuir value of the net assets acquired is in excess
of the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear
evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain direetly in equity as ¢apital reserve, without routing the same through OCL

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed
operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination oceurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement
period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

(f)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, but including capital work-in-progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Freehold land is carried at historical cost. The cost includes the purchase price and expenditure that i@'djmnﬂg%uributablc to bringing the asset to
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

The Group adjusts exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a
depreciable asset to the cost of the asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset. In accordance with Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(“MCA”™) circular dated August 09, 2012, exchange differences adjusted to the cost of tangible assets are total differences, arising on long-term foreign
currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset, for the period. In other words, the Group does not differentiate between exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost and other exchange differences.

Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and de-recognition

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost, net of the residual values, over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Description Useful lives (years)
Factory buildings 30
Other buildings 60
Plant and equipment 3-20
Fumiture and fixtures, office equipments and tools 3-20
Vehicles 3-10

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases, including assets acquired under sale and lease back transactions, is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use thereof, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the assets, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The useful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively.

(g Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and impairment losses, if any.

Development expenditures are recognized as an intangible asset when the Group is able to demonstrate:
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

how the asset will generate future economic benefits

the availability of resources to complete the asset

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

The Group amortizes intangible assets with finite lives using the straight-line method over the period of licenses or based on the nature and estimated useful
economic life, i.e., six years, whichever is lower.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The amortized period and the method is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.
Policy for service concession intangible assets is disclosed separately under concession assets in next paras.
(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGU to which
the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/ forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless
an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries or
countries in which the Group operates, or.for 1}_15 arket in which the asset is used. =
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Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. The reversal is limited so that the camrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been, had no impairment loss been recognized. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(i) Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as an investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, i.e., 60 years.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or
loss in the period of de-recognition.

(j)  Sale and lease back transactions

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, the profit or loss, i.e., excess or deficiency of sale proceeds over the carrying amounts is deferred
and amortized over the lease term in proportion to the depreciation of the leased asset. The unamortized portion of the profit is classified under “Other
liabilities” in the consolidated financial statements.

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, profit or loss is recognized immediately in case the transaction is established at fair value. If the
sale price is below fair value, the loss is recognized immediately except that, if the loss is compensated by future lease payments at below market price,
it is deferred and amortized in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to be used. If the sale price is above fair
value, the profit is deferred and amortized over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.

(k) Leases
Where the Group is the lessee

Lease where the Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the
lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Group’s general policy on the borrowing costs (see note 2(1)).

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain the
ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the lease term of the asset.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group, as lessee, are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increase.

Where the Group is the lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Lease income
from operating lease is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are classified in the balance sheet
based on their nature.

() Inventorles

Project materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the materials to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Scrap is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

(m) Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress)
Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress) is valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the es_gimalll_gd selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completio “estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. 1ap Slker
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(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are exclusive of taxes or duties collected on
behalf of third parties. The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and specific criteria, as described below, are met for each of the Group’s activities.

i) Contract revenue associated with long term construction contracts is recognized as revenue by reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the
balance sheet date. The stage of completion of project is determined by the proportion that contracts costs incurred for the work performed up to the
balance sheet date bear to the estimated total contract costs. However, profit is not recognized unless there is reasonable progress on the contract. If total
cost of a contract, based on technical and other estimates, is estimated to exceed the total contract revenue, the foreseeable loss is provided for. The
effect of any adjustment arising from revisions to estimates is included in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which revisions are made,
Contract revenue eamed in excess of billing is classified as “Unbilled revenue (work-in-progress)” and billing in excess of contract revenue is classified
under “Other liabilities” in the consolidated financial statements. Claims on construction contracts are included based on Management’s estimate of the
probability that they will result in additional revenue, they are capable of being reliably measured, there is a reasonable basis to support the claim and
that such claims would be admitted either wholly or in part. The Group assesses the carrying value of various claims periodically, and makes
adjustments for any unrecoverable amount arising from the legal and arbitration proceedings that they may be involved in from time to time. Insurance
claims are accounted for on acceptance/settiement with insurers.

ii)  Revenue from long term construction contracts executed in unincorporated joint ventures under work sharing arrangements is recognized on the same
basis as similar contracts independently executed by the Group. Revenue from unincorporated joint ventures under profit sharing arrangements is
recognized to the extent of the Group's share in unincorporated joint ventures.

jii)  Revenue from hire charges is accounted for in accordance with the terms of agreements with the customers.
iv)  Revenue from management services is recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when the services are rendered.

v)  Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is generally accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss. These are accounted for otherwise where the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in
line with expected general inflation, to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases.

vi) Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

vii) Dividend income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders of the investee
approve the dividend.

viii) Export Benefit under the Duty Free Credit Entitlements is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when right to receive license as per terms of the
scheme is established in respect of exports made and there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the export proceeds.

ix)  Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on
delivery of the goods.

x)  Recognition of income from financial service concession assets is explained under concession assets policy below.

(0) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the
extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(p) Foreign currencies

i)  Functional and presentatidn currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Group’s functional and presentation
currency.

ii)  Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences resulting from the settlement or translation of such transactions are generally recognized in profit or loss, except the following:

a. Exchange differences are deferred in equity if they are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation. They are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income (OCI) and reclassified to statement of profit and loss on disposal of the net investment, as part of gain or loss on disposal.
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b. Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign cutrency monetary items (recognized upto 31 March 2016), related to acquisition of a depreciable
asset are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining usciul life of the asset.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also
recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

iii)  Translation of foreign operations / subsidiaries
The results and financial position of foreign operations / subsidiaries that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into

the presentation currency as follows:
. Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate of exchange at the reporting date,

o Income and expenses are translated at quarterly average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transaction), and
. All resulting exchange differences are recognized in OCL.

On disposal of a foreign operation / subsidiaries, the component of OC] relating to that particular foreign operation / subsidiaries are recognized in profit or
loss.

Cumulative currency translation differences for all foreign operations / subsidiaries are deemed to be zero at the date of transition, i.e. April 01, 2015. Gain or
loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation / subsidiaries excludes translation differences that arose before the date of transition but
comprises only translation differences arising after the transition date.

(q) Financial instruments

Financial Instruments (assets and liabilities) are recognized when the Group becomes a party to a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities, other than those designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss.

A. Financial assets

(i) Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement depends on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its financial assets.

L] Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): The Group has investments which are not held for trading. The Group has elected an
irrevocable option to present the subsequent changes in fair values of such investments in other comprehensive income. Amounts recognized in OCI are
not subsequently reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

] Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets in the nature of debt instruments. Financial assets
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments, if any, entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109.

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies Ind AS 109 for recognizing impairment losses using Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. Impairment is recognized for all financial assets
subsequent to initial recognition, other than financial assets in FVTPL category. The impairment losses and reversals are recognized in statement of
profit and loss.

(iii) De-recognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the same are transferred.

B.  Financial liabilities

(i)  Subsequent measurement

There are two measurement categories into which the Group classifies its financial liabilities.

. Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and Iolssegj-anf:ﬁrccogniscd in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecogni through the EIR amortisation
UL (e
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process. Amoitised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the LIR.
The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

. Financial labilities at FVTPL: Financial liabilities are classified as F'V'I'PL when the financial liabilities are held for trading or are designated as
FVTPL on initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for (rading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as cffective
hedging instruments, Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

(ii) De-recognition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
C.  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(r) Fair value measurement

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumption that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabilily, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Where fair value is based on quoted prices from active market.
Level 2 — Where fair value is based on significant direct or indirect observable market inputs.
Level 3 — Where fair value is based on one or more significant input that is not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers is required
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) (a) on the date of the event or change in circumstances or (b) at the end of each reporting period.

(s) Derivative Financial Instruments

For certain financial instruments, the Group utilises derivative financial instruments to reduce fluctuation in interest rates to hedge its interest rate risk.
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at their fair value on the date, a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining hedged item is more than 12 months, and as a
current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of
changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the effective portion
of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis
adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the statement of profit and loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the statement of profit and loss within ‘Finance Cost’.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the statement of
profit and loss.

() Concession Assets

Administrative authorization granted by the public bodies to the Group for the construction and later maintenance of highways are accounted as service
concession asset. Concession assets are classified as:

Financial assets: Where service concession agreement provides an unconditional right to the Group to receive cash or other financial assets from the granting
authority.

Intangible assets: Where service concession agreement does not provide an unconditional right to the Group to receive cash or other financial assets from the
granting authority.

The construction service counterpart is a receivable which also includes a financial remuneration. lt is calculated based upon the project’s expected rate of
retumn in line with its estimate flow, which includes inflation forecasts. Once the construction has finished, the Group.re-gstimates the fair value of the
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the receivables are valued at amortized cost and any differences between actual and expected flows are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Unless the circumstances affecting concession asset {lows significantly change (economical re-balances approved by the granting authority, contract
enhancement, ctc.,) the rate of retwn is not modified. Economic rebalancing is only considered for calculating the value of a tinancial asset when the
grantor has vested right to receive cash or other financial assets.

Income from concession financial assets is classified by the Group as interest income under operative revenue, since it is part of the Group’s general activity,
which is exercised on a regular basis and generates income periodically.

(u) Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits, that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are recognized up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid on
settlement of such liabilities. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for eamed and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the
reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet since the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:
. Defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, and
. Defined contribution plans such as provident fund and pension fund

Gratuity obligations

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for employees employed in India. The Group has obtained group gratuity scheme policies from Life
Insurance Corporation of India and ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Group Limited to cover the gratuity liability of these employees. The difference in
the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting period is recognized as a liability or asset,
as the case may be, in the balance sheet. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
included in the employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur,
directly in OCI.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as
past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Group makes contribution to statutory provident fund and pension funds as per local regulations. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee benefits in overseas locations

In overseas branches and unincorporated joint venture operation, provision for retirement and other employee benefits are recognized as prescribed in the local
labour laws of the respective country, for the accumulated period of service at the end of the financial year.

(v) Income taxes

Income tax comprises current income tax and deferred tax. The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable
income, based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction where the Group operates, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributed to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax
laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generate taxable income,

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements .Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of reporting pcrigg‘ ﬂqﬂ,&rﬁ expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realized or the deferred tax liability is settled,
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred lax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset (o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OC1 or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is recognized in OCI or directly in equity, respectively.

(w) Scgment reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

(x) Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for the events such as bonus issue, share split or otherwise that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(y) Share-based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equily instruments
(equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model. The fair value of the options granted is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the option granted:

. including any market performance conditions (e.g., the Group’s share price),

. excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g., profitability, sales growth targets and remaining and employee
of the entity over a specified time period), and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g., the requirement for employees to save or holding shares for a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

(z) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for the purposes of cash flow statement, comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

(aa) Dividends

The Group recognized a liability for the amount of any dividend declared when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion
of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the shareholders.

(bb) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. A disclosure is made for a contingent liability when there is a:

a)  possible obligation, the existence of which will be confirmed by the occurrence/non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events, not fully with in the
control of the Group;

b)  present obligation, where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setle the obligation;

c) present obligation, where a reliable estimate cannot be made.

(cc) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the effect of the time value of money is expected-te-be-material, provisions are measured at the present value of zment’s best estimate of the
chid of the reporting period. The discount rate used fg- {{@r}ﬁi& 1 esent value is a pre-tax
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rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, (he increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

(dd) Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time betwecen the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents and the management considers
this to be the project period.

(ec) Measurement of EBITDA

As permitted by the Guidance Note on the Division 11 of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has elected to present eamings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. In its measurement, the Company
does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

(ff)  Current and Non-Current Classification:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance Sheet based on Current/Non-Current classification.
An Asset is treated as Current when it is —

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

(gg) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is no due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at authorized cost using the effective interest method.

3.

a) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the management to muke Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
und estimates could result in outcomes that require o material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future period.

Critical estimates and judgements
In applying the accounting policies, following are the items/ areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity and which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions tuming out to be different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may
have a financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Fair valuation of unlisted securities:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using intenationally accepted valuation principles. The inputs to
these valuations are taken from observable markets wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considertions of inputs such as discount rates, liquidity risk, credit risk, earning growth factors and volatility. Changes in
assutnptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Revenue recognition:

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method (POCM) in accounting for its long term construction contracts. Use of POCM requires the Group to
estimate the total cost to complete a contract. Changes in the factors underlying the estimation of the total contract cost could affect the amount of revenue
recognized.

Impairment of financial assets:
The Group basis the impairment provisions for financial assets on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates, The Group uses Jjudgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculations, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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Impairment of non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). The
recoverable amount is sensitive to inputs like discount rate, expected future cash-inflows and growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined benefit plan (employee benefits):

The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and other employee benefits and the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increase and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Taxes:

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company neither has any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available that could support the recognition of unused tax losses
and unabsorbed depreciation as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Company has accounted for deferred tax assets on temporary differences, including
unabsorbed depreciation and business losses, for which it is reasonably certain that future taxable income would be generated.

b) Recent accounting pronouncements

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified Ind AS 116 — Lease and certain amendment to existing Ind AS. These
amendments shall be applicable to the Company from April 01, 2019.

Issues of Ind AS 116 — Leases

Ind AS 116 will replace existing leasing standard i.e. Ind AS 17 and related interpretations. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all lease with non-cancellable period of more than twelve months except for low value assets. Ind AS 116
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirement in Ind AS 17.

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards
(i) Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
(ii) Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations
(iif) Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments
(iv) Ind AS 111 - Joint Arrangements
(v) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
(vi) Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits
(vii) Ind AS 23 — Borrowing Costs
(viii) Ind AS 28 — Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

Application of above standard are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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4. Property, plant and equipment

Buildings Plant and Fumiture Tools Vehicles Total
equipment and fixlures
Gross carrying amount
At April 01,2017 101.85 100.59 2,218.04 3932 13.21 73.89 2,546.90
Additions 0.00 6.26 24.20 0.39 1.90 9.99 42.74
Disposals (-) 0.92 12.58 170.98 4.74 0.12 6.48 195.82
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other adjustments 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Exchange differences 0.00 0.00 0.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.32
R acy 0.00 0.00 42.57 0.59 0.00 3.6l 46.77
translation
At fviareh 3i, 2018 100.93 94.27 2,114.15 3556 14,99 81,01 2,440.91
Additions - 0.13 8.66 0.09 0.05 - 8.93
Disposals(-) - - 484.66 13.67 3.08 40.79 542.20
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) - - 65.05 0.17 0.00 3.29 68.51
Other adjustments
e O g ; 19.07 0.27 - 1.59 20.93
translation
At March 31, 2019 100.93 94.40 1,592.17 2208 11.96 38.52 1,860.06
Accumulated depreciation
At April 01,2017 0.00 15.38 1,445.63 35.72 7.93 69.47 1,574.13
Charge for the year 0.00 3.66 174.69 1.79 1.03 3.98 185.15
Disposals(-) 0.00 11.02 157.93 3.93 0.12 6.27 179.27
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Foreign gurrency - - 3115 047 . 3.48 35.10
translation
At Marech 31, 2018 0.00 8.02 1,493.54 34.05 .84 70.66 1,615.11
Charge for the year 0.00 2.83 108.11 1.14 0.63 2.53 115.24
Disposals(-) 0.00 0.00 347.09 13.76 3.08 39.90 403.83
Disposal of subsidiaries (-) 0.00 0,00 4991 0.06 0.00 2.03 52.00
Other adjustments
Foreign currency
grasalatian - - (25.04) 0.25 - 1.45 (23.34)
At March 31, 2019 _0.00 10.85 1,179.61 21.62 6.39 32.71 1,251.18
Net block
At March 31, 2018 100.93 86.24 620.61 1.51 6,15 10.36 825,80
At March 31, 2019 00.9: 83.55 412,56 0.46 5.57 A 6(8.88

a.  The Group has elected to adjust exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items, pertaining to
acquisition of a depreciable asset, to the cost of such asset. Accordingly, during the current year, foreign exchange loss of INR 5.62 Crore (Previous year:

foreign exchange gain of INR 0.45 Crore) has been adjusted in the gross block of plant and equipment.

b.  Gross block of plant and equipment includes equipment of cost INR 66.47 Crore (Previous year INR 68.34 Crore) taken on finance lease. Accumulated
depreciation thereon is INR 66.47 Crore (Previous year INR 68.34 Crore).

¢.  Forassets pledged as security, refer notes 12(a) and 12(b) and for capital commitments refer note 28. The holding Company is in liquidation with effect
from 27" May 2022 and as per section 52(1)(a), secured creditors have relinquished their security interest to the liquidation estate and agreed to receive
proceeds from the sale of assets in the manner specified in section 53 of IBC, 2016. Refer www.punjlloydgroup.com for updated list of stakeholders.
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5. Investment properties

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 99.20 98.76
Additions i 0.44
Closing gross carrying amount 99.20 99.20
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 8.99 7.34
Charge for the year 1.65 1.65
(Ilnsins accumulaied dg;rwinlion 10.64 &90
Net carrying amount 88.56 90.21
Amounts recognized in profit or loss for investment properties

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Rental income 720 6.62
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income (0.07) (0.07)
Direct operating expenses from property that did not generated rental income (0.06) (0.66)
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 7.07 5.89
Depreciation (1.65) (1.65)
Profit from investment propertics 5.42 4.24
There is no contractual obligation for repairs, maintenance or enhancements which has not been recognized as Tability.

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Within one year 7.61 6,62
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 2.09 9.70
Later than five years 1 -
Fair Value

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Investment properties 107.20 102.27
The fair value has been derived based on market observable inputs for identical assets.
6. Intangible assets

Concession assets Computer software Total

Gross carrying amount
At April 01, 2017 387.88 29.03 416.91
Additions - 2.94 294
Disposals(-) 315.94 0.02 315.96
Disposal of subsidiaries(-) - - -
Other adjustments

Foreign currency translation - (0.36) (0.36)
At March 31, 2018 71.94 31.59 103.53
Additions - < ]
Disposals(-) - 4.19 4.19
Disposal of subsidiaries(-) - 5 g
Other adjustments - -

Foreign currency translation - 0.00 0.00
At March 31, 2019 71.94 27.40 99.34
Accumulated amortization
At April 01, 2017 3522 25.15 60.37
Charge for the year 5.56 1.70 7.26
Disposals(-) 23.51 0.02 23.53
Disposal of subsidiaries(-) - - -
Other adjustments L J

Foreign currency translation - (0.32) (0.32)
At March 31, 2018 17.27 26.51 43.78
Charge for the year 288 1.40 428
Disposals(-) . 4.19 4.19
Disposal of subsidiaries(-) - - -
Other adjustments (0.84) 283 1.99

Foreign currency translation - 0.00 0.00
At March 31, 2019 19.31 = 45.86
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Net block

At March 31, 2018 54.67 5.08 59.75
At March 31, 2019 52,63 0.85 53.48

*One of the group company has entered into a long term power purchase agreement with a power purchasing company for sale of electricity being generated
from solar plants built in Rajasthan. Sale price of electricity is Rs. 12.73 per unit for long term period from financial year 2011 for a period of 25 years. On
routine operation and construction of the asset of the Group has eamed revenue of 10.75 (previous year 10.57) and incurmed 10.17 (previous year 10.60) as
expenses during the financial year ending March 31, 2019. As at March 31, 2019, the Group has accrued provisions for 10.05 (March 31, 2018: 21.01)
towards major maintenance for these intangible assets, based on present value of major maintenance to be incurred in future years. However, the company has
now been sold off in line with ongoing Liquidation proceedings of the Holding Company.

7. Financial assets

7(a) Investments

As at

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Fair valued through Other Comprehensive Income
Trade investments

Investment in subsidiary
Unquoted equity instruments

Investments in associates and joint ventures (accounted on equity method)
Unquoted equity instruments

Air Works India (Engineering) Private Limited 53.00 53.00

17,516,100 (previous year: 17,516,100) equity shares of Rs, 1 each fully paid up (including goodwill of 9.46).

Add: Share in opening accumulated losses (23.58) (13.66)

Add: Share in profit/(loss) for the year 5.60 (9.92)
35.02 29.42

Ramprastha Punj Lloyd Developers Private Limited

5,000 (previous year: 5,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 0.01 0.01

Add: Share in opening accumulated losses (0.01) (0.01)
Add: Share in profit/(loss) for the year - -

PLE TCI Engenharia Ltda
245,000 (previous year: 245,000) equity shares of BRL 1.00 each, only BRL 10,000 paid up 0.03 0.03
Add: Share in opening accumulated losses (0.03) (0.03)

Investment in Associates
PLN Constructions Ltd

200,000 (previous year: 200,000) equity shares of Rs 10.00 each fully paid up 3.09 -
Add: Share in opening accumulated profits -
Add: Share in profit/(loss) for the year 0.90

3.99 -
Domus Lloyd Contracting Ltd (Formerly known as Punj Lloyd Construction Contracting Co Ltd)
51,000 (previous year: 51,000) equity shares of SAR 20.00 fully paid up 69.01 -
Add: Share in opening accumulated profits
Add: Share in profit/(loss) for the year (1.39)

67.62 =

Investment in others

Unquoted equity instruments

Hazaribagh Ranchi Expressway Limited - 0.01
13,100 (previous year: 13,100) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

Non-trade

Investment in others

Unquoted equity instruments

Quoted equity instruments

Panasonic Energy India Company Limited 0.03 0.04
1,300 (previous year: 1,300) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up

Triton Corporation Limited 0.00 0.00
6,000 (previous year: 6,000) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Max India Limited 0.11 0.11
2,500 (previous year: 2,500) equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up
Kirloskar Pneumatics Canip y Limited 0.08
&
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1,000 (previous year: 1,000} equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up

Hindustan Oil Exploration Company Limited 0.08 0.07
6,133 (previous year: 6,133) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Reliance Naval and Engineering Limited 0.00 0.00
1,000 (previous year: 1,000) equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
Investments - Ind AS Adjustments 3.72 -
110.67 29.73
Carrying amount of quoted investments (Market value: 0.32 (Previous year 0.30)) 0.32 0.30
Carrying amount of unquoted investments 110.35 29.43
7(b) Loans
Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 0.16 5.73 5.81 8.93
Loan to employees 0.02 - 0.56 8.70
0.18 5.73 6.37 17.63
7(c) Trade receivables
As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Unsecured, considered good 486.30 1,847.73
Doubtful 69.75 104.13
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (69.75) (104.13)
Total receivables 486.30 1,847.73
Retention money included in total receivables 205.00 448.12
7 (d) Cash and cash equivalents
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balances with banks:
On current accounts # 90.92 258.13
On EEFC account 6.17 69.83
Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 57.29 47.04
Cash on hand 1.34 1.54
155.72 376.54
# Balance with banks in unpaid dividend accounts 0.07 0.15
7(e) Other bank balances
Current
As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 346 1.41
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1.96 21.18
Margin money deposit 151.32 179.84
156.74 202.43
7(f) Other financial assets
Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31,2019  March 31,2018  March 31,2019  March 31,2018
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to related parties - - - 79.31
Interest receivable - - 6.69 5.50
Investment held for disposal 0.00 - - 3.87
Option derivative - 13.04 11.87
Concession asset * 332.69 379.22 112,00 112.00
332,69 379.22
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*One of the Group company has entered into a service concession agreement with NHAI for construction of road from Khagaria to Purnea from KM 270.00 to
KM 410.00 in the state of Bihar executed on BOT (Annuity) basis. The Group is entitled to receive 29 semi-annual annuities of 56.00 each starting from
October 2014 to October 2028 from NHAL On routine operation of this asset, the Group has eamed revenue of INR 75.81 Crore (previous year INR 75.84
Crore) and incurred expenses of INR 84.47 Crore (previous year INR 85.19 Crore) during the financial year ended March 31,2019. While estimating the
financial assets of the Group based on cash flow projections, INR 160.33 Crore have been considered towards major maintenance / re-carpeting over a period
of 6 years starting from financial year 2020. However, the company has now been sold off in line with ongoing Liquidation proceedings of the Holding

Company.

8. Deferred tax (net)

As at

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Deferred tax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss in the current 0.23 20.99
year but allowable for tax purposes on payment basis
Unabsorbed tax losses 29.75 1,413.80
Others 6.90 31.84
Gross deferred tax assets 36.88 1,466.63
Deferred tax liability
Property, Plant and equipments, investment property & intangible assets 3528 39.09
Financial assets carried at fair value through OCI - 223.30
Others
Gross deferred tax liability 35.28 262.39
Net Deferred tax asset / (liability)* 1.60 1,204.24

Since the holding Company is in liquidation, it has become very less probable that any future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax assets to be

recovered and the same has been unrecognized during the year,

9. Other assets

Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
{Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances - - 85.94 -
Advances other than capital advances 0.07 78.99
Prepayments to vendors for supply of goods/ services - 381.68
Prepaid expenses 441 5.30 0.73 2.81
Others
Minimum altemate tax credit entit{ement 1.22 1.68 - -
Value added tax / sales tax recoverable (net) 113.69 182.38 1.44 0.84
Balances with statutory/ govemment authorities - - 0.55 12.64
119.39 189.36 167.65 397.97
10. Inventories
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Project materials 74.66 151.98
74.66 151.98
11. Equity share capital
As at
March 31, March 31,2018
2019
Authorized share capital
450,000,000 (previous year: 450,000,000 90.00 90.00
equity shares of Rs. 2 par value each
10,000,000 (previous year: 10,000,000 10.00 10.00
preference shares of Rs. 10 par value each
100.00 100.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
Equity shares of Rs. 2 par value 67.12 67.12
67.12 67.12
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Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31,2018
Nos Amount Nos Amount
At the beginning of the year 33,55,95,745 67.12 33,42,25,745 66.85
Exercise of Employee Stock Options - - 13,70,000 0.27
Outstanding as at the end of the year 33,55,95,745 67.12 33,55,95,745 67.12

(a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 2 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts in accordance with Section 53 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders of the Holding Company.

(b) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares in the Company

Spectra Punj Finance

Shareholder Name: LIC of India Cawdor Enterprises Limited * Private Limited *
Nos. % holding Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
As at March 31, 2018 1,83,52,701 5.47 7,56,91,430 22.55 2,04,85,361 6.10
As at March 31, 2019 1,76,95,664 5.27 - - - -

*Shareholding has been reduced to less than 5% during the year

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of
shares.

(¢) Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option plan (ESOP) of the Company, please refer note 24.

(d) Over the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2019, neither any bonus shares were issued nor any shares were allotted for consideration
other than cash. Further, no shares were bought back during the said period.

12. Financial liabilities

12 (a) Non-current borrowings

Non-current portion Current maturities
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2019  March 31.2018
Secured
Debentures
10.50% debentures redeemable at par at the end of 5 years from the deemed date - - 300.00
of allotment, i.e., October 15, 2010.
Secured by first charge on Flat No. 201, Satyam Apartment, Saru Section Road,
Jamnagar, Gujarat, India and subservient charge on the moveable tangible and
current assets of the Company.
12.00% debentures redeemable at par in ten equal half-yearly installments - - 135.00
beginning at the end of 5 years from the date of allotment, i.e., January 02, 2009.
Secured by first pari passu charge on the moveable tangible assets of the project
division of the Company and further secured by exclusive charge on the Flat No.
202, Satyam Apartment, Saru Section Road, Jamnagar, Gujarat, India.
Term loans
Indian rupee loan from banks
Loan carrying rate of interest of 12.75% (previous year: 12.75%), repayable in 17 - - 168.24

equal quarterly installments beginning at the end of 12 months from the date of
first disbursement.

Secured by way of first charge on the corporate éfﬁ_c_;éi.nﬂhq Company, at Plot
No. 78 & 95, and Medicity building situated al‘F(‘tnr 32an f%spcclivcly at
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Gurgaon, Haryana, India. Further secured by way of first pari passu charge on the
moveable tangible assets of the project division of the Company (up to 0.5 times
of loan outstanding).

Loan carrying rate of interest of 10.30%; (previous year: 9.70%), repayable in 25
structured unequal semi-annual installments.

Secured by way of charge on all moveable and immoveable tangible assets of a
subsidiary.

Loans carrying weighted average rate of interest of 10.58%; (previous year:
10.80%) repayable in 12 quarterly installments beginning at the end of 2 years
from the date of first disbursement.

Secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on entire Current Assets of the
company, both present and fulure, except receivables exclusively charged to
lenders of the company. First ranking pari-passu charge on movable and
immovable Tangible Assets of the company, both present and future, except those
specifically charged to others lenders of company. Collaterally secured by
personal guarantee of chaimman and managing director.

Further secured by pledge of 17,516,100 equity shares of Air Works India
(Engineering) Private Limited; first pari passu charge on the land & building at
Malanpur (M.P); pledge of 6,795,000 shares of Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited
and second charge on 73,004,316 shares of Company held by two promoter group
companies, pledged to IFCI Limited.

Loans carrying weighted average rate of interest of 12.26%; (previous
year:12.25%), repayable in 47 to 57 monthly installments beginning at the end of
12 months from the date of first disbursement.

Secured by first and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on certain specific
equipments financed through the loan.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 13.60%; (previous year 13.60%), repayable in 12
quarterly installments.

Secured by way of first pari passu charge on existing and future moveable
tangible assets of the project division of the Company.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 13.00% (previous year 13.00%), repayable in 36
monthly installments starting from October 2016.

Secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on entire current assets of the
Company, except receivables exclusively charged to other lenders of the
Company. First ranking pari-passu charge on movable and immovable tangible
assets of the Company, both present and future, except those specifically charged
to other lenders of Company.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 15%; (previous year: 13.25%), repayable in 12
equal quarterly installments after the moratorium period of 2 years from the date
of disbursement.

Secured by way of first pari passu charge on the moveable tangible assets of the
project division of the Company and subservient charge on the corporate offices
of the Company, at Plot No. 78 & 95, and Medicity building situated at Sector 32
and 38 respectively at Gurgaon, Haryana, India.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 10.91%; (previous year: 10.91%), repayable in 12
quarterly installments beginning at the end of 2 years from the date of first
disbursement.

Secured by way of first ranking pari-passu charge on the existing and future
current assets, except receivables of foreign projects financed by foreign lenders,
of the Company and first ranking pari-passu charge on the existing and future
movable and immovable tangible assets of the Company, except those specifically
charged to others lenders of Company. Collaterally secured by personal guarantee
of chairman and managing director.

Further secured by pledge of 17,516,100 equity shares of Air Works India
(Engineering) Private Limited; first pari passu charge on the land & building at
Malanpur (M.P); pledge of 6,795,000 shares of Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited
and second charge on 73,004,316 shares of Company held by two promoter group
companies, pledged to IFCI Limited.

Loans carrying rate of interest of 10.30%; (previous year 9.70%), repayable in 25
structured unequal semi-annual installments,

Secured by first pari passu charge on moveable and immoveable tangible assets of
a subsidiary.

reign b
Loan carrying rate of interest of LIBOR + 1.25% , repayable in 36 structured
semi-annual installmenis,
‘ WP 2o
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3 months EBOR plus 2.50% (Previous year Nil ) foreign currency loan repayable

in 14 equal quarterly installments, beginning at the end of 1 quarter from the date

of'its origination. Secured by way of first pari passu charge on moveable fixed

assets of the project division of the Company. First Degree registered charge over

the movable assets in India on pari-passu basis. 341.06
Secured by charge on the assets of a subsidiary.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 6M LIBOR + 4.20%, repayable in 25 structured

unequal semi-annual installments. - 130.56

Secured by charge on all moveable and immoveable assets of the subsidiary.

Loan carrying rate of interest of Libor plus 4.50% (previous year Libor plus
4.50%) is repayable in 10 equal quarterly installments commencing after a
moratorium period of 18 months from the date of disbursement. The loan is
secured by way of exclusive charge over aircraft gulfstream G500 held by one of
the subsidiary. the loan is further secured by pledge of shares of subsidiaries held
by the borrower subsidiary company.

Foreign curren from others
Loan carrying rate of interest of 5.77%, (previous year 5.77%) repayable in 17
equal half yearly installments, beginning at the end of 4 years from the date of its

origination. - 15.38

Secured by first pati passu charge on the moveable tangible assets of the project
division of the Company.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 5.39% (previous year 5.39%) repayable in 20

equal half yearly installments beginning at the end of 4 years from the date of its

origination. -
Secured by first pari passu charge on the moveable tangible assets of a subsidiary,

Loans carrying rate of interest of 5.11% (Previous year LIBOR + 4.50%),
repayable in 2 equal annual installments, starting from April 2015. -
Secured by exclusive charge on the tangible and current assets of a subsidiary.

Unsecured

Other loans
Inter-corporate deposits 0.00

0.38

138.76

23045

97.67

57.62

179.17

0.00

11.48

250.70

76.67

5431

168.66

0.00

341.06

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 341.06
Unsecured borrowings 0.00
Amount disclosed under the head “Other financial liabilities” (note 12 (c))

987.57

987.19
0.38

2,564.49

2,564.49
0.00

2,053.02

2,053.02
0.00

(2,564.49) (2,053.02)

Net amount 341.06

987.57

12 (b) Current borrowings

As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Secured

Working capital loan repayable on demand

Loans camrying rate of interest of 13.50% (previous year: 12.50%). Secured by way of first charge on parti
passu basis on current assets (excluding receivables of the projects financed by the other banks) and second
charge on pari passu basis on moveable tangible assets of the project division of the Company.

Loans camrying rate of interest of 12.50% Secured by way of exclusive charge on the receivables of the specific
projects financed by the bank, first pari passu charge on the current assets of the project division (excluding
receivables of the projects financed by the other banks), pari passu second charge on the movable tangible
assets of the project division of the Company.

Loans carrying weighted average rate of interest of 10.86%: (previous year: 11.38%). Secured by way of first
ranking pari-passu charge on entire current assets of the company, both present and future, receivables
(abroad) of the projects financed by Foreign lenders of the company. First ranking pari-passu charge on
movable and immovable Fixed Assets of the company, both present and future, except those specifically
charged to others lenders of company.

Loan carrying rate of interest of 3 months LIBOR + 6% (previous year LIBOR + 6%) Secured by way of pari
passu charge on the receivables financed.

Loan from bank carrying rate of interest of 3 Months First Gulf Bank (FGB) EBOR + 2.5% pa secured by way
of charge on the receivables and assets of the branch

Loan carrying rate of interest of 5.54%; (previous ye

r: 4.00%) Secured by way of pari passu charge on the
receivables financed. o ¢

ON
Lo
*

475.93 181.65

28.71 26.93

5,564.85 4,229.46

141.17 125.11

70.55 0.22

55.87
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Loans from banks carrying weighted average rate of interest of 16.75% . Secured by way of exclusive charge
on fixed assets excluding the vehicle financed and first charge charge on the current assets of the subsidiary

Company. 14.17 14.68
Unsecured
Buyer's line of credit from a bank carrying rate of interest Nil (previous year 2.18% ) - 18,93
6,350.51 4,652.85
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 6,350.51 4,633.93
Unsecured borrowings - 18.93
6.350.51 41652.85
12(c) Other financial liabilities
Current
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current maturities of long term borrowings (note 12(a)) 2,564 .49 2,053.02
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 79.96 157.65
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1,615.01 551.81
Book overdraft 6,86 14.67
Unpaid dividends # 0.07 0.15
Security deposits 752 7.72
4,274.11 2,785.02

# There is no amount currently due and outstanding which is to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

- Claims submitted in the insolvency process of the Holding Company by the banks and the financial institutions have been reconciled with the books of
accounts of the holding company and any penal interest/other charges as claimed by the financial creditors have been charged to the profit and loss account.

- The holding company is in liquidation with effect from 27" May 2022 and as per section 52(1)(a), secured creditors have relinquished their security interest
to the liquidation estate and agreed to receive proceeds from the sale of assets in the manner specified in section 53 of IBC, 2016, Refer

www.punjlloydgroup.com for updated list of stakeholders.

- Bank Guarantees amounting to Rs. 1124.26 crores which have been encashed after the year end, has been added to the liability with a corresponding impact

in profit and loss account.

13. Provisions

Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Retirement benefits 0.72 5.03 11,34 17.05
0.2 5.03 11.34 17.05

Other provisions
Provision for loss on sale of fixed asset - - 107.88 -
Provision for foreseeable losses . - 69.42 51.34
Provision for major maintenance 15.42 21.0 10.05 -

542 21,0 IQZ._%S 3134

6.14 26,04 108.60 68.39
14. Other liabilities

Current
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Salary Payable 0.02 -
GST, Service tax and VAT payable 253.81 0.89
Tax deducted at source payable 8.19 23.65
Advance billing 514.04 330.59
Advances from customers 686.97 1,220.88
Uneamed income x
Others 134.30 46,73
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15. Revenue from operations

Year ended
March 31, 2018

March 31,2019

Contract revenue 2,048.30 4,857.29
Sale of traded goods 68.80 134.01
Other operating revenue
Hire charges 0.90 3.42
Management services 15.63 85.65
2,133.63 5,080.37
16. Other income
Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Scrap sales 25.81 17.75
Insurance claims - 30.98
Unspent liabilities and provisions written back 5.38 121.84
Interest income on
Bank deposits 8.49 3.77
Financial assets, carried at amortized costs 59.59 61.34
Others 6.07 15.01
Derivative premium on hedged borrowings 3.13 2.00
Net gain on sale of long-term investments - 9.84
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments (net) 2.50 9.65
Exchange difference (net) 492.80 204.35
Dividend income on non-trade long term investments 0.00 0.00
Rental income 7.20 9.04
Income on deconsolidation of subsidiaries [refer note 37(a)] = =
Bad debts recovered - -
Others 39.08 19.83
650.05 505.40
17. Employee benefit expense
Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 553.17 526,01
Contribution to provident funds 21.48 16.02
Employee share based payment expense - -
Retirement benefits 6.50 12.68
Staff welfare expenses 24.40 29.27
603,55 38308
18. other expenses
Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Contractor charges 2,351.04 1,432.38
Site expenses 90.47 92.90
Diesel and fuel 131.81 100.59
Repair and maintenance
Buildings 0.03 0.61
Planit and equipments 8.05
Others 1.83
Rent 33.61
Freight and cartage 80.58
Hire charges 99.36
Rates and taxes 76.65
Insurance 27.79
Travelling and conveyance 46.01
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) -
Consultancy and professional 98.38
Exchange difference (net) -
Provision for major maintenance 7.36
Provision for foreseeable losses on onerous contract 15.67
Miscellaneous §2.58
2,204.35

s
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19. Depreciation and amortization expense

Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 115.24 185.15
Depreciation of invesiment properties 1.65 1.65
Amortisation of intangible assets 4.28 7.26
121.17 194.06
20. Finance costs
Year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Interest 1,394.32 1,026.77
Bank charges 42.15 60.72
1,436.47 1,087.49
21. Income tax expenses
2018-19 2017-18
(a) Income Tax expense
- Current tax 8.12 (2.20)
- Minimum altemate tax credit entitlement / written off (net) - -
- Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (1.45) (0.48)
- Deferred tax 1,202.13 (1,199.00)
Total tax expense 1,208.80 (1,201.68)
(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:
Loss before tax (10,136.84) (1,273.51)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 30.90% (Previous year - 30.90%) (3,132.28) (393.51)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Provisions for diminution in value of Investments -
Tax losses of provision for unforeseeable losses & credit losses 74.15 9.12)
Tax effect of different jurisdiction of operation / subsidiaries - (0.08)
Effect of deferred tax assets not recognised 2,533.61 381.16
Deferred tax recognised 1,202.13 (1,199.00)
Tax relating to earlier years (1.45) (0.48)
Other items (37.20) 19.36
Total tax expense 638.96 (1,201.68)
(¢) Tax Losses: *
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has be recognised 3,125.86 592.25
Potential tax benefit @ tax rate 965.89 183.01

*The group operates in different geographies having different tax regimes. Apart from above tax losses of parent company, there are some other insignificant

unused tax losses for which deferred tax is not recognized.

22, Earnings per share (EPS)

2018-19 2017-18
Net loss after tax attributable to equity share holders of parent (11,330.93) (68.76)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 33,55,95,745 33,53,78,211
Basic EPS (Rs.) (337.64) (2.05)
Adjustment for calculation of diluted EPS on account of stock options - 3,62,608
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS (Nos.) * 33,55,95,745 33,53,78,211
Diluted EPS (337.64) (2.05)
Nominal value ner equity share (Rs.) 2.00 2.00

* As the Group has incurred loss during the current year, dilutive effect of stock options on weighted average number of equity shares would have an anti-

dilutive impact and hence, not considered.
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23. Postemployment benefit plans

The Holding Company and few of its Indian subsidiaries provide for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. All permanent
employees who are in continuous service for a period of S years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the
employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a
funded plan and the Group makes contribution to recognized funds (in form of insurance policies) in India.

(a) The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss, the funded status and the amounts
recognized in the balance sheet for the plan.

Present value

Fair value of

Net amount

of obligations plan assets
April 01, 2018 13.55 (8.01) 5.54
Current service cost 1.53 - 1.53
Interest expenses/(income) 0.82 (0.61) 0.21
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 2.35 (0.61) 1.74
Remeasurements:
- Due to changes in financial assumptions (0.21) - (0.21)
- Due to experience adjustments 0.90 (0.04) 0.86
- Due to change in demographic assumptions - (0.40) (0.40)
- Retum on assets (excluding interest income) - 0.22 0.22
Total amount recognised in OCI 0.69 0.22) 0.47
Benefits payments (4.00) 4.00 -
Employer contributions - (4.26) (4.26)
March 31, 2019 11.20 (8.66) 2.54
Present value Fair value of
Pron Net amount
of obligations plan assets

_April 01, 2017 15.44 (8.60) 6.84
Current service cost 3.04 - 3.04
Interest expenses/(income) 0.97 (0.64) 0.33
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 4.01 (0.64) 3.37
Remeasurements:
- Due to changes in financial assumptions 0.41 - 041
- Due to experience adjustments 5.11 - 5.11
- Retumn on assets (excluding interest income) - (2.47) (2.47)
Total amount recognised in OCI 5.52 (2.47) 3.05
Benefits payments (0.38) 0.30 (0.08)
Employer contributions - (1.54) (1.54)
March 31, 2018 13.55 ~ (8.01) 5.54

The net liability disclosed above entirely relates to the funded gratuity plans. 100% plan assets are allocated in insurance company products portfolio. The
Group expects to contribute INR 2.36 crore (Previous year: INR 1.18 crore) to gratuity fund in the next year.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Group’s plans are shown below:

March 31,2019 March 31. 2018

Discount rate 6.80% 6.90%
Expected rate of return on assets 6.80% 6.90%
Salary increase rate 5.50% 5.50%
Employee tumover

upto age 30 years 15.00% 15.00%

3144 years. 10.00% 10.00%

45 and above 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (in years) 60 60
Mortality rates Indian Assured Lives Mortality

(2006-08) Uliimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation
is to be settled. :
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Sensitivity analysis *

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate Increase by 50 basis points Decrease by 8.03%
Decrease by 50 basis points Increase by 8.03%

Salary increase rate Increase by 50 basis points Increase by 6.00%
Decrease by 50 basis mints Decrease by 5.00%

*Subsidiaries are excluded considering insignificant in nature.

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which is the risk of change in the interest rates due to
market volatility. A decrease therein will increase plan liabilities. Apart from the interest rate,the other significant risks associated with defined benefit plans

are inflation risk, economic environment and regulatory changes.

The Group manages its investment positions to achieve longterm investments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. The
designated trust actively monitors how the duration and expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the employee
benefit obligations. The Group has not changed its processes to manage its risks from previous periods.

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligations

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity benefits is as follows:

Period Amount
Within one year 2.19
Between | —2 years 2.03
Between 2 — 5 years 7.65
QOver 5 years 11.48

(b) The Holding Company and few of its Indian subsidiaries recognize the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial
valuation. The expense recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment liability at the beginning and at the end of the year.

2018-2019 2017-2018
At the beginning of the period 16,54 16.78
Current service cost 8.66 8.30
Interest ex /(income 0.84 1.01
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 9.50 9.32
Remeasurements:
- Due to changes in financial assumptions (0.22) 0.49
- Due to experience adjustments 447 4.56
- Return on assets (excluding interest income) - -
Total amount recognised in OCY 4.25 5.05
Benefits payments (3.52) (4.51)
Employer contributions - -
At the end of the:uriod 18.27 16.54

24. Employee stock option plans (ESOP)

(a) The Company provides various share based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2019, the relevant details of the

schemes are as follows:

ESOP 2005

ESOP 2006

_ Date of Board of Directors approval

September 05, 2005 and February 12, 2016

Junc 27, 2006 and February 12,2016

Various dates subsequent to September 05, 2005

Date of Remuneration Committee approval

Various dates subsequent to June 27, 2006

Date of Shareholder’s approval September 29, 2005 and April 3, 2006 September 22, 2006
Number of options 4.000,000 5,000,000
Method of settlement Equity

Vesting period (for fresh grant)

One year from the date of grant

Exercise period (for fresh grant)

Five years from the date of vesting or one year from the date of separation from service, whichever is

earlier

Vesting condition

Employee should be in service

The details of activities under ESOP 2005 have been summarized below:

Number of options Weighted average exercise price (Rs.)
2018-2019 2017-2018 2018-2019 20l7-,g_(_)LlB
Outstanding at the beginning of the vear 620.000 770.000 2.00 2.00
_ Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year - 150.000 - 2.00
Expired during the year 220.000 - 2.00 -
Outstanding at the end of the vear 400.000 620.000 200 2.00
Exercisable at the eridhf theear, 400,000 620,000 4/'0_ i g;oﬁ\? 2,00
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The details of activities under ESOP 2006 have been summarized below:

Number of options

Weighted average exercise price (Rs.)

2018-2019 2017-2018

2018-2019 2017-2018

Outstanding at the beginning of the year -

200,000

2.00

G d during the year =

Exercised during the year -

200,000

2.00

Expired during the year >

Outstanding at the end of the year E

Exercisable al the end of the year -

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of the options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2018 was Rs. 22.03. The weighted average

remaining contractual life of the stock options outstanding as at March 31,2018 is 1.37 years.

No options were granted during the year ended March 31, 2019. The fair value at the grant date of options granted during the year ended March 31, 2016 was
Rs. 15.72, which was determined using the Black Scholes Model, The Model took into account the following inputs for computing the fair value:

Particulars

Dividend vield (%) -
Expected volatility (%) [computed based on past two vears historical share price] 41.67
Risk-free interest rate (%) 6.90
Share price (Rs.) 2.40
Exercise price (Rs.) 2.00
Expected life of options granted (in years) 2,00

Total expenses arising from share-based payments transactions recognized in profit & loss as part of employee benefit expense is Nil (previous year Nil).

25. Segment Information

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’, the Group’s business activity falls within a single operating segment viz.
Engineering, procurement and construction services. Accordingly, the segment disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 are not applicable.

26. Interest in other entitles

(a) Subsidiaries

The Group’s interest and share in subsidiaries are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights
held by the Group, directly or indirectly, and the country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

e - - —_— — — —
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Subsidiaries

Spectra Punj Lloyd Limited India

| Punj Lloyd Industries Limited India

Atna Investments Limited India

Punj Lloyd International Limited * British ~ Virgin

Islands

Punj Lloyd Kazakhstan, LLP * Kazakhstan

[ Punj Lloyd Pte, Limited $ Singapore

PL Engineering Limited India

Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Limited * India

[ Punj Lloyd Upsiream Limited India

Punj Lloyd Aviation Limited India

Sembawang Infrastructure (India) Private Limited India

Indtech Global Svstems Limited India

Yagyi Kalewa Highway Limited (Formerly known as Shitul Overseas Placement and Logistics India

Limited) %

Punj Lloyd Infrastructure Pte. Limited $§ Singapore 100.00 100.00
Punj Lloyd Building and Infrastructute Private Limited | Sri Lanka - <
Step Down Subsidlaries

Punj Llovd Oil & Gas (Malavsia) Sdn. Bhd. $5 Malaysia 100.00 100.00
r__l:l_ll_'lj Lloyd Sdun. Bhd.* Malaysia 100.00 100.00
Punj Lloyd Aviation Pte. Limited $5 Singapore 100.00 100.00
| Christos Avintion Limited * Bermuda 100.00 100.00
Indraprastha Renewables Private Limited India 100.00 100,00
PLR Systems Private Limited (Formerly known as Punj Lloj(gl Raksha Systems Private ate Limited) * India 51.00 51.00
Punj Lloyd Lngumermg Pie; Limited * ,--——--\,c* AT Singapore e - 80.32
PL Delta Technologies Limited -/ N\ India 70 Y IR0, 80.32
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Ownership interest as at
Name of entity .Country 0':
incorporation March 31, March 31,
2019 2018
AeroLuro Engineering India Private Limited India 80.32 80.32
Punj Lloyd Solar Power Limited * India 100.00 100.00
Khagaria Pumea Highway Project Limited * India 100.00 100.00
Indraprastha Melropolitan Development Limited * India 100.00 100.00
(b) Joint operations
The Group's interest in joint operations is set out below.,

. q Place of Ownership interest as at
Nufeafentity Nature of operatigns business Miareh 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Joint operations of the Company % %

Joint Venture of Whessoe Oil and Gas Revival of Ratnagiri Gas and Power| India 50.00 50.00

Limited and Punj Lloyd Limited Private Limited LNG Terminal project

Punj Lloyd Group Joint Venture Design and construction services of| Thailand 75.00 75.00
platform compression facilities

Public Works Company Tripoli -Punj Laying of sewerage and water pipeline| Libya 60.00 60.00

Lloyd Joint Venture and city road development

Joint venture partners have direct rights to the assets of the operations and are jointly and severally liable for liabilities incurred by the operations. The Group
recognizes its direct right to the jointly held assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.

(c) Interest in associates and joint ventures

The Group’s interest and share in associates and joint ventures are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, the proportion of ownership interests held equals the
voting rights held by the Group, directly or indirectly, and the country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

Ownership interest as at
. Place of
Name of entity Nature of operations business | March 31, March 31,
| 2018 2018
Joint ventures of the Company % %
Thiruvananthpuram Road Development Company Limited **** Thiruvananthpuram city road | India 50.00% 50.00%
improvement
Ramprastha Punj Lloyd Developers Private Limited ***** Real estate developers India 50.00% 50,00%
Joint ventures through subsidiaries:
PLE TCI Engenharia Ltda ****** Engineering and  design | Brazil 39.36% 39.36%
consultancy services
PLE TCI Engineering Limited Engineering and Designing India 39.36% 39.36%
Associates
Domus Lloyd Contracting Limited (formely Punj Lloyd Construction Engineering,  procurement | Saudi 23.90% 100.00%
Contracting Company Limited)# and construction Arabia
PLN Construction Limited # & Engineering,  procurement | India 40.00 100.00
and construction
Associates through subsidiaries:
Aviation - Maintenance, | India 23.24% 23.24%
Air Works India (Engineering) Private Limited ** Repair and Overhaul

*  Entities filed for strike-off/liquidation or struck-off/liquidated/sold.

#  During the year, the Company’s share in these subsidiaries has been reduced to less than 50%

&  Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, sharcholding in PLN Construction has further reduced to 20.41% on account of right issue on June 29, 2020.

% Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, Yagi Kalewa Highway Limited has incorporated an entity in Myanmar wherein it is holding 51% shares, balance 49%
is held by Varaha India Limited. The Myanmar entity is undertaking the contract which has been awarded to the JV of Punj Lloyd and Varaha. The control of
the Myanmar entity is with Varaha.

! No capital infused by the Company till date.

** Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, pledge on the shareholding has been created in favour of the consortium lenders.

**** While the Company is undergoing liquidation the other joint venture partner, is also undergoing a resolution framework as directed by Hon’ble NCLT
due to the financial default. The financial statements of the JV are available till March 31, 2017.

**x** The financial statements are available till March 31, 2018.

#**x** The financial statements are available till March 31, 2010.

$$ Presently there are no Directors in the Company.

$  The Singapore High Court ordered for the appointment of Judicial Manager for Punj Lloyd Pte Limited (PLPL) as per the Singapore Companies Act,
w.e.f June 27, 2016 and subsequently ordered the liquidation on August 07, 2017. The Group has lost control over the entire PLPL Group, comprising the
following entities, pursuant to appointment of Judicial Manager and thereafter liquidator :

. . P Ownership interest as at
Name of entity 1) Country of incorporation m}ﬁfﬁ%ﬂ‘“‘m‘m
Subsidiaries SR
PT Punj Lloyd }nddnes’a e Indonesia 100.00 100.00
PT Sempec Indmighia \ O\ Indonesia 100.00 100.00
o
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| Ownership interest as at
Name of entity. Country of incorporation March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Punj Lloyd Engineers and Constructors Pte. Limited Singapore 100.00 100.00
Buffalo Hills Limited British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00
Indtech Trading FZE United Arab Emirates 100.00 100.00
Punj Lloyd Thailand (Co.) Limited Thailand 100.00 100.00
Sembawang Development Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Engineers and Constructors Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Contech Trading Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Mining (Kekal) Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang (Tianjin) Constructions Engineering Co. Limited China 68.17 68.17
Sembawang UAE Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Consult Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia - 97.38
Jurubina Sembawang (M) Sdn. Bhd Malaysia E 97.38
Tueri Aquila FZE United Arab Emirates 97.38 97.38
Sembawang Equity Capital Pte. Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang (Tianjin) Investment Management Co. Limited China _ 97.38 97.38
PT Sembawang Indonesia Indonesia 97.38 97.38
Reliance Contractors Private Limited Singapore 97.38 97.38
Sembawang E&C Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia - 97.38
Joint Operations

Kumagai-Sembawang-Mitsui Joint Venture Singapore 43.82 43.82
Kumagai-SembCorploint Venture Singapore 48.69 48.69
Kumagai-SembCorploint Venture (DTSS) Singapore 48.69 48.69
SembCorp-Daewoo Joint Venture Singapore 58.43 58.43
Joint Ventures

PT KekalAdidaya Indonesia 48.69 48.69
Punj Lloyd Dynamic LLC Qatar 48.00 48.00

277. Related Partles

(a) Details of related parties
(i) Parties over which the Group has control
Interest in subsidiaries, including associates and joint ventures, are set out in note 26.

(ii) Key management personnel

Atul Punj * Chairman and Ex Managing Director and Group Chiel Executive
Officer

Atul Kumar Jain Director (upto May 29, 2018)

Shiv Punj Director (upto August 27, 2018)

* He has resigned from the position of Chairman and Managing Director / Director of the Holding Company w.e.f. October 20, 2021. His resignation as
Chairman and Managing Director / Director has not been accepted by the Resolution Professional of the Holding Company as Punj Lloyd was undergoing the
corporate insolvency resolution process in terms of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and any such change in management of the Holding Company
will require the prior approval of the Committee of Creditors before the Resolution Professional accepts the same.

Non-executive director
JyotiPunj (upto August 27, 2018)

Non-executive and independent directors
PhirozVandrevala (upto March 08, 2019)
UdayWalia {upto March 08, 2019)

Shravan Sampath (upto March 08. 2019)
RajatKhare (upto August 11, 2018)

(iii) Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives exercise significant influence and with whom transactions have taken place

during the year:
Pt. Kanahya Lal Dayawanti Punj Charitable Society - | Chairmanship of late father of Chairman & Managing Director and Group Chief Executive
Officer (upto Oct 04, 2019)
Pt. Kanahya Lal Dayawanti Punj Charitable Society - | Chairmanship of Chairman & Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer
(w.e.fiDec 11,2019)
PTA Engineering and Manpower Services Private Limited | - | Shareholding of Chairman & Managing Director and Group Chief Executive Officer

Petro IT Limited - -'-Sl'lna%:g(»%ing of Brother of Chairman & Managing DWWEF Executive
AT o, 7. 0T0 N
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(iv) Other related parties — Post employment benefit plan of the Group

Punj Lloyd Group Employees’ Provident Fund Trust
Punj Lloyd Employees® Group Gratuity Trust
Punj Lloyd Group Employees’ Superannuation Trust

(b) Transaction with related parties

M&*ch 31,2019 | March 31,2018
With associates
Travelling and conveyance - 0.49
Consultancy and professional - -
Repair & Maintenance 0.30
Interest Expenses 3.39
With enterprises where KMPs or their relatives have influence
Rent expense 1.03 1.57
With KMP
Employee benefit expenses = =
Consultancy and professional 9.73 6.34
With other related parties - post employment benefit plans
Contribution towards post employment benefit plans = -

(c) Outstanding balances

March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

Associate

Trade receivable 1.53 2.73

Trade Payable (66.70) 0.00

Joint venture [

Other advances (advangces to related parties) 0.00 79.31
Enterprises where KMPs or their relative have influence |

Trade payable (5.41) (6.79)
KMP remuneration payable | | -

(d) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All related party transactions are in ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. All outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable in cash.

28. Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for as at the end of the reporting period but not recognized as liabilities (net of advances) is as follows:

March 31,2019  March 31,2018

Property, plant and equipment - 0.88
Intangible assets = s

(b) Non-cancellable operating leases

The Group leases various offices and guest houses under non-cancellable operating leases expiring, generally, within eleven months to three years. There are
no contingent rents in the lease agreements. Upon renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated. There is no escalation clause in the lease agreements. There
are no significant restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. The amount of total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at
March 31, 2019 is Nil (Previous year: Nil). Rental expenses relating to operating lease for the year ended March 31, 2019 is INR 14.04 Crore (Previous year:
INR 33.61 Crore).

(¢) Finance lease obligations
The Group has finance leases and hire purchase contracts for certain project equipment, vehicles and building, the cost of which is included in the gross block

of plant and equipment, vehicles and investment property respectively under tangible assets and investment properties. The lease term is for one to ninety nine
years. There is no escalation clause in the lease agreements. There are no significant restrictions imposed by lease arrangements.

2018-19 2017-18
Giross block at the end of finnneial year 165.67 167.54
Written down value at the end of financial year 88.56 90.20
Details of payments made during the year:
- Principal .?;Q Slkds, - -
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29. Contingent liabilities

As at
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

a) Liquidated damages deducted by customers not accepted by the Company and pending final settlement. # - 82.30
b) Corporate guarantees give on behalf of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 107.55 121.96
c) Corporate guarantees given on behalf of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates under liquidation 618.46 498.43
d) Live bank guarantees given to various clients 493.34 -
€) Demand by custom authorities against import of aircraft 17.89 17.89
f) Value added tax demands: * -

on disallowance of deduction on labour and services of the works contracts pending with 333 638

sales tax authorities and High Court ' )

for non submission of statutory forms 0.11

for purchases against statutory forms not accepted by department - 10.95

against the central sales tax demand on sales in transit/ sale in the course of import - 0.79
g) Demand by income tax authorities in one of overseas subsidiary 6.15 6.15
h) Differential amount of customs duty in respect of machinery imported under EPCG Scheme - 5.56

# excludes possible liquidated damages which can be levied by customers for delay in execution of projects. The management, based on consultation with
various experts, believes that there exist strong reasons why no liquidated damages shall be levied by these customers. Although there can be no assurances,
the Group believes, based on information currently available, that the ultimate resolution of these proceedings is not likely to have an adverse effect on the
results of operations, financial position or liquidity of the Group.

*In respect of tax matters the same has been adjusted in books of accounts.

30. The disclosures as per provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 115- ‘Revenue from Contract with Customers’ are as under:

2018-19 2017-18
a) Contract revenue recognized as revenue in the period 2.048.30 4.857.29
b) Unbilled Revenue 349.54 4,788.83
c) Advance received on contract under progress 686.97 1.220.88
d) | Retention amounts on contract under progress 205.00 448.12
e) Gross amount due from customers for contract work as an asset 486.30 1,847.73
f) Gross amount due to customers for contract work as a liability 514.04 330.59

31. The Group has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the
year end, the Group has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision as required under the law/ Indian Accounting Standards for the material
foreseeable losses on such long term contracts (including derivative contracts, if any) has been made in the books of accounts.

32. Financial instruments
(a) Financial instruments by category

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
FVTOCI Amortized cost FVTOCI Amortized cost
Financial assets
Non-current investments 110.66 - 29.73 -
Trade receivables - 486.30 - 1,847.73
Loans - 6.55 . 23.36
Cash and cash equivalents - 155.72 - 376.54
Other bank balances - 156.74 - 202.43
Other financial assets - 464.42 - 591.77
110.66 1.269.73 29.73 3.041.83
Financial liabilities
Borrowings E 6,691.56 - 5,640.42
Trade payables - 3,657.79 - 2,744 86
Other financial liabilities < 4274.12 - 2.785.02
- 14.623.47 - 11,170.30

(b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments are classified into three levels in order to provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining the fair values.

The categories used are as follows:

Level 1: Where fair value is based on quoted prices from active mnrgc!_‘
Level 2: Where fair value is based on significant direct or indired¥observab
Level 3: Where fair value is based on one or more gignificant iy

| neW
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on observable market data.
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2019
Non-current investments
Quoted 0.32 - - 0.32
Unquoted - - 110.34 110.35
Total 0.32 - 110.34 110.66
As at March 31, 2018
Non-current investments
Quoted 0.30 - - 0.30
Unquoted - - 29.43 29.43
[ Total 030 - 29.43 29.73

There are no transfers between any levels during the year.
(¢) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at amortized cost, disclosed in note (a) above, approximates to their fair values. Accordingly, the
fair values of such instruments have not been disclosed separately.

(d) Valuation techniques and processes used to determine fair value

Fair value of quoted investments is based on the quotation as at the reporting date. For unquoted investments, fair value is determined based on their audited
financial statements accounted as equity method.

(e) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurement.

Non-current investments - Unquoted

As at Fair value Significant unobservable inputs*
March 31, 2019 110.34

Fair value accounted on equity method based on financial statements of the investees.

March 31, 2018 29.43

* There were no significant interrelationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

Reconciliation of financial instruments categorized under Level 3

2018-19 2017-18
Opening 29.43 39.35
Addition due to new investment 0.00 0.00
Add_sl_:on during the year due to change of subsidiaries into 72.10 0.00
associates
Addlt‘lon of share in opening accumulated profits of 0.00 0.00
associates
Disposed off during the year 0.04 -
Share of losses of associates/joint ventures for the year 5.09 (9.92)
Investments - Ind AS Adjustments 3.72 -
Exchange differences (0.03) -
Closing 110.34 29.43

33. Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments are as follows;
Financial assets: Investments, Cash and bank balance, Loans, Trade and other receivables,
Financial liabilities: Borrowings, Trade and other payables.

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to regulate, finance and support the Group’s operations,

The Group is exposed to various financial risks such as credit, liquidity and market risk. An experienced and qualified team ensures that all financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives.

The policy needs' to-be read in conjunction with note 2 (iv) of the financial statement particularly with respect to the fact that the holding company is
currently undgrl{gqi A ﬁ'qs.a going concern. =
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Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade and other reccivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and other financial instruments.

A.1. Trade reccivables

The Group executes various projects for public sector/ governnent undertaking and others at various locations, including overseas. Trade receivables are
contractual amounts due from these customers for works certified. Trade receivables are noninterest bearing and are generally on 30 to 45days credit,
depending upon contractual terms. The management evaluates the outstanding receivables on a periodic basis and provides for the impairment loss based on
the established ECL policy, as described below.

The Group follows a ‘simplified approach’ (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for recognition of impairment loss allowance on its trade receivables. For the purpose
of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade receivables, the Group estimates irrecoverable amounts based on the ageing of the receivable balances,
clubbed with, historical experience with the customer and/or the industry in which the customer operates and assessment of litigation, if applicable.
Receivables are written off when they are no more deemed collectible.

Though the Group executes projects with repeat customers but there is no significant customer level concentration of the credit risk as at any of the reported
periods. Further, there is no concentrated risk based on the location where the Group operates.

A.2. Other financial assets
Cash and bank balances are managed by the Group’s treasury department. Concentration risk is constantly monitored to mitigate financial loss.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the financial assets as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 is to the extent of their
respective carrying amounts as disclosed in note 7.

B. Liquidity risk

This should be read together with Note 2 (iv) of the financial statements particularly with respect to the fact that the Holding Company is currently under
liquidation as a going concern. Of the total term debts of INR 2,564.49 , 100% is payable in less than one year at March 31, 2019 based on the carrying value
of such borrowings reflected in the financial statements.

Other financial liabilities, like trade and other payables, matures predominantly within one year.

C. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk.

The sensitivity analysis as shown below relates to the position as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is
the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2019 and March
31,2018.

C.1. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. As at March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018, the Group’s borrowings at variable rate were mainly denominated in INR and USD.

The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

C.1.1. Interest rate sensitivity

With all other variables held constant, increase of 50 basis points (bps) will result in a loss of 38.76 before tax (previous year: 33.10) and a decrease of 50 bps
will result in a gain of 38.76 before tax (previous year: 33.10).

C.2. Foreign currency risk

Foreign cumrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s un-hedged foreign currency exposure of its Indian
operations and Group’s net investment in its foreign operations/subsidiaries (net of eliminations).

C.2.1. Foreign currency risk exposure

The Group’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reported periods, expressed in INR, are as follows:

usD SGD AED OMR QAR LYD THB SAR
As at March 31, 2019
Financial Assets 11.01 - - - . - - -
Financial Liabilities (836.69) (2.75) (4.44) - - - -
Nl Saneqforcien 759.31 12440 41216 : < : 3.76
operations / subsidiaries
Net exposure (825.68) 756.56 119.96 412,16 = 3.76
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As at March 31, 2018

Financial Assets 454.04 . « 3 & - : -
Financial Liabilities (640.99) (6.42) (1.05) - - - - -
ettt foreign @1 21025 9535 16525 3001 17978 660.08 31.64
operations / subsidiaries

Net exposure (189.66) 203.83 94.30 165.25 30.01 179.78 660.08 31.64

C.2.2. Foreign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact
on the Group’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for
all other currencies is not material.

Currency Change in currency exchange Profit/(loss) effect before tax
rate March 31,2019 March 31,2018

USD +5% (41.28) (9.48)
SGD +5% 37.83 10.19
AED +5% 6.00 4.72
OMR +5% 20.61 8.26
QAR +5% - 1.50
LYD +5% - 8.99
THB +5% - 33.00
SAR +5% 0.19 1,58

A decrease of 5% in the above currency’s exchange rates would result in an equivalent reciprocal effect.

C.3. Other price risk

Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from quoted investments held and classified in the balance sheet as fair value through OCI.
Price risk exposure for Group is insignificant, since Group’s investment in such securities is immaterial,

34. Capital management

Risk management:

For the purpose of the cupital management, capital includes the issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders. TheGroup’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide retums for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio, which is, net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity (as
shown in the balance sheet) plus net debt. The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio within 100%. The gearing ratios were as follows:

As at

March 31,2019

March 31,2018

Borrowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net Debts

Equity
Equity and net debts

Gearing ratio (%)

10,951.03
155.72
10,795.31
(13,461.98)
(2,666.68)

(404.82)

8,402.90
376.54
8,026.36
(2,030.99)
5,995.37

133.88

Loan covenants& gearing ratio

Under the terms of some borrowing fiacilities, the Group is required to comply with the certain financial covenants. The Group aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requitements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants
could permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been some breaches in the financial covenants and gearing ratio during the
reporting periods, ICICI bank has initiated CIRP of the holding company effective March 08, 2019,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.
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Puonj Lloyd Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Marceh 31,2019
(all amownes in INR Croves, wndless othierwise stied)

35. Additional information pursuant to Schedule IT1 of the 2013 Act:
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Purj Lioy

Share in total
Net assets i.e. total assets Share in profit / (loss) for Share in other comprehensive income for
minus total liabilities as at the year ended March 31, | comprehensive income for the the year ended March 31,
Name of Entities March 31, 2019 2019 year ended March 31, 2019 2019
As a % of As a % of Asa % of
As a % of consolidated other total
consolidated profit and comprehensive comprehensi
Amount net assets _Amount loss Amount income Amount ve income
Parent Company
Puni Lloyd Limited (12,702.69) | 81.82% | (12,488.63) | 84.43% (376.24) 97.05% (12.864.87) | 84.75%
Subsidiaries: Indian
Spoctra Pun Lloyd Limited | (73.19) 0.47% (76.17) 0.51% z ; (76.17) 0.50%
JHEs e 5.53 -0.04% (0.06) 0.00% @1.51) 5.55% (21.57) 0.14%
oo T T 0.72 0.00% 0.02 0.00% 0.03 20.01% 0.05 0.00%
PL Engineering Limited G.91) 0.03% (5.39) 0.04% (3:28) 0.85% .67) 0.06%
'Z‘i‘:‘]i:;l",yd Itosuiehine (33.34) 021% (2.46) 0.02% : 0.00% (2.46) 0.02%
D R (190.01) 122% (44.78) 0.30% 0,46 0.12% (44.32) 0.29%
Punj Lioyd Aviation Limited | _(5902) 0.38% 7.04 -0.05% (0.06) 0.00 6.98 -0.05%
Sembawang Infrastructure g 0
(India) Private Limited (19.87) 0.13% (1.74) 0.01% - (1.74) 0.01%
gy Global Systems 1.06 0.01% - 0.00% : . : 0.00%
Yagi Kalwa Highway
;L‘Eﬂ%&i;’s’?c::’ga‘:‘e;gt” 0.00 0.00% (0.16) 0.00% : 2 0.16) 0.00%
and Logistics Limited)%
;P:;:{’emlf&*}t‘:d"“ewab'“ (47.36) 031% A7.17) 0.12% : : (17.17) 0.11%
PR oyt i i Bysteme 12.30 -0.08% 121 -0.01% 2 - 121 -0.01%
E;Lll)teeldta Technologies (0.08) 0.00 b ) L . ) I
e 15.42 -0.10% 0.58 0.00% " . 0.58 0.00%
ﬁ*}i‘:‘&;“i’&ﬁ“‘g“wa" 4228 0.27% (5.53) 0.04% . 1 (5.53) 0.04%
lgﬁfgﬁi tl\;j;(i)t}:ih:an (0.39) 0.00% (0.01) 0.00% - - ©.01) 0.00%
PL Surva Uria Limited * - 0.00% - 0.00% - - - 0.00%
PL Sunshine Limited * - 0.00% - 0.00% - - 0.00%
L Syl i e : 0.00% J 0.00% - : : 0.00%
l’}ﬂ?ﬁ‘;ﬁ“ﬁg{‘é‘;’emg il B ) 0.00 (0.40) 0.00% - L : 0.00%
Subsidiaries: Foreign
E‘i’x‘l‘fitl‘;:i",yd e 2.24) 0.01% : 0.00% - : . 0.00%
E‘i‘g,”wd ST (80.45) 0.52% 8.98 -0.06% 10.15 (0.03) 19.13 -0.13%
Punj Lloyd Building &
Infrastructure Private - - - - + = - -
Limited #
Ponj Lloyd Inflastructure Pte |1 714.93) | 11.05% | (1,33786) | 9.04% - : (1,337.86) 8.81%
(et DL (412.76) 2.66% (457.39) 3.09% - - (457.39) 3.01%
Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. $3
Puni Lioyd Sdn. Bhd. * @11.7) 2.65% (320.54) 2.17% . : (320.54) 2.11%
o e YRR 35.06 0.23% (72.53) 0.49% - . (72.53) 0.48%
Christos Aviation Limited * (0.45) 0.00% - i T
AL el
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Punj Llovd Limiied
Notes to consolidated tinancial statements tor the yvear ended Maveh 31,2019

VI NS Bt TININ O P0s, JTEONE D S-S

Punj Lloyd Engineering Pte

Limited * (7.80) 0.05% (5.90) 0.04% (0.06) 0.01% (5.96) 0.04%

Punj Llovd Pte Limited $ * - - - - . z =

Associate (Investment as per equity method)

Indian

Air Works India
(Engineering) Private 35.02 -0.23% 5.60 -0.04% - - 5.60 -0.04%
Limited **

PLN Construction Limited

4 31.59 -0.20% 11.20 -0.08% - - 11.20 -0.07%

Foreign

Punj Domus Construction
Limited (formerly known as
Punj Lloyd Construction 58.32 -0.38% 10.46 -0.07% 2.82 (0.01) 13.28 -0.09%
Contracting Company
Limited) #

Joint ventures (Investment as per equity method)

Indian

Thiruvananthpuram Road
Development Company - - - - = = % =
Limited ****

Ramprastha Punj Lloyd
Developers Private Limited - - - - - - a -

Xk E

PLE TCI Engineering
Limited

Foreign

PLE TCI Engenharia Ltda

R

*  Entities filed for strike-off/liquidation or struck-of/liquidated/sold.

#  During the year, the Company’s share in these subsidiaries has been reduced to less than 50%

&  Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, shareholding in PLN Construction has further reduced to 20.41% on account of right issue on June 29, 2020.

% Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, Yagi Kalewa Highway Limited has incorporated an entity in Myanmar wherein it is holding 51% shares, balance 49%
is held by Varaha India Limited. The Myanmar entity is undertaking the contract which has been awarded to the JV of Punj Lloyd and Varaha. The control of
the Myanmar entity is with Varaha.

! No capital infused by the Company till date.

** Subsequent to the March 31, 2019, pledge on the shareholding has been created in favour of the consortium lenders.

**%* While the Company is undergoing liquidation the other joint venture partner, is also undergoing a resolution framework as directed by Hon’ble NCLT
due to the financial default. The financial statements of the JV are available till March 31, 2017.

*¥*%* The financial statements are available till March 31, 2018.

***x%%* The financial statements are available till March 31, 2010.

$$ Presently there are no Directors in the Company.

$ The Singapore High Court ordered for the appointment of Judicial Manager for Punj Lloyd Pte Limited (PLPL) as per the Singapore Companies Act,

w.e.f June 27, 2016 and subsequently ordered the liquidation on August 07, 2017. The Group has lost control over the entire PLPL Group. Refer note 36 below

and for entities comprising PLPL group refer note 26.
Others

36. During the earlier years, the Singapore High Court ('the Court') heard upon the applications filed by Judicial Manager (JM) of Punj Lloyd Pte. Limited
and Sembawang Engineers and Constructors Pte. Limited, subsidiaries of the Group. Accordingly the Court ordered for the liquidation of Punj Lioyd Pte.
Limited and Sembawang Engineers and Constructors Pte. Limited vide its order dated August 07, 2017. Pursuant to appointment of Judicial Managers by
the Court w.e.f June 27, 2016, the Holding Company had lost control over these subsidiaries and consequently necessary adjustments were made in the
financial year ended March 31, 2017.
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Punj Lloyvd Limited
Notes to consolidated tinancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Income recognized on deconsolidation of PLPL and its subsidiaries:

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Networth of PLPL attributable to the Group on date of deconsolidation (973.85)

[

Less: Fair value of PLP congidered for deconsolidation

Net income recognized at Group level under other income - 973.85

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

The Holding Company is in the process of liquidation as a going concern in terms of the Order dated 27th May, 2022 passed by the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench, New Delhi (NCLT). All directors of the subsidiary companies have resigned and subsequently the Liquidator
of the Holding company has appointed additional directors on the board of the subsidiary companies to ensure compliance and day-to-day operations of
the company. Considering all the directors of the subsidiary companies have resigned together and filed their DIR-11 on MCA Portal, the subsidiary is
unable to file Form DIR-12 regarding appointment of directors on MCA Portal. Further, due to non-appointment of directors on the MCA Portal the
subsidiary companies are unable to file Form AOC-4 (Balance Sheet) and Form MGT-7 (Annual Retum) on the MCA Portal and accordingly additional
fee is being levied on the same on daily basis. The holding company - Punj Lloyd Limited has submitted application for addition of name of Director in
MCA database through backend in the 14 (fourteen) subsidiary companies.

Claims received during liquidation of the Holding Company

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 16 of the Liquidation regulations, claims
have been submitted to the Liquidator of the Holding Company by Financial Creditors, Operational Creditors, Workmen & Employees and Others
(including Government dues and other creditors). The status of claims as of July 02, 2024 is as follows:

S. No. Category of Creditor

Amount Claimed (INR Crore)

Amount of Claims Admitted
(INR Crore)

1 Financial Creditors (Secured)

15,583.07

14,408.65

906.51

856.61

2 Financial Creditors (Unsecured)
3 Operational Creditors (other than Workmen, Employees
and Government Dues)

10,582.71

1,888.77

4 Operational Creditors (Workmen and Employees)

6.13

3.75

5 Operational Creditors (Govemment Dues)

1.872.21

1,813.67

On February 19, 2019, the Holding Company was subjected to a survey operation w's 133A of the Income Tax Act, 1961. During the survey, statements
from the Holding Company’s officials were recorded. Subsequent to the survey, Income tax department seeking certain details / information of the
Holding Company issued summons to the officials of the Company.

During the period of CIRP, the Holding Company has received regulatory enquiries/notes/summons from various Govenment Authorities like Serious
Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO), Enforcement Directorate (ED), Income Tax Department, Goods and Service Tax (GST), Employee Provident Fund
Organisation (EPFO) and lenders have initiated investigation procedures and same has been continuing during the liquidation period as well. Various
legal cases by and against the Holding Company are also continuing at varous courts of law. Pending outcome of the ongoing
investigation/enquiries/litigations no impact of the same has been considered in these financial statement as of now.

Capitalization of expenditure
During the current and previous year ended on March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, the Holding Company has not capitalized any expenditure of
revenue nature to the cost of tangible asset/ intangible assets under development.

In the opinion of management, the current assets and other non-current assets afier necessary provisions / write offs have a value on realization in the
ordinary course of business, at least equal to the amount at which they are stated; except reported otherwise.

As part of the Liquidation Process, secured/unsecured lenders and operational creditors (including workmen, employees, vendors, suppliers, government
dues and other creditors) were called upon to submit their claims to the Liquidator of the Holding Company in terms of the applicable provisions of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (IBC) read with the Liquidator Regulations. Pending final outcome of the Liquidation of the Holding Company,
no adjustment has been made in these financial statements for the differential amounts, if any.

The Resolution Professional during the CIRP of the Holding Company had appointed a transaction auditor to examine and identify avoidable
transactions under Section 43, 45, 50 and 66 of the Code. Based on the findings of transaction audit report the RP of the Holding Company has reported
the avoidable transactions by filing an application with the Adjudicating Authority pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Code on July 19, 2020. The
application is pending with the Hon’ble NCLT for adjudication.

IDBI bank has classified the Holding Company account as fraud. Also, the Holding Company has been declared a willful defaulter by Central Bank of
India.

Due to reduction of operations, pending outcome of the Liquidation Process of the Holding Company and significant uncertainty about future economic

outlook of the construction industry, it is not feasible 1g determine the amount of impairment in its entirety, if any, which would have been required to be

done in the net book value of the conmruulion_qqmlﬁ:&i(ﬂ\%ud other assets classified as tangible assets and mgﬁ? ssets in “Property, Plant &
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Punj Lloyd Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Al amownts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)
Equipment™ in note 4, 5 and note 6 of these financial statements. However, Fair Valuation determination of the Holding Company was made as on 8"
March 2019, being CIRP commencement date in accordance with IBC, 2016 and necessary adjustments have been made in these financial statement.

4']. Amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented in INR crores, unless otherwise stated. Certain amounts that are required to be disclosed
and do not appear due to rounding off are expressed as 0.00. One crore equals 10 millions.

48. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co.
Chartered Accountants ey For and on behalf of Punj Lioyd Limited

Firm registration number: 016253
UDINNo.2.503] .’ ,

W g a New D

Arunava Sikdar Adhish Swaroo)
Partner Company Secretary
Membership No.: 089003
Ashwini Mehra
Liquidator
Place: Delhi Reg. No: IBBIIPA-001/IP-P00388/2017-18/10706

Date: | Q‘ oﬁ")_o?_{



Punj Lloyd Ltd

info@punjlloyd.com
www.punjlloyd.com
Contact Number-8882235461

(<>,

September 16, 2025

BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Department of Corporate Services Exchange Plaza

25" Floor Bandra Kurla Complex

P J Towers Bandra (East)

Dalal Street Mumbai — 400051

Mumbai — 400001

Scrip Code: 532693 / Scrip ID: PUNJLLOYD Symbol: PUNJLLOYD

Dear Sirs,

Re: Compliance with Regulation 33 & 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Requlations 2015.

In compliance with the above Regulations we are herewith submitting audited Financial
Statements (Consolidated & Standalone) for the year ending 315t March, 2019 duly approved by
the Liquidator on 16" September, 2025. The Audit Reports and statement on Impact of Audit
qualifications in respect of the audited Financial Statements are also attached.

The meeting commenced at 3.30 p.m. and concluded at 5.30 p.m.

Yours faithfully
For PUNJ LLOYD LIMITED (IN LIQUIDATION)

H Digitally signed by Adhish Swaroop
Ad h IS h SWa roo p Date: 2025.09.16 19:04:57 +05'30"

Adhish Swaroop
Company Secretary

Encl.: a/a

Registered Office
17-18 Nehru Place, New Delhi 110 019, India
CIN: L74899DL1988PLC033314



ANNEXURE I
Punj Lloyd Limited

I Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion)
submitted along with Annual Audited Financial Results
INR Crores
I Audited Figures (as Audited Figures (as |
" S no Particulars reported before reported after
: adjusting for adjusting for
qualifications) qualifications)
1 | Turnovere/ Total Inocme 1,955.07
2 | Total Expenditure 13,239.96
» 3 | Net Profit/(Loss) (12,488.63)
Earning per Share (after exceptional
4 | items) (372.13)
5 | Total Assets 2,037.65 |  Not Determinable
6 | Total Liabilities 14,740.34
7 | Net Worth (12,702.69)
Any other Financial Item(s)
(as felt appropriate by the
8 | management) Nil

II.  Audit Qualifications
a. Details of audit Qualifications

Qualified Opinion

1. The net realizable value (NRV) of inventories as on 31st March 2019 has not been determined by the
company. Consequently, inventories have been valued at cost, rather than at the lower of cost or NRV, which
is contrary to the requirements of Ind AS 2 — Inventories and accounting policy of the company. The
financial impact of this non-compliance remains unquantifiable due to the absence of NRV data.

2.-Balances as per books of accounts relating to statutory liabilities such as VAT payable, GST Payable, TDS
payable, EPF, ESI and National Pension Scheme (NPS) have not been reconciled with the corresponding
figures in the statutory returns. The financial impact, if any, arising from these unreconciled items has not
been determined and provided in the financial statements.

3. The company has not reconciled the claims received from operational creditors with the balances
recorded in its books of accounts as on CIRP commencement date. In absence of the reconciliations, the
financial impact, if any, remains unascertained. Refer Note No. 14 of the financial statements.

4. The employee benefit expenses recorded in the financial statements are not in reconciliation with the
payroll and HR records maintained by the company. The impact of the same, if any, could not be determined
due to non-reconciliation of said expenses.

5. Due to the significant time lag between the period under audit and the conduct of the audit, the Project-
related expenses, including those for material consumption, contractor charges, and site operations could not |
be physically verified at respective sites. f

6. Bank guarantees amounting to Rs.1928.55 crores, including Rs. 1124.26 crores after the balance sheet
date, have been encashed by the customers due to non-compliance of the terms of the contract executed by |
the company with them, with corresponding impact in profit and loss account. Loss is overstated to the
extent of Rs. 1124.26 crores. Refer Note No. 37 of the Financial Statements.

7. We could not obtain the direct balance confirmation from banks and receivables of the company as on
the balance sheet date.




' 8. The Commercial Registration (CR) of the company of its branches at Saudi Arabia, Qatar and Libya,
 have been expired and not been renewed, resulting restrictions like physical visit of the branch office have
imposed and branch auditor have relived on the statements and explanations provided by the management of
| the company.
9. In respect of Saudi Arabia and Qatar branch, bank statements for the period under audit as well as
subsequent period have not been provided.
10. Inrespect of Abu Dhabi branch, due to non-renewal of the license after June 1 1, 2022, and inability of
a legal attorney to provide certification, management is unable to confirm whether any legal dues exist
towards UAE regulatory authorities. Hence, we are unable to ascertain whether the financial statements as
of March, 31, 2019, includes all necessary provisions and disclosures for liabilities towards UAE
authorities.
1. In respect of Abu Dhabi branch, we are unable to verify the transaction during the year and balances of
accounts payable, retention payable and provision of AED 45,448,105/ (Rs. 85,58,78,713/-) out of the total
payable of AED 84,054,550/- (Rs.158,29,15,286/-). In absence of any supporting documents and external
confirmations from suppliers and vendors, we were unable to comment whether any adjustments would be
necessary to the below balances:

Particulars Amount (In AED) Amount (in Rs.)
Accounts Payables 30,414,529 57,27,66,410
Retention Payable 8,361,352 15,74,60,981
Provision for expense 6,672,224 12,56,51,322
Total 45,448,105 85,58,78,713

12. " Inrespect of Abu Dhabi branch, we were unable to verify margins, other facilities, financial and
contingent liabilities, if any, that needs to be included in the accompanying financial statements due to
unavailability of three bank balance confirmations out of five banks.

13. A forgery had been committed against the company, compromising the Company Commercial
Registration (CR) of its Oman Branch, resulted in imposing of certain restrictions, including physical visit
to the branch office. Consequently, verification procedures were limited, and reliance was placed on
information, documentation, and explanations provided by Company. ,
14.  The financial statements of the Oman branch reflect an occurrence of theft from its warehouse. A First |
Information Report (FIR) has been filed with the local police authorities. The said matter is pending for
adjudication before the local court in Oman.

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion

¢. Frequency of qualification: All the qualifications have appeared for the first time.

d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management’s
Views:

Particulars

1. In respect of qualification 6 above, As per Ind AS 10, Paragraph § - Adjusting events after the
reporting period are those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period and require adjustments to the financial statements. Further in accordance with the Prudence
Principle, any uncertainties and risks inherent in business transactions should be accounted for by
ensuring that assets and income are not overstated, and liabilities and expenses are not understated.

Since the bank guarantees pertain to various projects which were already delayed as of the balance
sheet date, as per the terms of the contracts, the encashment of these guarantees reflects conditions that
existed as of the reporting date. Therefore, this qualifies as an adjusting event under Ind AS 10. In line
with the principle of prudence, the financial Impact was recognized in the profit and loss account to

Za




ensure that liabilities are not understated, and the financial statements reflect a true and fair view, in
compliance with the above standards. Total impact of such accounting amounts to INR 1,124.26 crores.

In respect of qualification 11 above, In accordance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC),
a public advertisement was issued inviting claims from all creditors, including suppliers and vendors in
India and overseas jurisdictions where Company had operations. Claims received were verified as per
the framework of IBC. It is also important to note that any settlement with creditors will be carried out
as per the provisions of IBC and as per the terms of final outcome of the liquidation process. Hence, the
actual settlement amount could not be ascertained and effects of the same on financial statements
cannot be determined.

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

i. Management’s estimation on impact of audit qualification: indeterminable

ii. If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same:

; Particulars

|

[ 1.

In respect of qualification 1 above, As explained in Note 2 (iv) to the financial statements, and para
31 of IND AS 2, estimates of net realisable value also take into consideration the purpose for which the
inventory is held. It is to be noted that the Inventory is not held for sale and rather used for project
completion which is to recover/generate revenue from respective projects. Since these are long term
projects and inventory as of 31 March 2019 not being very material, it is not practical to ascertain
impact of valuation of Inventory due to losses if any, in those projects.

In respect of qualification 2 above, All statutory dues were calculated basis the data available upto the
filling date. However, due to significant time lapse and subsequent event changes between filling of
statutory returns and signing of the financial statements, reconciliation of statutory filings and
accounting record of certain balances is no longer feasible. Accordingly, discrepancies and effects of
the same on financial statements cannot be determined.

In respect of qualification 3 above, Claims were admitted by the RP/Liquidator pursuant to the public
announcement after verification of documents submitted by the claimants with those available in the
Company’s records. However, differences may exist due to factors such as interest claimed for delayed
payments, penalties for non-performance, or other contractual interpretations. These differences are
inherent to the claims process and do not necessarily reflect inaccuracies in the Company’s accounting
records. It is also important to note that any settlement with operational creditors will be carried out as
per the provisions of IBC and as per the terms of final outcome of the liquidation process. Hence, the
actual settlement amount could not be ascertained and effects of the same on financial statements
cannot be determined at this stage.

In respect of qualification 4 above, Prior to initiation of CIRP, there was a significant cash crunch in
the company and the operations of the company were badly affected. To ensure continuity of projects
with minimum disruption on respective projects, in certain cases, employee-related payments were
made directly by the clients majority of them were PSUs. And due to significant time lapses and dispute
with certain clients, complete details of these payments are not available in the Company’s internal
records, leading to differences between HR data and financial reporting. Effects of the same on
financial statements cannot be determined.

In respect of qualification S above, Given the substantial time lapse, further progress at project sites
and completion of some of the project sites since then, it was not practically feasible to carry out ‘
physical verification of mentioned expenses as on March 2019. It is pertinent to mention that during the |
reporting period as well as subsequent to the end of reporting period, majority of the expenses have i
corresponding project inflows which have been duly verified by clients as well as independent/authority |
engineers. |

|
|
|
|
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In respect of qualification 7 above, Due to the significant time lapse between the reporting date (31st |
March 2019) and the conduct of the audit, obtaining direct confirmations was not practically feasible.
RP/Liquidator had sent balance confirmation emails to all the banks at the time of commencement of
CIRP. Wherever direct confirmations were not received, the available bank statements were shared

with the auditors to verify the balances.

In respect of qualification 8 above, Management clarifies that there were no ongoing projects in these ‘
locations and the branch offices were vacated and operations closed. Since there was a significant cash
crunch and lack of manpower, renewal of CRs was not pursued. The individual asset sizes of the
branches as a percentage of the total balance sheet value were approximately:

1. Saudi Arabia: 0.00%
2. Qatar: 0.00%

It is also to be noted that the assets amounting to INR 305.17 Crore in Libya have been provided for
during the period under audit. i

In respect of qualification 9 above, Management clarifies that these branches were non-operational
during the period, with no ongoing projects. Bank balance in Saudi Arabia was Nil in both FY 2018 and
FY 2019. Further, RP/Liquidator had sent balance confirmation emails to all bank during the
commencement of CIRP and accordingly, the available statements have been shared. Certain statements
which were not provided by Banks could not be provided to the auditor. The bank balances in the
respective branches as a percentage of the total balance sheet value were approximately:

1. Saudi Arabia: 0.00%
2. Qatar: 0.49%

It is also to be noted that the Bank Balance amounting to INR 14.23 Crore in Libya have been provided for

during the period under audit.

9.

In respect of qualification 10 above, In accordance with the provisions of the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code (IBC), a public advertisement was issued inviting claims from all creditors, including
statutory and regulatory authorities in India and overseas Jurisdictions where Company had operations.
Claims received were verified as per the framework of the IBC. It is also important to note that any
settlement with creditors will be carried out as per the provisions of IBC and as per the terms of final
outcome of the liquidation process. Hence, the actual settlement amount could not be ascertained and
effects of the same on financial statements cannot be determined.

10.

In respect of qualification 12 above, In accordance with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), ‘
a public advertisement was issued inviting claims from all creditors, including banks, other facilities '
and financial liabilities. Balance confirmations were actively sought from claimants and for banks, the
Liquidator formally requested confirmations. As of the reporting date, two out of five banks responded,
and responses from the remaining three banks are still awaited.

The financial statements reflect the balances based on the available records. In the absence of further
confirmations, no additional adjustments were considered necessary. \

11.

In respect of qualification 13 above, The Liquidator, along with his team and the company's
representatives, visited Oman to assess the forgery of the Company’s Commercial Registration (CR).
Meetings were held with officials from the Indian Embassy, Chamber of Commerce, and Ministry of
Commerce at Oman. |
Following their advice, the Liquidator reported the forgery and fraudulent sale of the company's assets
to the following authorities in Oman:

-Ministry of Justice and Legal Affairs

-State Financial and Administrative Audit Institution
-Ministry of Commerce, Industry & Investment Promotion
-Legal Department of the Chamber of Commerce




A public notice was also issued in local newspapers, declaring Punj Lloyd Limited as the sole owner of 1

the assets and warning that any unauthorized dealings would be at the buyer’s risk and subject to legal
consequences.

Legal counsel was also appointed by the Liquidator, who filed an appeal against the adverse judgment
of the Public Prosecution of Sohar, Oman. The matter remains sub-judice.

Additionally, A First Information Report (FIR) has been filed with the local police authorities for loss
of assets and documents. The said matter is pending outcome with Royal Oman Police.

|

12. In respect of qualification 14 above, A First Information Report (FIR) has been filed with the local
police authorities for loss of assets and documents. The said matter is pending outcome with Royal
| Oman Police.

iii. Auditors’ Comments on above: Nil

For Kashyap Sikdar & Co. For and on behalf of Punj Lloyd Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number; 0
UDINNo. D-50R2,3 2S5 T
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